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VISION

To endeavor through the noble institution of Life Insurance
in making every family economically safe and secure where

by every citizen of Nepal may contribute his might in
building a healthy, prosperous, Strong & Vibrant Nation.

MISSION

To cater financial and social needs of every segment of
society by designing differentiated and innovative insurance
instruments. To provide after sales service to customers that
can be availed as the best.
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FOREWORD

This is the annual report of NepallLife Insurance
Company Limited covering the Fiscal Year 2074/75
(1st Shrawan 2074 to 32nd Ashad 2075). It
comprises of detail information regarding financial
performance of the company during the period and
offers overview regarding company’s strategies,
values, management, achievements and future
prospects in context with prevailing environment
during the operating period.

This annual report is prepared pursuant to section
109 of Company Act 2063 and incompliance with
circulars of Beema Samiti and all other related legal
requirements. Financial Statements, related notes
and disclosures published in this report have been
audited by company’s external auditor; Gyanendra
and Associates and the independent Auditor’s
Report is present in page 82.

Information set forth in this report and financial
Statements of Fiscal Year 2074/75 contains forward-
looking information including future oriented
financial information and financial outlook under
pertinent securities laws. Except for statements

of historical fact, these statements are subject to
number of risks and uncertainties. Information
contained herein constitutes forward-looking
statements, but is not limited to the financial
performance of the company; Competitive factors
in the industries in which the Insurance operates
in, general economic and business condition,
legislative, fiscal, tax and regulatory developments
and political risks, completion of, and the use of
proceeds from, the sale of the shares being offered,
the expected development of the company’s
business and projects; execution of the company’s
vision and growth strategy, including with respect to
future activity and global growth. These statements
are basically a medium to let prospective investors
to comprehend management’s views and opinions
in respect of the future so that they may use such
beliefs and opinions as one factor in evaluation
before making any investment in the company.
These statements provided do not guarantee the
future performance of the company and undue
reliance should not be placed on them.
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Jayudn aiffde fddier faazor
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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qe 3il aiftfed JATENOT JHTHAT U d HAoded
SPEECH BY CHAIRMAN, MR. GOVIND LAL SANGHAI
IN THE NINETEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

AU ARl HETAATIRT,

AT AT ST HFIHT [ATTIShT a9 I8t
M ATIRIT THATHT Tl HUHT GO SR
HETANTaEedls elfas @ qa1 ATgarsd =a<h
TG, 1T HEATRT ATF oTT 3097 /9L /T qTH
A& FREAHEEAH RIS I&qd Tag | AGrH
TACIRl ATaE THE  FAFNE qAT FEATAR
iR Fad Aqca qIT TAARTA FHAREEH]

(a¥ hn

Mied TIEA Id ASh SR HEAl
fafaeee a9 v 9fq T=re fafersear qar sfdes
qigeh! fedraet TR TSl THHT @A | FALATITFH
TITIEEERT AMBUH THIAT TR THT TEHATT
TAT BAGHTEAAE F FFqATH faar o qer

ZTATIFE @Al TARHT TS T Fhe TR

9l

fae

qifder a9 R00Y /Oy HEHIET  SINT A
IEYE AUH! FTAT AT | AIHET JUAT FHFIATA
TAT EAAIATE WA YRY FIIE AHF Hebeld
T TAT FAAT R ATARET HEIATS  ANTLERT
qalie TARIEEH! ATATATS HIH A& qHd
AU T | OHET T FHT AT G A
FT Y 0.8 A FHA AW 9ob AeheAd ITLHAT T
FEIATT A 9895 qF FA AETeH Geopad T

e ATHTIERHT B 3R FITd TAREET AT

Respected Shareholders,

With great pleasure, | would like to welcome all the
shareholders in this 19th annual general meeting of
Nepal Life Insurance Company Ltd and present the
highlights of our Company’s performance during
the financial year 2074/75. Nepallife Insurance
Company has succeeded again to complete a
successful year in terms of operational excellence
and financial growth. In spite of the inevitable
challenges faced, Nepallife Insurance nevertheless
prevailed through concerted team efforts of all
employees under the prudent leadership of our
Chief Executive Officer and Board. The members
of the management team carried out their assigned
responsibilities with most sincerity and dedication
resulting to the company’s sustainable growth and
goodwill in the market.

FY 2074/75 was an extremely overwhelming year for
the NepalLife insurance Company. During the period,
the company has been able to hold the largest market
share based on the new business by collecting 5.94
billion rupees as premium. | am extremely proud to
share with you that in the review period, the total
life insurance premium of the country was NRs.
50.65 billion for the sector and with the collection
of NRs. 16.18 billion as its total Premium income.

19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 13
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RTRT AT AT AT ATET AL e ToTehT
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AETTHTAE S A AFRICHE TIHT [ddg & Al
faroare feruer & A1 favear wawT A=dqfaa yfawe
FIH & qTSaT HATs Gl AR G |

AT FUEEHAT  QTHT AMHT R,  faad
HIEARAT TAT FIHT TBAR] FRUS Fig g1 ATET
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AEYAF T | BTN ATHAl ATAENAE ITANAEIRT
e fMeTaesed! MRt e UTdAT, HFIAIR &
TG, el Awqfta AT T ARBRATATEEHT
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This company has been able to secure the largest
market share of 32 percent. We have diversified our
investment into different projects in accordance with
the new investment policy enforced by the Beema
Samiti and | am glad to share you that we have been
successful in maintaining an average investment
leads to benefit for all the stakeholders. Therefore,
the Company has been striving to achieve growth
on the average return by diversifying company's
investment. In order to strengthen the financial
capacity, we have issued 25 percent bonus share as
well as 23.5% cash dividend per share (Including
tax). | believe that the shareholders will take this
proposal very positively and | am glad that we have
been able to continuously maintain our return.

The insurance industry in the country is expected
to grow in the coming years due to rising financial
literacy, sector expansion and government
initiatives. It is important for the industry to create
and communicate the value of insurance products
so that more customers can be attracted resulting
in development and sustainable growth of the
industry. We believe our strategies will enable us
to be in compliance with regulations, improve our
performance in customer satisfaction and trust and
allow us to create value for all the stakeholders. Our
Endeavour is to create a stronger digital connect,



giaohera afels g @ favaed @ | e
Jafeal =BT q9T  ATALAFATATS  greaTd  TRr
AT TARETERT ¥ FAdT aATs, ATHT ATSTATHT
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gfareraT wfaglg T 7 BT YIS B |
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AT ATV SIREEs, GATAE AT (T TGS
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af FEH T @A faedrd U g o1 wEIe
faepra qa1 SAREAIETH fEqehl AN ¥ A,
HIF YA qAT R AT Y& Mg [HarHd
freprar drar wfafa, weaeT s wraray, frar
9 AT, TUTd Web Tag=val, JAT JATAE ATHIcTehT
FgHAT AdET AT FEAT FGLI giq erfdd

FHAA Ah Tag |

oft Mfare o= @
qeTmeT

expand our product portfolio to meet the changing
needs of our customers and to add value to their
association.

Once again, | would like to thank all esteemed
shareholders for their confidence on the members
of the Board and Management team. It is my firm
expectation that such confidence will remain
persistent in the coming years also. | also take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to Beema Samiti,
Company Registrar's Office, Securities Board of
Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd, my colleagues in
the Board of Directors and the Management and all
other associated agencies for their wise leadership,
relentless efforts and dedicated services for the
welfare of the Company and Shareholders.

Thank You

Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai
Chairman
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UdRd PRIGR] 3iftiad sh fddd ab1dl dodca
SPEECH BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,

MR. VIVEK JHA

YT AT ZrATE HFIAT fATHaS el 9% T
TMitfer FTIRO FATHT JUIT FEiee qaedrg
e TR T qISal Aadls qcdw gl
ARTET G | GAIIHT | Teleedrs T HFIATeH!
GEAE  FAT 9T FGRIYA Yid @
TUH! fqearq TaT ARIETRT AN Blide a=aare
faet =me=g, A A7 favare qor s atgerE

TS TUEEHT Ui HTIH evgde J= faeard

feruent g |

T AMAF o9 09% /Y AT 9i g S
STATRT &AT YT T BEd T "
qURMET AATE QI AN & | a9
SAFT gfg AR TTAR TULEHT THRCHE
WHl G | [aArENT HHE qAT d9hl dad
ATF FeAFbeedl FATH (G ATLAT A
YAl &FHT Wl [IEARET JATER aTaee
qf &l ST ded AR HUHT @ | aEd
AREA ATHT FAANTEH AR S Tl
B | g9 99 9 GHRICAS FaGIaeF ardraze
fasT T WEes T FA9d gArad T
frarees faepraame g qEee T e g |
T ETHT ATTRATES ART IHT AT
ARTREET AT ATSHeb Tge TATIA ¥4
TATITHTHT B, | AT BTHT HU=T TTeeed
FAAIH]  FAAAT  JAT FHATR AT
YR THE HF AI ATSRATS AN
SEA AT AR FOHT T d T Fhed
WU |

I am extremely happy and delighted in welcoming
you all to the 19th Annual General Meeting (AGM)
of Nepal Life Insurance Company Ltd. Before
moving forward, | would like to thank you all for
your continuous faith and confidence in the Board
and Management team of your company and hope
this will remain unflinching in years to come.

Yet another year, | am delighted to see that we are
able to secure leading position in the life insurance
sector for the fiscal year 2074/75 too. The growth
index of life insurance sector has remained positive
in the recent years. We have managed to recover
from the devastating earthquake and move forward
even though the macroeconomic indicators of the
country were increasing in minimal rate affecting
the expansion of the service sector. Regardless of the
changing external environment, | believe NepallLife
has managed to perform exceptionally well. We
received full support from our regulator during the
year smoothing our operations as well as creating
positive environment for doing business. Similarly,
our agents were actively dedicated to broaden our
business horizon and making it possible for Nepal
life to be accessible to every citizen. At the same
time, our employees played key role in coordination
and management of business to make NepallLife the
leading life insurance company of Nepal.

19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 17
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In the fiscal year 2074/75, the life insurance
sector collected a total premium of Rs. 50.65
billion and marked an overall growth rate of
31%. It gives me immense pleasure to share in
this glorious AGM that in the review period, our
company was successful to secure the maximum
market share in both; first premium income
and total premium income as 31% and 32%
respectively with total premium collection of
16.18 billion, increasing the life insurance fund
by Rs. 10.05 billion to reach Rs. 49.59 billion
maintaining a solvency margin of 3.13 times.

As a part of business expansion strategy,
currently we have been serving through 177
branch networks across the country. In the
review period, we tried our level best to ensure
continued growth, sustainability and financial
strength overcoming the volatile environmental
factors. This year our focus was to make more
of long term and extended investments. We
managed to perform in the most efficient way
even when the bank interest rate dropped to its
lowest at 7% from its highest 12%. It was quite
a challenge to maintain the average returns of
the company in balance. However, through
efficient portfolio diversification we were able
to maintain an average return of 10.23 percent
providing substantial returns to our customers
and shareholders.

Our focus is mainly concentrated to raise
awareness on life insurance and its benefits on
a massive scale throughout the country using
mass media campaign. We believe in offering
variety of options to general public giving them



AT MY ST SAERY AT A TEeRT
T | BTHT A STATR] STHT UTEha el
AT TR i fapeqes gam T
TeFedels Tel AT AR FAE T
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HIHT JH HFIAAT AMAT Mg qeq0
AT HeTA9TEaes, drAT FAfG q9r o=
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AT T ATEwH G FEAWT qAT
FIATE Y Blfadh wdA=dl 2a<h Tag, a9T 7
faeprger N Blesd  qATIT  HUR
ANTEHaTS gaeae fqe AmHT fedewar
aff Fefesdl MR WA qar Argew!

AT TS, |

PREIEN!

ot faaw
THE FEHRT At

opportunity to choose the suitable products
fulfilling their needs, enabling them to enjoy
ultimate benefits from the product. We strive to
take forward the company's slogan 'life insurance
for all, because life is precious' as a common
slogan for social awareness on life insurance
sector to ensure it as a major source for capital
formation needed for the nation's development.

Finally, I would like to take the opportunity to
express my gratitude to all our valued clients,
Insurance Board of Nepal & other Regulatory
Authorities, Board of Directors, agents as well
as our patrons and well wishers for the co-
operation from their end. | also thank all of
our employees for their dedication towards the
company. | hope, your co-operation and support
will continue with us in coming days.

Thank You.

Mr. Vivek Jha
Chief Executive Officer
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&g | et g9
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AT (AT AT
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TR ([EhT HEcaqol
FHIAT Jetel HFIATH
PELCICECIEC
[STFETel q¥aTer], HUaT
foram |

Mr. Govind Lal
Sanghai

Chairman

Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai

is the Chairman of the
company. He is associated
with Triveni Group which
is involved in various
sector of Nepalese
economy including
banking, insurance,
trading and manufacturing.
In the past, he had served
as the Managing Director
of the company and had
played a vital role since
the establishment.
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Mr. Ram Avatar
Agrawal
Director

Mr. Agrawal represents the
Board of Directors from
Promoter Group. He is an
Engineer by profession.
Prior to his retirement from
the service of Government
of Nepal, he held the

post of Project Manager

in number of Irrigation
Projects of Nepal. He is
involved in various business
activities and is also actively
associated with a number of
social service organizations
of the country

A FHAL FAR ATATAY
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TooTereh QTATTHT giaftee
TRRET AR G | I8 AR
TAATAHT &ATT ATHT
FHISRg Fevq Ee TaTed
TR A HHYH! JUTHETH
FaaT fafer §erepr faeprasT
Taa PRafae @Y ae
TUHT B | &7 FeT AN
AIATHT BIIR] F=aATAE THA
g s | [T Qafal Aftey
AT FEATR! FoATA b
FOHT FHT ARTEA [ATI

qUHT fort |

Mr. Kamlesh
kumar Agrawal
Director

Mr. Agrawal represents the
board as an independent
director. He is also
vice-president of Nepal
Chamber of Commerce
and director at Citizen
Investment Trust of Nepal.
In the past, he had served
as a public director in
Rastria Beema Sansthan.
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Mr. Prakash
Mundara
Director

Mr. Mundara represents
the Board as a public
director. He is the Senior
Vice President of Morang
Merchant Association
and First Vice President
of Nepal Jute Industry
Association. He is
involved in various areas
of manufacturing, trading
and service sectors.
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Mr. Vivek
Agrawal
Director

Mr. Agrawal represents
the Board of Directors
from the Promoter
Group. He is involved
in various business
sectors including
manufacturing, trading
and service industry. He
is well versed in the field
of goods and service
marketing.

S 9T UATG Scblct
Jdreich

A7 faAa gae gy
FAFTIRIT ARG ST
FHEATE FeATAE FTATTHT
gfdtta Teed A
T | Tl YT I
AIaFAT TE7S T
PIAAR] GTHT AN
fchcaehl FUAT Tiferd
glg s |

Mr. Bimal Prasad
Dhakal

Director

Mr. Dhakal represents
the board as a public
director. He is well
known corporate
Advocate and has got
decades of experience in
the corporate law.
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Mrs. Parul
Dhakal

Director

Mrs. Dhakal represents
the Board of Directors
from Promoter Group.
She is Human Resource
consultant & has been
working as General
Manager of reputed
company working in
field of Human Resource
Management.
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RIATATI IS
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM
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STANDING FROM LEFT TO RIGHT:

Rita Sharma Head Reinsurance Dept., Sharad Chandra Pyakhurel Head IT Dept., Ujwal Aryal Head Claim Dept.,
Pawan Kumar Khadka Head - Corporate Marketing, Digvijay Singhal Head Underwriting Dept.,

Meghendra Prakash Giri Head - Communications and Branding, Umapati Pokharel Sr. Assistant General Manager,
Omprakash Pudasaini Act. Assistant General Manager., Roshan Dawadi Head Finance and HR Dept.

SITTING FROM LEFT TO RIGHT:
Sushil Kumar Chaudhary DCEO, Vivek Jha CEO, Santosh Prasai DCEO.

19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 25



26

|

L
i

ORGANISATION

NepalLife Insurance Company takes great
pride to be recognized as the first Insurance
Company to meet the capital requirement
set by Beema Samiti. Founded on Baishak 4,
2058 BS by a group of prominent and dynamic
business personalities
sector, registered under Company Registration
on 2055/10/18 with registration number of
700/2055/056 under Companies Act, 2053.
Further, it is registered in Inland Revenue Office
on 2057/3/16 with Permanent Account Number
5000634333 under Income Tax Act, 2058,

of Nepalese private

NepalLife Insurance Company has earned itself

a remarkable position since its establishment.
We have been successfully presenting an
array of products each with its own benefits in
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front of our customers to choose from. Our vigilant
management has taken a pledge for excellence in
every step we take towards betterment. Application
of best technology and intelligence with a human
touch to proactively manage risk and challenges is
our foremost concern. We endeavor for the utmost
client satisfaction, considering that the only way that
we may benefit from the client- agent relationship is
through their satisfaction. Today, NepalLife Insurance
has one of the highest bonus rates among the life
insurance sector. We carry out our business only in
Federal Democratic Republic of Nepal.

We have now strength of more than 430 well trained
employees and more than 110,612 hard working
agents serving through 135 branches and sub-branches



through-out the country insuring millions of lives. All
branches are integrated through centralized software
making it suitable for customers to make the most of
modern services such as “Any Branch Service”. Our
website is built in a very user friendly manner which
is constantly updated and customers can learn more
about the company’s new products and services.

OUR STRUCTURE

Among the paid-up capital of Rs.439.69
crores, promoters own 70% while the
remaining 30% has been issued to the
general public.

Share Holding Pattern of
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

30«

PUBLIC

PROMOTERS

Our commitment to serving shareholders has included
the adoption of policies and procedures to ensure high
standards of corporate governance. Our customers
are at the heart of what we do. Our greatest strength
comes from positive recognition from our customers,
strong financial position and effective management
strategies.

There are approximately 154,431 shareholders,
out of them, shareholders holding more than
1% shares are shown below

Shareholders Percentage (%)

Subhash Chandra Sanghai 7.70%
Anuj Agrawal 6.02%
Govind Lal Sanghai 5.37%
Purushottam Lal Sanghai 4.21%
Pawan Kuwar Golyan 4.12%
Bishal Agrawal 3.86%
Ram Chandra Sanghai 3.85%
Bashudev Golyan 3.26%
Kabita Sanghai 2.35%
Sushil Gupta 1.42%
Tulsi Ram Agrawal 1.22%
Sanchita Agrawal 1.22%
Nikunj Agrawal 1.22%
Manju Agrawal 1.22%
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WHY DO WE
STAND OUT IN MARKET

65 to 82 110,612 49.5 billion
per Thousand NO. OF AGENTS LIFE FUND
BONUS RATE

58.95 billion 9.77 billion 16 billion

INVESTMENT SHAREHOLDER’S FUND TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME

13.21 billion 2.4 million 135

CLAIM PAYMENT NO. OF POLICIES BRANCHES AND
SUB BRANCHES

—
mm

8.42 billion

430

NO. OF EMPLOYEES NO. OF PRODUCTS POLICY LOAN
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FINANCIAL STABILITY

In our 19th year of operation, we have immensely
grown our business; wise investment and huge
life fund is our strongest assets. Today, we have
shareholder’s fund of more than Rs.9. billion,
which we believe is the strongest position in the
market. Our diversified investment of Rs. 58.95
billion has made is possible to earn income of
Rs. 5.27 billion making effective annual yield of
10.23%. A measure ability to meet all our financial
obligations in respect to our insurance contract is

our solvency ratio of 3.13 times at the year-end
32nd Ashad,2075, which is more than 300% of
statutory requirement of 1. We have set aside Rs.
49.5 billion life fund as prescribed by our actuary
and Rs. 43.67 crore as Catastrophic Reserves as
prescribed by regulatory body.We have reinsured
ourselves with globally renowned reinsurance
company “Hannover Re Life Reinsurance
Company”, Germany and Nepal Re-insurance
Company Limited.

U2AH AT 2o 3MTdGIall I et didll 2ed 3TdGIoll (G2A eTIRAd)
FIRST PREMIUM INCOME AND TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME (IN MILLION)

18,000
16,171
16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
5,939
6,000 "2 4,212
3,893 3,847 r/
000 R
2,000
070/71 071/72 072/73 073/74 074/75
FPI —— TPI
Life Fund (n million) Investments (in Million)
60,000 70,000
50.000 49,.597 60,000 58,931 .06
i 48,217.50
39,451 50,000 -
40,000 »
31,405 40,000 34,687.55
30,000 u »
23'.29‘ 30,000
17,050
20,000 " 20,000
10,000 10,000
070/71  071/72 07273 073/74  074/75 072/73 073/74 074175
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OUR PRODUCTS

We offer wide range of products based on
various customers' need. Detail analysis of
customers’ requirements is carried out before
any product if offered. Creating value is the
main key for us to gain satisfied customers with
long term relationship. Our productis basically
classified under Endowment, Anticipated,
Whole life and Term life insurance.
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NAULO JEEVAN SAMBRIDDHI

Naulo Jeevan Sambridi is Limited Payment Money-
back (Anticipated) Endowment Plan. Company
has launched this product after successful
launching of previous anticipated endowment
plan (JeevanSambdirhi) keeping in mind the
customer demands requiring more money-back
during the policy terms. This product has added
features of single premium payment option, policy
loan availability after one year , paying 2 yearly
premium, modified ADB/PTD/ PWB as well C-I
facilities and added policy tenure of 10,15,20and
25 yrs. During the policy terms, there shall be
sum assured payment before the policy maturity
at the interval of 4 yrs from date of policy issue.
The risk of death of insured is covered through the
period and whereas premium payment are made
for limited terms only.

= Entry Age: 16 to 60 years

m Term: 10 years to 25 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs.50,000-/

m Maximum Sum Assured: As per income Source

m Risk coverage for whole term on a limited
payment period.

m After one year after paying 2 yearly premium,
surrendered amount and loan can be received.

In case of death of an insured by any cause,
the sum assured with an earned bonus payable
without reducing the previously paid amount.

In case of death on single premium, 2.5 time
of Sum Assured with an earned bonus payable
without reducing the previously paid amount.

NAULO DHANA BARSA

Naulo Dhanbarsha is Limited Payment Money-
back (Anticipated) Endowment Plan. Company
has launched this product after successful
launching of previous anticipated endowment
plan keeping in mind the customer demands
requiring more money-back during the policy
terms in short intervals.

m Entry Age: 16 to 60 years

m Term: 10 years to 25 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 50,000/-

= Maximum Sum Assured: As per income Source

During the policy terms, there shall be 5 payments
thus creating more liquidity option during the
policy periods as well as policy loan is available
after one year after paying 2 yearly premiums.
Modified ADB/PTD/ PWB as well C-I facilities
and added policy tenure of 10,15,20and 25 yrs.
The risk of death of insured is covered through
the period and whereas premium payment are
made for limited terms only.In case of death on
single premium, 2.5 times of Sum Assured with
an earned bonus payable without reducing the
previously paid amount .
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JEEVAN UNNATI

Jeevan Unnati is Limited Payment Money-back
(Anticipated) Endowment Plan. Company has
launched this product after successful launching
of previous anticipated endowment plan keeping
in mind the customer demands requiring more
money-back during the policy term. Saving and
protection plan that provides lump sum payouts at
regular to meet customer financial requirements.
ADB/PTD/ PWB as well C-I facilities are available.

m Entry Age: 16 to 58 years

m Term: 12 years to 20 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 50,000/-

= Maximum Sum Assured: As per income Source

During the policy terms, there shall be payments
on different intervals thus creating more liquidity
option during the policy periods as well as policy
loan is available after one year after paying 2
yearly premiums. The risk of death of insured is
covered through the period and whereas premium
payment are made for limited terms only. In case
of death on single premium, 2.5 time of Sum
Assured with an earned bonus payable without
reducing the previously paid amount.
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CHILD EDUCATION PLAN

SECURED EDUCATION, PROSPEROUS
FUTURE, HAPPY LIFE

m Entry Age - From birth till 18 yrs

= One policy, double risk coverage
(Proposer & Child)

= Maturity amount received can be utilized for
child's education

m In case of death of the proposer, regular annual
fixed income will be provided to the child to
ensure the child's education until maturity

m Loan facility available after 1 year of policy

enforcement

JEEVAN SAHARA

Composition of endowment and whole Life
Policy. Sum assured with bonus is paid at the
time of maturity .In case of death, during the
policy term sum assured with bonus is paid. In
case of accidental death, basic sum assured and
accidental sum assured with bonus is payable.
Again, risk will be cover for their whole life. In
case of death after policy term again sum assured
with bonus is payable. ADB as well C-| facilities
are available.

m Entry Age: 16 to 65 years

m Term: 5 years to 54 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 50,000/-

= Maximum Sum Assured: As per income Source



SMART LIFE INSURANCE

This is a term plan and has been targeted for those
people who want to cover the risk of their life for
very short period.

m Entry Age: 16 to 60 years

m Term: 1 years

= Payment mode: Annual

= Minimum Sum Assured: 2,50,000

= Maximum Sum Assured:
Any amount depending upon health condition
and income

In case of death of survivor during term period,
sum assured is payable to the nominee.

Medical Requirement: the cost of medical
checkup, in case of requirement, shall be borne
by the company. As this is a term plan Maturity,
surrender, loan and paid up amount shall not be
provided.
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SURAKSHIT JEEVAN BEEMA

This is pure endowment product designed with
an aim to get more people insured at reasonable
premium. Under this product, insured gets sum
assured and bonus at the maturity of the policy
or nominee gets the claim in case of insured
death. This Product has been the highest selling
product in the market due to its maximum
coverage at lesser premium. ADB/PTD/PWB and

Cl benefit available. Loan, surrender as well paid
up facilities are available.

m Entry Age: 11 to 60 years

= Term: 5 years to 50 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: 25,000

= Maximum Sum Assured: As per income Source

JEEVAN LAXMI

This product targets for those willing to get
maximum life risk coverage at reasonable
premium. This product has unique feature of
triple benefit. At the time of policy maturity,
insured gets sum assured with bonus as single
benefit, on the death of insured within the policy
term, nominee gets two times the sum assured
and bonus till the time as double benefit and

in case of accidental death of policy holder,
nominee gets three times the sum assured with
bonus till the time as triple benefit. Cl facility is
available.

m Entry Age: 16 — 50 years

m Term: 7 years to 25 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: 10,000
= Maximum Sum Assured: 100,000
m Triple Benefit Plan.
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GROUP PLAN

= Enables employers to get their employees
insured at very low cost.

m The risk coverage is given up at the time of
retirement.

= Makes possible reach of insurance to the large
scale of an eligible citizens

JEEVAN JYOTI

This is limited premium payment endowment
plan designed with an aim to facilitate policy
holders with the single premium payment or
limited premium payment option. In case of child
aged 1 to 10 taking this plan can make single
premium payment only however adults can make
regular payment. ADB/PTD/PWB and Cl facilities
are available. Policy term for this plan is 5 to 30
years though the premium paying term is flexible
whereby the payment can be made either single
or in installment of 5 to 25 years.

m Entry Age: 1- 65 years

= ADB/ PTD Entry age: 16 - 65 years

m Term: 5 years to 30 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 50,000/ in single
Payment Rs. 10,000/-

= Maximum Sum Assured: As Per income source
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NLIC TERM LIFE PLAN

This is a term plan and has been targeted for
those who want to cover the risk of their life for
certain time period at lesser premium. This plan
is specially designed for banks and institutions
willing to insure their employees in group or loan
clients so that the death of policy holder will not
financially hamper the life of their nominees. To
take this plan, there must be at least a group of
25 members. This plan cannot be taken solely
however it can be taken by bundling with any
endowment plan of NLIC. This product only
gives the life risk coverage during policy term
and does not provide any return.

m Entry Age: 18 — 60 years

m Term: 5 years to 30 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 10,000/-

m Maximum Sum Assured: As Per income source

JEEVAN SARATHI

This is a joint life plan for couple introduced

by NLIC with a unique feature of providing the
life risk coverage to both husband and wife

via single policy. In case of death of any one
spouse, bonus is payable to the spouse alive
and remaining premium is waived. In case of
death of survivor before maturity, sum assured
with bonus is payable to the nominee. In case of
both spouse being alive, S.A with bonus is paid
to the policy holder upon maturity of the policy.
ADB/PTD/PWB and CI benefit available. Loan,
surrender as well paid up facilities are available.

m Entry Age - 18 to 50 years

m Term: 15 to 30 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs 50,000/-

m Maximum Sum Assured: As Per Income



NLIC MICRO PRODUCT

NLIC MICRO ENDOWMENT
(GRAMIN SAWADHIK)

Life insurance is a security which everyone
deserves to have. However, due to financial
constraints many individual cannot buy
insurance for themselves and their families.
Micro life insurance plan, which is comparatively
newer insurance type is specially designed to
address social security needs.

This plan, unlike a typical commercial life
insurance policy, offer assistance to families with
lower income and lesser savings.

m Entry Age: 16 — 60 years

m Term: 5 years to 49 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 10,000/-
= Maximum Sum Assured: 3,00,000/-

NLIC MICRO TERM

This is micro term plan developed with an aim
to insure lower income people who are not able
to insure themselves and their family lives due
to their financial constraints. This is a term plan
which only provides life risk coverage during the
policy term and has no return after the maturity
of the policy.

m Entry Age: 16 — 64 years

m Term: 5 years to 49 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 10,000/-
= Maximum Sum Assured: 3,00,000/-

KETAKETI JEEVAN BEEMA

This plan has been designed to secure future of
children so that today’s investment can make
significant help for the better education, marriage
and successful life of the children.

m Entry Age - From birth till 11 yrs.

m Term: 8 to 18 years

= Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 50,000/-

= Maximum Sum Assured: Rs. 5,000,000/-

= PWB facility can be availed in case of
proposer’s untimely death.

= MIB can be taken, in case of death of proposer
1% of MIB sum assured will be paid on
monthly basis to the child till end of the policy
term.

FOREIGN EMPLOYMENT
TERM INSURANCE

This is term plan designed for providing the

life risk coverage to Nepalese people going
abroad for foreign employment. This has also
been encouraged by the Nepal Government

in order to financially secure the lives of the
people earning for their family. This plan requires
single premium payment and in case of death

of the policy holder sum assured is paid to the
nominee.

m Entry Age - 18 to 64 years

m Term: 2 to 6 years
m Sum Assured: Rs. 1,000,000/-
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CRITICAL ILLNESS

Most of the people now days have been suffering
from several diseases, at the same time expensive
or costly health care has put a pressing financial
burden. Considering such scenario, our company
has launched "Critical lliness as Rider"

m Entry Age - 18 to 65 years

m Term: 5 to 20 years

m Minimum Sum Assured: Rs. 50,000/-

= Maximum Sum Assured: Rs. 5,000,000/-

The rider benefit will not acquire any surrender
value. A waiting period of 90 days shall be
applicable under this rider from the date of
inception or date of reinstatement of the rider.

A survival period of 30 days shall be applicable
under this rider from the diagnosis date of critical
illness. This rider includes coverage of 18 critical
illness.

BUSINESS OF 2074/75 AT A GLANCE

Name Policies SumAssured
Endowment Assurance 48632 31,229,125,000
Jiwan Jyoti Plan 3168 679,793,000
Rural Endowment Assurance 585 61,774,000
Naulo Dhana Barsha 51 39,187,000
Naulo Jiwan Sambridhi 7824 8,663,131,000
Jeevan Unnati 514 521,536,000
Child Endowment Plan 22855 9,675,315,000
Child Education Plan 1773 653,841,000
Jiwan Laxmi Plan 94 6,899,000
Jiwan Sahara Plan 24781 13,425,435,000

Jiwan Sarathi 1607 1,196,719,000
Term Life Insurance Plan 6762 1,035,832,000
Micro Term Life Insurance 2 300,000
Smart Life (Jeevan Suraksha Term Life) Insurance 206 160,188,000
FE 75063 75062500000
(Group Business) 322 161,000,000
Total 194,239 142,572,575,000
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OUR AGENTS

We have highest
qualified and trained
sales forces working
through-out the country,
making it easier
accessibility of insurance
facilities to all our
customers. Till year end
2075, we have more than
110,612 professional and
loyal agents working die
hard for our company,
making it possible to
achieve our goal of being
best in the market.

1,20,000

1,00000

80000

60,000

40000
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AWARDS

NepalLife Insurance has been awarded the “Best
Managed Life Insurance Company by Newbiz
Business Awards in year 2013, 2014, 2016 and

2017.
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UNIQUE VALUE ADDITION

Everything we do is centered on adding value to
our policyholders, customers and stakeholders.
Our customers are benefited with best bonus
rate in the industry with variety of products and
after sale services. We are paying regular taxes
as per Income Tax Act of Nepal and all the
other fees as per regulatory requirements. We
are actively concerned about the society and
left no stone unturned to fulfill our corporate
social responsibilities. Similarly, we have been
giving considerable amount of dividend to our
shareholders every year.



OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Operating environment signifies the conditions, entities, events, and
factors surrounding of an organization that influence its activities and
choices, and determine its opportunities and risks.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

As stated by International Monetary Fund in its world
economic outlook; the global economic growth
for 2018 is projected to remain at its 2017 level in
October 2018 updates. Further, global growth is
projected at 3.7% for 2018 and 2019, which is
0.2% lower as projected in April 2018, due to some
negative effects of the trade measures implemented
or approved between April and mid-September, as
well as a weaker outlook for some key emerging
market and developing economies arising from
country-specific factors, tighter financial conditions,
geopolitical tensions, and higher oil import bills.

ADVANCE ECONOMIES

An advanced economy is a term used to describe
developed countries. Advance economies are
projected to expand by 2.4% in 2018 and 2.1% in
2019, which is marginally faster pace than in 2017
as stated by International Monetary Fund in its world
economic outlook, October 2018 updates. Expected
growth rate in some of the major advance economies
like, United States is 2.9%, Spain by 2.7%, Germany
by 1.9%, France by 1.6%, Japan by 1.7%, Canada by
2.1%, Australia by 3% and Korea by 2.8% in 2018.
Lesser economic growth rate is projected in Euro
areas by only 2% in 2018 due to lower country
specific growth rate triggered by softer external
demand in France, slowdown of export and industrial
production in Germany, underlying deterioration
in external and domestic demand and uncertainty
about new government’s policy in ltaly; in short slow
productivity and unfavorable demographics.

EMERGING AND DEVELOPING
ECONOMIES

Growth in emerging market and developing
economies is expected to remain steady at 4.7% in
2018 as per information published by International
Monetary Fund in its world economic outlook,
October 2018 updates. China’s growth rate is
expected to reduce to 6.6% in 2018 due to negative
effect of recent tariff actions whereas; India’s growth
rate is expected to increase to 7.3% in 2018 with its
strengthening investment, in the ASEAN-5 (Indonesia,
Malaysia, Philippines, Thailand and Vietnam) growth
rate is expected to be 5.3%.

GLOBAL LIFE INSURANCE

Life insurance occupies large business volume in
the world with coverage that promises you and your
loved ones peace of mind whether in short term
or for a lifetime. Global Life Insurance premium
have increased only marginally by 0.5% in 2017 as
compared to 2016 but is expected to rise to 4% by
2019. The slowdown in 2017 was primarily driven
by advance market which declined by 2.7% as
compare to 2016 whereas for emerging market life
insurance premium growth rate remained strong to
14% growth. While advance markets are expected to
grow at a moderate pace mostly due to low interest
rate, emerging markets are set to outperform driven
by continues expansion of Chinese insurance market.

In United States more than 50% of people have
taken life insurance, whereas it is more than 70% in
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Canada. Premium income in USA fell in 2017 with
fall in individual annuities raised by uncertainty
around new Dol fiduciary rules, in contrary premium
income increases in Canada with growth in annuities
in the same year. In European market, life insurance
business is growing rapidly as a long term saving
option among people as most of the European
countries have reduced their pension provisions.In
Asia, insurance promises much more than peace of
mind.Advance countries life Japan and South Korea
are highly forward in insurance market with coverage
of more than 80% citizens. Life Insurance business
of Taiwan and Hong Kong is strongly growing.
In Taiwan insurance sector attracts high share of
domestic saving while demand from China is main
force in growing insurance business in Hong Kong.
Life insurance market of China is rapidly growing
with highest growth rate of 21% in 2017. It is now
second largest market after United States contributing
with nearly 12% of global underwriting. India shares
2.76% of global life insurance market in 2017.

NEPALESE ECONOMY

Nepal’s economy is heavily dependent on remittances,
accounting to 30% of GDP. Agriculture is the mainstay
of the economy, providing a livelihood for almost
two-thirds of the population but accounting for only
one-third of GDP. Despite limited resources available
for infrastructure financing and public service
delivery, the Nepali economy has been growing at a
stable rate. To sustain investment and maintain high
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levels of growth, additional private sector resources
and engagement — including foreign direct investment
(FDI) — are needed.

In Nepal, GDP is expected to grow by 5.9% in 2018
and 5.5% in 2019, which was 7.4% in 2017 as per
data published by Asian Development Bank on April
2018. For 2018, the GDP growth rate is more than 1%
as expected rate of 4.9% with stable political situation,
improvement in judicial effectiveness, property rights
and supported by key infrastructure projects like
hydro projects and expected construction of new
large cement factory.Likewise, inflation is expected to
be 4.2% in 2018 which is 1.3% lesser than expected
5.5% for the year as published by ADB. The same was
4.5% in 2017 and expected to be 6% in 2019.

NEPALESE LIFE INSURANCE

The history of insurance industry in Nepal is not long.
It has its roots in the 20th century. The first insurance
company was established in 1947 (2004 BS), prior to
which most of the branches of Indian insurers were
doing business in Nepal which was not regulated.

At present, there are 19 life insurance companies in
Nepal. Nepalese market is mostly unexplored for life
insurance sectors, around 15% of total population has
brought life insurance which makes high potential for
life insurance companies to expand its business.



STRATEGIC DIRECTION

In 2074/75, we focused on building a sustainable and strong
organization and market leadership through highly prioritizing
customer’s need, easy accessibility of life insurance facilities

throughout the country,

huge diversified

investments,

abundant capital structure and value addition to all our

stakeholders.

DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE VALUE

ANALYSING
PRESENT CONTEXT

DEVELOPING
STRATEGIES

Strategic issues = Mission
Swot Analysis = Values
Industry and Market analysis = Visions

Customer insights = Core Competences
= Strategies
= Objective

m Forecast

FORMULATING
PLANS

PERFORMANCE
MEASUREMENT

1 @ a

m Setting priorities
m Developing = Reviewing
organisational m Corrective actions
goals = Measuring
= Key performance
indicators
= Resources
management

= Monitoring

During the year, we continued to build a strong organization,
enormous customer base and market leadership whilst
delivering increased value addition to all our stakeholders.
All of our strategies are well planned, perfectly performed
and timely measured and revised where needed.

Our strategic planning process is comprehensive and driven
by strategic planning committee comprising of all heads of
departments, leading by CEO of the company.

All of our strategic issues are well determined; in-depth
market analysis, our position in the industry and customer
requirement are properly scrutinize before preparing our
strategies. SWOT analysis is major tool used by us for
determining where we stand, for developing strategies and
formulating plans,for reaching to the position where we
want to be, aligning with our corporate vision, mission,

core competencies and strength. Overcoming obstacles
and mitigating threats were major challenges faced by us
basically created due to political situation, unstable market
condition and competitive environment.

Our department heads were highly active though-out the
year, grabbing all ethically possible opportunities utilizing
our core competences at its best level. All the departments
had their own action plans, objectives and KPIs that
aligned with overall organizational strategy. Short-term
and long-term goals are created for smooth and systematic
achievement of its objective that finally leads to the
organization position where it planned to be.

Timely review meeting were carried to ascertain progress,
target achievements and to take necessary measures.
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SHORT TERM AND

LONG TERM GOAL OF THE COMPANY

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

®m Increase profit.
m Increase investment fund.
m Life fund.

Short Term
Goals

m Retain market leadership in
insurance sector maintaining
healthy competition.

® Sustainable growth in Life
Fund.

m Providing highest and the
best bonus to the customers
in the market.

Long Term
Goals

HUMAN RESOURCE
DEVELOPMENT

m Increase in qualitative
leadership trainings

m Enhanced employee benefits

m Focused on employee
retention policies

Short Term
Goals

= To create a competent and
loyal workforce and healthy
working environment that
will contribute in achieving
organisational goal of being
the best in market in all
aspects.

Long Term
Goals
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Strategies

m Development of need based
products

m Wise and diversified
investment portfolio

m Market penetration

m Increase channels for
distribution and easy
accessibility of policies.

%

m FPI/ TPI growth

m Increase in Life Fund

m Positive change in Yield

m Upsurge in market coverage

Strategies

m Provide comprehensive
trainings

m Motivative and healthy
working environment.

m Creating challenges and
rewarding system.

m Attractive employee benefits
and improved retirement
payments.

%

m Budget and expenditure
made on employee trainings
and benefits.

m Employee turnover ratio

m Training hours per employee

m Performance after trainings




VALUED CUSTOMERS

m Developing products
matching the needs and
requirements of customer

m [ncrease in customer care
centers and promoting

Strategies

= Improve customer loyalty by
Short Term adhering customer needs

Goals m Increase satisfied customer base customer centric culture
m Strengthen distribution m Focusing on financial growth
channels and necessity of customers
m Effective handling of customer
complains

%

= Create healthy and life long

Long Term customer relationship by
Goals maintaing their trust and

providing them with the satisfaction)

best services, benefits and m Average length of customer
peaceful life experiences. relationship.

m Increase in customer base.
m No. of complains based of
customer volume.(customer

INVESTORS
m Prudent, diversified and wise
Strategies Investment management
system
m Effective risk management
policies

m Increase in returns (EPS/DPS)
S il = Growth in net worth
Goals m Increase in value per share

m Controlling cost where
possible through effective
budget plannings

%

= Contribute in increasing

Long Term wealth of our investors
Goals through consistant and

sustainable growth in returns = Increase in EPS/ DPS

by expanding our business m Increase in net worth of
to horizon. shareholders.

m Increase in distributable
profit

19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 45



AGENTS

Short Term
Goals

Long Term
Goals

® Increase in qualitative and
professional agents
= Reduce agent turnovers

= Development of
exceptionally professional
and loyal agent force of the
company.

SOCIETY

Short Term
Goals

= Contribute to the deprived
sectors

= Promote in health,
educational and culture
aspect of the society.

m Improve in the health,
educational and cultural
sectors through continuous
financial supports.

Strategies

m Continue effective and
motivational agent tranings

m Creating healthy reward
based competitions

%

= No. of active agents

m No. of complains regarding
agents based on customer
size.

Strategies

m Compliance of corporate
social responsibilities

m Make investment in health,
educational and cultural
sectors

%

m Budget and expenditure
in corporate social
responsibilities

= No. of positive changes
made in the society.




STRATEGIC ACHIEVEMENTS OF 2017/18

Particular Achievements

Financial Achievements:

Total Premium Income (TPI) 16.17 billions
Total Investment Income 5.89 billions
Life fund increment 25.43%

Net Profit after tax increment 42.14%
Human Resource Achievements:

Employee turnover ratio 6.20%
Customer Relation Achievements:

First Premium Income Rs. 5.93 billions
Percentage of policies renewed. 92.06%
Investor Relation Achievements

Shareholder’s Fund growth 5.97%

DPS 48.50%
Agent’s Relation Achievements:

Total no. of trained agents 1.11 lakhs

STRATEGIC PRIORITY FOR 2018/19

Strategies Value drivers

Growth in FPI ® Maintaining attractive bonus rate
m Continuing effort to provide need based products in the market

Growth in Investment | m Continuous updating with latest market information for grabbing
highest return investments.

m Diversification of all investments for minimizing risk.

Growth in Life Fund m Increase in customer base with easy accessibility of insurance
service all over the country.

m Decrease in lapse ratio with satisfied customers.

Growth in Net Profit m Prudent investment management.
m Effective control over cost.

Increase in Net-Worth | = Continuous effort in growing company’s business.
= Wise investment decisions.
m Prudent expense management.

Increase in Policy m Continuous effort in creating huge satisfied customer base.

holders m Designing need based products.

Corporate social m Continue to invest in health, education and cultural sector of the country.
responsibilities m Continuous support to upgrade women and children sector of the country.
Highly trained Agent | = Providing effective trainings and education to new agents.

forces m Refreshment trainings to existing agents.

Motivated and m Creating healthy working environment.

dedicated employees | m Effective training and motivational programs.
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Respected Shareholders,

I would like to welcome and extend my
greetings to all the shareholders and invitees
in this Nineteenth annual general meeting of
NepallLife Insurance Company Ltd. on behalf
of the Board of Directors. The company is
grateful for your continuous immense trust and
amicable support in the last 19 years.

Now, | would like to present Financial Audit
Report for the Fiscal Year 2074/75 pursuant
to Section 109 of the Company Act, 2006
including statement of financial position,
statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flow as of 32nd Ashad, 2075 for discussion
and approval.

OVERVIEW OF THE LAST
YEAR’S TRANSACTIONS

Highlights of business transaction status for the
FY 2074/75, and achievements made in the
review year in comparison with the last year's
performance have been presented as below:

MACROECONOMIC STATUS

Nepal's GDP Per Capita reached 1,003.641
USD in Jul 2018, compared with 866.476
USD in Jul 2017, which is in its all-time high
record as per Central Bureau of Statistics.The
expected GDP growth rate for Nepal is 5.9%
for 2018 which was 7.4% for 2017.As main
GDP contributor; agricultural sector’s growth
rate was limited to 2.8% in 2018 which was
4.3% in 2017, mainly due to unfavorable
monsoon and floods in Terai, fall in GDP
growth was expected. With improvement in
trade and service sector,non-agricultural sector
is estimated to expand by 7.1% in 2017/18
as per survey report published by Ministry of
Finance on June 2018.Similarly, the production
of manufacturing sector is expected to grow by
8% in 2017/18 which was 5.5% in 2016/17,
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Details (in crore) F/Y 2074/75

F/Y 2073/74

the gross value added of construction sector is
expected to grow by 10.6% in 2017/18 which
was 7.6% in 2016/17, whereas, hotel and
restaurant sector is expected to grow by 9.8%
in 2017/18 which was 7.3% in 2016/17.

REVIEW OF LIFE INSURANCE
BUSINESS FOR FY 2074/75

Inthe fiscal year 2074/75, a total amount worth
50.66 billion rupees is collected through life
insurance premiums and the overall business
grew by 31.15% and the company's total
premium income is 16.18 billion rupees
signaling a growth rate of 32.33% for the
company's business. In the review year, we
have been able to remain as the market leader
with a market share of about 32 percent in
total premium income.

MAJOR FINANCIAL AND
BUSINESS STATUS:

For the past few years, the company has
been celebrating each fiscal year as a special
strategic year. In the same order, fiscal year
074/75 was declared as "Rhino Year" and
strategies were implemented accordingly.

Growth Rate

Total Premium Income 1617 1222 32%
First Year Premium Income

(Excluding Term Policy) 559 349 60%
Life Insurance Fund 3954 4960 25%
Investment 5895 4822 22%
fda=o1 (. BASAN 2008/0Y 2003/u8 gfg ufa=ra
FHA AT ATFRTAT 9599 43R 3%
TIH Y AT o ATFRTAT

(ATHT FITET S8 ) 4®2 3% %0%
STET SrET B 3’4 ¥ ¥R%0 RS
AT 4o’y ¥5IR %
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES
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EXPANSION OF BRANCHES

During the review period, the Company has 135
offices in operation out of which 6 are the regional
offices. With an objective to provide the customers
with the greatest insurance services, provisions have
been made to provide services including premium
payment from all branches of the company. To turn
the slogan "Life Insurance for everyone because
life is precious" into reality, the emphasis has been
given to the empowerment of branch offices with an
objective to expand the services to every household.

HUMAN RESOURCE
DEVELOPMENT

The company was able to occupy an important
position in this sector because of the tireless hard
work, persistence and mutual collaboration of its
430 employees who are engaged with the company.
Since human resource plays a vital role in the
overall development of the company, the company
has been striving to provide suitable opportunities
to its employees for their personal knowledge,
skills and career development in order to create a
highly motivating environment for them. We have
been providing timely internal and external training
for the professional capacity enhancement of our
employees.
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INSURANCE AGENT

Insurance agents have been an integral part in
the marketing of life insurance products. In the
review period, the company has a total of 110,612
trained agents. The company has been striving to
increase the number of active agents while also
helping enhance their professional competency
and productivity. The company has been playing
a pivotal role in helping the agents establish
themselves in the society and make this profession
respectful. Important achievements made through
the good mutual relations among insured, insurance
agents and employees will be further expanded and
developed in the days to come.

CLAIM PAYMENT

In the fiscal year 074/75, the company has made
a total payment of Rs.467 million rupees against
974 death claims. Similarly, the company has made
a total payment worth 5.42 billion rupees against
all the claims including death claim payment,
maturity claim payment, survival and surrender.
The Company has been prioritizing death claim
payments and committed to provide door to door
service for the death claim settlement.
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TAXATION

In the fiscal year, 2073/74, the Company has
paid a total of 1,696.21 million rupees as an
advance tax payment to the Government of Nepal
including advance tax payment for its employees
and agents worth 366.41 million and advance tax
deduction worth 1,174.69 million rupees by other
organizations on behalf of the Company.

OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL
BUILDING

The Company's commercial building situated at
Kamalpokhari has been established as one of the
major destinations for entertainment and shopping
hubs for general public. Modernization and grandeur
of the structure have contributed significantly
towards the Company's goodwill and promotion. In
the F.Y. 2074/75, a total of Rs. 70.1 million has been
realized as income from the rent of the building and
other sources.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In order to upgrade the quality of service through
information technology, the company has been
emphasizing the development and expansion of
information technology. In the course of expanding
quality service, the process of having online
premium payment from home or office has been
introduced. Currently, all the branch offices of the
company run through a web-based application.
The clients can get all information about insurance
policies through the website and Mobile Apps and
provisions have been made to send them important
messages through SMS. Company is regularly
conducting its Information System Audit.
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IMPACT OF NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL
EVENTS IN COMPANY’S BUSINESS
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The business environment is significantly influenced
by national forces and trends that tend to define how
organizations interact with customers and respond to
its competition. After extended wait since decades,
Nepal is finally enjoying a stable government after
successfully completing its local, provincial and
federal level elections. This has also created a sense
of economic stability in the environment in which
our Company operates. All businesses are virtually
interlinked, creating a powerful force in the form of
a market to compete. In order to expand our market
and compete directly with our competitors we are
tied up with almost all commercial banks through
bancassurance. Further with the entry of ten new
life insurance companies, it has brought along both
uniformity and fierce competition with it. Advances
in technology have also led to leverage the power
of technology to expand our market base through
affordable advertising on media and penetrate to a
sizable number of potential customers.

OUR STATUS IN TERMS OF POLICY NUMBER
AND PREMIUM COLLECTION
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Details

As on Chaitra end 2075

Growth Rate

Total No. of Insurance Policies 108,755 42.93%
(excluding foreign policies)

Total Premium Income 15,367,480,853 93.44%
First Year Premium Income 5,435,406,630 55.86%
(including term and foreign policies)
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ACTUARIAL VALUATION

The actuarial report of the Company's valuation of
economic and liability status for the FY 2074/75 has
been approved by Beema Samiti and has distributed
into all insurance policies issued as to be part of
profit (with ability to earn bonus) under which for
the those fiscal years, following are the actuarial per
year per thousand.
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Insurance Plan Term Bonus
Endowment Life Insurance 5to 15 years Rs. 65/-
16 to 20 years Rs. 65/-

21 to 25 years Rs. 72/-

Above 25 years Rs. 82/-

Endowment and Whole Life Insurance 5to 15 years Rs. 65/-
16 to 20 years Rs. 65/-

21 to 25 years Rs. 72/-

Above 25 years Rs. 82/-

Advance Payment Endowment Life Insurance plan For all term Rs. 65/-
Jeewan Samriddhi Insurance Plans (currently not in practice) 15 years Rs. 62/-
20 years Rs. 64/-
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RECOGNIZED WITH “BEST
INSURANCE (LIFE)”

The company bagged the award for "Karobar
Excellency Award 2018" for Best Insurance (Life)

organized by Karobar National Daily.
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ANNUAL SEMINAR 2075

Company conducted the annual seminar 2075 in
presence of Chief Executive office, Department
Head, Branch & Sub-branch Head at Gokarna
Resort Kathmandu to discuss Business Achievements
and all other the aspects of company.Company’s
Directors Mr. Ram Avatar Agrawal, Mr. Kamlesh
Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Bimal Prasad Dhakal
attended the seminar and extended their well-wishes
for company’s greatest achievements.

AGENCY FACILITATION

Nepallife conducted its 6th Agency felicitation
program in Kathmandu and awarded the Top
50 agents and Top 50 agency managers for their
performance.The event was chaired by CEO and
attended by DCEO, Divisional and Regional
Managers.
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OPENING OF SUB-BRANCHES

With the aim to expand the insurance business and
to provide the better service to clients, company has

JUET FTATATEEH! TITIAT ThT S, | established 29 new branches and sub-branches as
follows:
1. Kritipur-16, Kathmandu 2074/05/14
2. Pokhariya, Birgunj 2074/06/01
3. Pepsicola-35, Kathmandu 2074/06/01
4. Daraune Pokharri, Bhakundebesi-08, Kavre 2074/07/01
5. Pharping-5, Dakshinkali 2074/07/01
6. Beni-8, Myagdi 2074/07/16
7. Kushma-6, Parbat 2074/07/16
8. Madi-3, Chitwan 2074/08/15
9. Dhunche-6, Rasuwa 2074/08/16
10. Chitwan -6, Parsa(Tadi) 2074/09/01
11. Chame-7, Manang 2074/09/01
12. Tikapur-1, Kailali for Achham 2074/09/01
13. Buddhanilkantha-03, Kathmandu 2074/10/01
14. Bheri-04, Jajarkot(Jajarkot sub branch) 2074/10/01
15. Thulibheri-3, Dolpa(Dolpa Sub branch) 2074/10/01
16. Khadachakra-1, Kalikot(Kalikot sub branch) 2074/10/01
17. Baanaganga municipality-04, Jitpur, Kapilvastu 4no 2074/10/02
18. Machhapokhari -16, Kathmandu 2074/11/15
19. Mirchaya-7, Siraha(new sub branch) 2074/12/01
20. Kamalbinayak -09, Bhaktapur(New sub branch) 2075/01/01
21. Suryabinayak-6, Bhaktapur(new sub branch) 2075/01/20
22. Nakhhu -4, Lalitpur 2075/01/21
23. Morang District, Sundar Haricha ward no 10, Birat Chowk new sub branch 2075/02/01
24. Chhireshwornath -5, Mahendranagar, Dhanusha (new) 2075/02/01
25. Imadol -1, Lalitpur 2075/02/01
26. Swayambhu -15, Kathmandu 2075/02/01
27. Kanchanpur-4, Saptari Kanchanpur (new) 2075/03/01
28. Kathmandu Metropolitian city 14, Balkhu, Kathmandu 2075/03/01
29. Kathmandu Metropolitian city-01, Gurjudhara 2075/03/15
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

NepalLife has considered its business and social
responsibility as two sides of same coin. The
company had made donation for helping women
and children sectors as well as cultural heritage
conservation programs.

As a part of CSR, the company had made donation
for celebrating Ganesh Chauthi in Kamaladi
Ganeshthan as well as conducted free health
check-up camps and distributed juice & water to all
pilgrims.
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE
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EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

Regular sports activities are conducted by the
company for physical and mental well-being of
its staff. During the year company participated
in Kathmandu Kings XI Corporate Indoor Cricket
Tournament and without much prior practice
excellent performance was demonstrated by the
players bagging second position. Further, company
also participated in Corporate Super Sixes Cricket
Tournament organized by SS Events Pvt. Ltd.
Furthermore, Futsal program was conducted for
celebrating company’s annual day, participated by
higher level authorities of the company, corporate
officers and employees of branches and sub
branches.
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FUTURE PLANS

The Company has envisaged the following action
plan for future progress

B To speed up the process of establishing branches
and sub-branches all across the country to
provide the insurance facility.

B Provide insurance facilities to deprived sector
population having less financial capabilities
through micro-insurance policies.

B [ncrease the effective annual yield through
diversified investment to provide highest bonus
to our policy holders as well as highest return to
our shareholders.

B Strive to render quality insurance services by
formulating appropriate insurance plans to
expand the life insurance services to people of
all levels and groups.

B Enhance working capacity and security by
speeding up the expansion and development of
the Company's information technology.

B For the qualitative enhancement of services
being rendered to insure the claim payment
process will be simplified. For an easier
management of insurance renewal payment,
provisions will be made for allowing online
payment from home or office through different
banks and financial institutions.

B Efforts will be made to establish contact offices
abroad based on business potential.

B Professional capacity enhancement programs
will be formulated for employees and the agents.

B Strive to increase average income and return for
the insured through investment diversification.
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COMPANY’S INDUSTRIAL AND
BUSINESS RELATIONS

The company has maintained friendly relationships
with various national as well as international
stakeholder ~ agencies.  These  relationships
established on the basis of transparency and
professionalism are expected to be beneficial.
Industrial harmony has been maintained in the

company and efforts are being made to enhance it.

CHANGES IN BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND REASON
BEHIND

After 18th AGM of the company, Mr. Ram Avatar
Agrawal was appointed as Board of Director of the
company representing all shareholders. Similarly,
independent director Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
resigned from the post, who was again re-nominated
as Independent Director of the company.

MAIN FACTOR AFFECTING
THE BUSINESS

The factors affecting the life insurance business are
as follows:

B Risks and challenges arising due to the unhealthy
competitive environment.

B Limited long-term investment opportunities in the
country and uncontrollable costs.

B |mpact of unstable interest rates on the financial
sector.

B Political instability and various other barriers can
hamper business expansion.

B Risk arising due to unhealthy competition and
lack of good governance in the financial sector.

B Increasing risks and challenges arising due to
business growth.

B Risks arising due to volatile capital market.

B The risk arising from loss of lives during natural
calamities like earthquake, flood, landslides, etc.

B Due to lack of competent manpower.
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REACTION OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS TO REMARKS (IF
ANY) MENTIONED IN AUDIT
REPORT

There weren’t any special remarks mentioned in the
audited report of FY 2074/75. The recommendations
made in the preliminary audit report have been
incorporated to bring about necessary improvements.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND
DISTRIBUTION

According to the 282thboard meeting held on B.S.
2075/11/17, a proposal to provide a dividend of 25%
bonus shares and 23.50% Cash dividend (including
taxes) on the paid-up capital .Financial details as per
the same is presented for approval at this AGM.

DETAILS OF FORFEITED SHARES,
THEIR QUANTITY IN NUMBERS,
FACE VALUE, AMOUNT
RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY
PRIOR TO FORFEITURE OF THE
SHARES, AMOUNT RECEIVED
AFTER SELLING THE FORFEITED
SHARES AND AMOUNT
RETURNED FOR THE FORFEITED
SHARES

The Company hasn’t forfeited any shares till date.

DISCLOSURE OF NATURE
OF BUSINESS OF
SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATES &
RELATED ENTITIES.

The Company doesn’t own any subsidiary
Company/sister concern.
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DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTION
OF SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATES &
RELATED ENTITIES

The Company doesn’t own any subsidiary
Company/sister concern.

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY
THE PRIMARY SHAREHOLDERS
IN THE PAST FISCAL YEAR

No such information was provided during the review
period.

DETAILS OF SHARE OWNERSHIP
BY BOARD MEMBERS AND
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY
IN THE LAST FISCAL YEAR AND
INFORMATION ON ANY SHARE
TRANSACTION BY THEM.

The details of share ownership by the board
members and the employees till FY 2074/75 have
been provided as below. No information has been
received regarding their involvement in any share
transaction of the Company.

BOARD MEMBERS

Kitta (as on

Particulars 16th July 2018)

Govind Lal Sanghai 2,359,049
Ram Awatar Agrawal 280,692
Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal -
Prakash Mundara 1,845
Vivek Agrawal 215,449
Bimal Prasad Dhakal 488
Parul Dhakal 142
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DETAILS OF INFORMATION
ON INVOLVEMENT OF ANY
BOARD MEMBER OR THEIR
CLOSE RELATIVES AND THEIR
PERSONAL INTEREST ON
ANY AGREEMENTS DONE IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY
DURING THE FISCAL YEAR

No such information has been

received for the review period.

DETAILS OF ANY SHARES OF
THE COMPANY PURCHASED
BY THE COMPANY ITSELF, THE
REASON FOR DOING SO, A
NUMBER OF SUCH SHARES
PURCHASED, THE FACE VALUE
OF THE PURCHASED SHARES
AND THE AMOUNT PAID BY THE
COMPANY FOR SUCH SHARES

No such activity in the review period

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
AND DETAILS THERE OF

The company’s internal control department has been
working to make its internal control system efficient
and effective. Various committees at the company
have been contributing towards risk minimization.
To review the adequacy of the strategies adopted
by the company on current risks and their control
and to discuss on other relevant issues, a director-
level risk management and solvency committee
has been formed. To strengthen the internal control
system, the independent chartered accountant
has been appointed as internal auditor and report
for each trimester is drafted and discussed upon.
The company has been prioritizing corporate
governance. "Directives on Corporate Governance
of the Insurer, 2075" has been duly adopted and thus
it is believed that it has helped to have the internal
control system more efficient.
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR

In the review year, the total management expenses were
Rs. 1,446 million.

DETAILS OF THE MEMBERS OF
THE AUDITING COMMITTEE,
THEIR REMUNERATION,
ALLOWANCES AND FACILITIES,
ACTIONS WERE TAKEN, AND ANY
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY
THE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Directives on Corporate Governance
of the Insurer, 2075 issued by Beema Samiti, a
audit committee has been constituted under the
coordination of director Mr. Prakash Mundara who is
the representative of the general public shareholders
and directors Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal and Mr.
Bimal Prasad Dhakal as members. The audit committee
reviews the operational and financial condition of the
company and both the internal and external auditors'
report to recommend and direct the management for
required improvements. The committee also reviews
the audit reports received from the internal and external
directors and presents them to the Board of Directors.
The external audit didn't reveal any remarks and the
general remarks have been adopted for necessary
improvements. In the FY 2074/75, the audit committee
held 9 meetings and an amount of NRs. 271,000 has
been provided as meeting allowance.

DETAILS OF AMOUNT
RECEIVABLES FROM DIRECTOR,
MANAGING DIRECTOR,

CEO, COMPANY'’S PRIMARY
SHAREHOLDERS OR ANY FIRM,
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER
ORGANIZATION ASSOCIATED
WITH SUCH INDIVIDUALS OR
THEIR CLOSE RELATIVES

No such issues are present
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DETAILS OF SALARY,
ALLOWANCES, AND FACILITIES
PROVIDED TO THE DIRECTORS,
MANAGING DIRECTOR, CEO
AND OTHER EMPLOYEES:

In the review year, an amount of NRs. 32,83,240 has
been paid as meeting allowance to the directors. In
the review year, an amount of NRs. 89,24,000 has
been paid to Chief Executive Officer on the accounts
of salary, allowance, festive expenses and provident
fund facilities. To other employees (up to Manager's
level) a total of 2,41,14,169 have been paid to 13
persons which includes salary, allowance, festive
expenses and provident fund facilities.

Details of CEO’ salary, allowance and other facilities
are as follows:

CEQ’s Salary

and Allowances Amount (Rs.)

1. Gross Annual Salary 8,450,000.00
and allowances

2. Performance based 1,300,001.00
allowances

3. Employee Bonus 2,837,310.92
(As per bonus Act)

Total 12,587,311.92

Except as mentioned above, other facilities as per
employee rules and regulations; providend fund
of Rs. 468,000.00, Forced leave and annual leave
encashment and others Rs. 773,000.00, life insurane
premium Rs. 478,464.00, welfare Rs. 16,44,258.28,
and vehicle emi Rs. 160,353.64 (per month) has been
provided.
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REMAINING DIVIDEND
AMOUNT TO BE CLAIMED BY
SHAREHOLDERS:-

NRs. 8,55,62,528/- is yet to be claimed by the
shareholders.

DETAILS OF PURCHASE OR
SALE OF PROPERTY AS PER
CLAUSE 141

None.

DETAILS OF TRANSACTIONS
BETWEEN ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES AS PER CLAUSE
175

None.

ANY OTHER DETAILS TO BE
DISCLOSED IN THE REPORT OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS PER
THIS CLAUSE AND EXISTING
LAW:

1. Pursuant to the control of money laundering, this
company has been implementing the provisions
and furnishing details set forth in the directives
enforced by Nepal Rastra Bank, financial
information Unit and Beema Samiti. To implement
the provisions of identification of customers, the
branch offices of the company have been made
aware. The branch chiefs are directed to be alert
towards the issues of money laundering. Similarly,
monitoring of acquired businesses has been
carried out on a timely basis. To control attempts
of money laundering employees are made aware
of risk management via various trainings.

2. It is to declare as per section 86 of companies
directives 2072, that this company has complied
with all provisions of companies act.
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OTHER IMPORTANT ISSUES: -

None.

FINALLY,

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to
all the insured, agents, shareholders, employees
and well-wishers who have supported directly
or indirectly to the overall development of the
company. We would like to express gratitude to
Beema Samiti and other associated agencies of
Nepal Government for proper direction, comments
and recommendations during the regular operation
of the company, and we expect the continued
support in the days to come. We would like to thank
all the attendees of this AGM for your invaluable
presence and active participation to make this
meeting a success.

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal  Govind Lal Sanghai
Director Chairman

Date: 2076/02/04
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Kathmandu Kings XI
Cricsal Tournament.

Inter-Staff Valley
Futsal Tournament
on the Occasion
of Company’s
19th & Union’s
9th Anniversary at
Kathmandu.
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Branch Managers’
Conference &
Agency Felicitation
Program at
Gokarna Forest
Resort.




Agency Felicitation
Program at Butwal.




Free Water, Juice
Distribution & Emergency
Health Check up Camp for
Devotees on the Occasion

of Ganesh Chaturthi at
Kamladi Ganesh Temple.




Relief Distribution
for the Strom
Victim of Bhalohi &
Bharwaliya, Bara.
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Kantipur Half
Marathon Program
at Kathmandu.




Rafting at BhoteKoshi.

Agent-Staff Picnic
Programme at
Godawari.
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Nepallife- 3rd
National Photo
Journalist Award
Program.

Nepallife- 4th
Woman Squat
Program at Labim
Mall.
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Emergency
Service Camp on
the Occasion of
Mahashivaratri
at Pashupati
Chhetra.




m ya nendra & Associates G.P.0. BOX : 9402, New Plaza Marg-46
Putalisadak, Kathmandu, Nepal

Chartered Accountants Tel : +977-1-4416064

Email : gaa@gaa.com.np
Website : www.gaa.com.np

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Shareholders of Nepal Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Nepal Life Insurance Company Ltd
(NLIC) which comprises of statement of financial position as on Ashadh 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018),
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year ended Ashadh 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) and notes to the financial statement,
~including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards(NFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conduct our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to frauds or error. In making those risk assessment, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expression an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting estimateés made by the
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
except for the effect of matters mentioned in following 1-6 para, the financial position of Nepal Life
Insurance Company Ltd as at Ashadh 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs).

1. Insurance premium receivables amounting to Rs.1,16,51,43,404 (Gross) are accounted for
on accrual basis based of management estimate considering 30 days of insurance
premium receivable outstanding as at the end of the FY.Receivable in excess of 30 days
could not be quantified.

1of2




2. Agent Commission and medical expenses incurred by the company for acquisition of
business amounting to Rs.1,84,16,61,524 has been accounted for in the year of expenses
and have not been deferred.

3. Staff bonus as per Bonus Act 2030, being 10% of Profit Before Bonus and Tax, has been
provided on regulatory profit reported separately to Beema Samiti, rather than profit from
NFRS based financials. Had management provided bonus as per NFRS based financials,
shareholders equity would have been reduced by 51.12 million net of tax,

4. Outstanding claim has been provided at 115% which is based on regulatory requirement
rather than in compliance with NFRSs,

5. A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% of the regulatory profit is appropriated rather than of
Net profit of Financial statements prepared as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards(NFRS),

6. Regulatory reserve has been created for amount in excess of profit reported under Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) over regulatory profit. Regulatory Reserve also
include profit arising due to first time adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS).

Report on other legal and regulatory requirement
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a)

b)
€)

d)

€)

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Proper books of account as required by prevailing law have been kept by the Company.

To the best of our information and explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of accounts of the company, we have not come across the cases where the Board of
Directors or any member thereof or any employee of the company has acted contrary to the
provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or damage to the Company
deliberately.

We did not come across any fraudulent cases causing fundamental effect relating to accounts
of the Company except mentioned in the management letter.

Company's life assurance fund and other special reserves are as per prescribed provisions

As per information obtained, company has not conducted any kind of other business except
approved life insurance business.

To the best of our information, Company is able to meet its long term liabilities from its assets.

Gyanendra Subedi, FCA

) 1) Proprietor
yy
\-..f - ;

O/

Date: 17" Falgun, 2075
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

\
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on Asad 32, 2075 [16 July 2018]

Amountin NRs.

particulars As at Restated Restated
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31,2074 Asad 31,2073
Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 6 65,042,899 67,474,156 68,926,981
Investment Properties 7 242,686,029 246,577,420 250,468,811
Deferred Tax Assets 8C 81,854,425 - -
Financial Assets 9
Held to Maturity Financial Assets 9.1 44,300,882,485 37,345,424,924 27,034,761,087
Loans & Receivables 9.2 8,940,141,395 6,541,818,270 4,480,912,544
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L 9.3 3,029,826,834 2,312,265,787 1,585,815,682
Reinsurance Receivable 10 76,022,033 50,572,089 27,023,983
Insurance Receivable 10 980,328,536 625,879,178 240,418,137
Other Receivables 11 947,719,199 708,793,236 576,549,968
Other Financial Assets 12 154,023,034 421,706,695 349,380,634
Deferred Interest (Employment Benefit) 12 33,599,718 20,685,979 15,457,952
Other Assets 13 1,166,181,545 879,660,389 828,099,243
Cash & Cash Equivalents 14 2,862,016,067 2,028,252,768 1,415,883,115
Total Assets 62,880,324,199 51,249,110,890 36,873,698,136
Liabilities & Equity
Gross Insurance Contract Liability 15 51,445,903,464 40,635,636,770 32,034,664,099
Other Current Liability 15D 62,659,634 39,774,598 24,807,530
Retirement Benefit Obligation 16 51,745,147 32,603,888 32,032,329
Deferred Income Tax Liability 8A, 8B - 21,549,212 85,015,251
Deposit Liabilities 17 63,531,496 48,437,790 56,988,663
Accruals and Other Payable 18 1,290,997,586 1,073,266,109 695,989,749
Reinsurance Premium Payable 19 54,744,673 71,597,651 67,960,719
Other Provision 20 137,592,595 104,026,114 96,883,751
Total Liabilities 53,107,174,594 42,026,892,132 33,094,342,090
Equity
Share Capital 21 4,396,928,648 3,096,428,625 2,167,500,000
Share Premium 22 2,850,143,722 4,150,643,745 4,035,695
Reserve & Surplus 23 1,170,612,529 1,071,975,001 842,171,934
Catastrophic Reserve 24 436,701,878 325,418,686 224,955,274
Regulatory Reserve 25 918,762,828 577,752,705 540,693,148
Total shareholder's equity 9,773,149,606 9,222,218,762 3,779,356,051
Total Equity 9,773,149,606 9,222,218,762 3,779,356,051
Total equity and liabilities 62,880,324,199 51,249,110,890 36,873,698,136
Vivek Jha Govind Lal Sanghai Directors Gyanendra and Associates

Chief Executive Officer Chairman Ram Avatar Agrawal Chartered Accountants
Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara
Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Parul Dhakal

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Santosh Prasai
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2075/11/17
Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the period year ended Asad 32, 2075 [ Covering period 16 July 2017 - 16 July 2018]

Chief Executive Officer

Santosh Prasai
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2075/11/17
Address: Kathmandu

Chairman

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Ram Avatar Agrawal
Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara
Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Parul Dhakal

Amount in NRs.
Particulare Notes 2074/75 Restated 2073/74
'In NPR 'In NPR
Gross Premium Earned 26 16,569,739,178 12,682,959,227
Less : Premium Ceded to reinsurers 26 (183,294,911) (163,877,713)
Net Insurance Premium Earned 16,386,444,267 12,519,081,514
Investment Income 27 4,338,681,571 2,475,585,764
Income from policy loan 28 772,361,821 512,614,792
Fee & Commission Income 29 157,769,623 126,623,736
Other Revenue 5,268,813,015 3,114,824,292
Total Revenue 21,655,257,282 15,633,905,806
Claims Payment 30 6,321,241,185 3,393,256,379
Less : Reinsurance claim 30 (81,733,222) (91,688,171)
Total Claim Payment 6,239,507,963 3,301,568,208
Gross change in insurance contract liability 15 9,994,503,217 8,183,533,021
Agent Commission 31 1,832,457,581 1,245,803,877
Medical Fee 32 9,203,943 5,681,965
Net Service Charges 33 163,574,036 124,943,268
Other Direct Expenses 34 3,614,010 4,906,006
Management Expenses 35 1,424,584,808 1,309,381,986
Total Expenditure 19,667,445,558 14,175,818,332
Profit before Impairment losses and Taxes 1,987,811,725 1,458,087,474
Impairment losses 36 47,752,667 78,372,389
Impairment losses reversed = -
Other Provision 8,091,771
Staff Bonus 125,033,201 99,558,491
Profit Before Tax 1,806,934,086 1,280,156,593
Income tax 451,733,521 320,039,148
Deferred Tax income/(Expenses) 98,641,477 (62,701,723)
Profit after tax 1,453,842,041 1,022,819,168
Basic earnings per ordinary share (NRs) 22 29
Diluted earnings per ordinary share ( NRs) 22 29
Vivek Jha Govind Lal Sanghai Directors Gyanendra and Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended Asad 32, 2075 [16 July 2018]

Amount in NRs

As at Restated As at
Particulars Note Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074
Profit for the year transferred for SOPL 1,453,842,041 1,022,819,168
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets
Items that are or/may be reclassified subsequently to profit
Re-measurement gains/(Loss) on defined benefit plan (19,048,642) (3,057,260)
Deferred Tax implication of actuarial gain / (loss) 4,762,161 764,315
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax (14,286,482) (2,292,945)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,439,555,560 1,020,526,223
Vivek Jha Govind Lal Sanghai Directors Gyanendra and Associates
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Ram Avatar Agrawal Chartered Accountants
Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Santosh Prasai Roshan Dawadi Prakash Mundara
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chief (Finance & Account) Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Parul Dhakal

Date: 2075/11/17
Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the period Srawan 01, 2074 to Asad 32, 2075 [July 16, 2017 to July 16, 2018]

Particulars FY 2074/75 Restated FY 2073/74
Cash flow from operating activities:

Premium Income 16,170,759,396 12,219,802,896
Late Fee Income 139,807,072 101,700,170
Re-insurance Income

Re-Insurance Commission Income 17,962,487 24,923,483
Other Direct Income - -
Claimed recovery from Re-insurer 56,283,278 68,140,065
Re-insurance Premium Paid (200,147,889) (160,240,781)

Re-insurance commission payment

Agent commission payment

(1,742,189,932

(1,025,874,322)

)
Medical examination fee payment (9,203,943) (5,681,965)
Death claim payment (467,442,484) (442,274,163)
Maturity claim payment (1,504,838,484) (1,255,125,330)
Partial-maturity claim payment (2,745,299,543) (830,076,047)
Surrender value claim payment (782,771,985) (441,435,304)
Other claim payment (5,125,212) (6,905,885)
Service fee payment (120,074,672) (100,675,823)
Other direct expenses (3,614,010) (4,906,006)
Management expenditure payment (1,395,084,847) (1,270,372,662)
Gratuity Expenses (19,048,642) (3,057,260)
Staff Bonus Expenses (99,558,491) (92,416,128)
Income Tax Paid (741,837,476) (372,975,593)
(Increase)/decrease in current assets 17,528,341 124,257,339
(Increase)/decrease in current liabilities 141,084,464 140,067,114
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities 6,707,187,429 6,666,873,798
Cash flow from Investing Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in fixed assets (13,876,864) (14,175,807)
(Increase) Decrease in investment in government guaranteed securities. 4,542,439 4,336,162
(Increase)Decrease in investment in fixed deposit of bank and financial institution. (6,960,000,000) (10,315,000,000)

(increase) Decrease in investment in other deposit of bank and financial institution.

Increase/Decrease in Equity Share Investments

(1,089,044,708)

(991,820,590)

(increase) Decrease in investment in preference share/debenture

(Increase)Decrease in other investment(Premium On Investment) (24,343,033) 5,432,756
(Increase)Decrease in loans against insurance Policy (2,526,035,979) (2,078,116,528)
(Increase) Decrease in other loans and advances 112,048,350 11,611,206
Interest Income From Investment 4,909,238,404 2,462,624,820
Dividend Received 29,839,094 23,771,237
Rental income 41,147,372 27,308,248
Interest On Policy Loan 512,433,218 310,452,324
Others Indirect Income 13,924,582 92,473,966
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B) (4,990,127,125) (10,461,102,206)
Cash flow from Financing Activities

Amount received from Shares (883,297,008) 4,456,250,950
(Increase) Decrease in outstanding debt.

Increase/Decrease in short term debt

Interest Paid on Loan and Debt - (17,058,904)
Dividend paid - (32,593,986)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (883,297,008) 4,406,598,060
Net Cash Flow From Overall Activities 833,763,296 612,369,653
Opening Balance of Cash & Bank Balance 2,028,252,768 1,415,883,115
Closing Cash Balance 2,862,016,067 2,028,252,768

Vivek Jha

Chief Executive Officer

Santosh Prasai

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2075/11/17
Address: Kathmandu

Govind Lal Sanghai
Chairman

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Directors

Ram Avatar Agrawal
Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara

Vivek Agrawal

Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Parul Dhakal
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Gyanendra and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For the period [FY 2072/73, 2073/74, 2074/75]

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment Property

NOTE 7

Amountin NRs

Total Investment

Particulars

Freehold land

Building

Property

Cost

As on Shrawan 01, 2073

82,814,700.00

213,698,412.00

296,513,112.00

Addition during the year

Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 2074

82,814,700.00

213,698,412.00

296,513,112.00

Addition during the Year

Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 2075

82,814,700.00

213,698,412.00

296,513,112.00

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 01,2073

46,044,301.00

46,044,301.00

Depreciation charge for the year

3,891,391.00

3,891,391.00

Impairment for the year

Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 2074

49,935,692.00

49,935,692.00

Impairment for the year

Depreciation charge for the year

3,891,391.00

3,891,391.00

Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 2075

53,827,083.00

53,827,083.00

Net book value of Investment Property

As on Asar end 2073

82,814,700

167,654,111

250,468,811

As on Asar end 2074

82,814,700

163,762,720

246,577,420

As on Asar end 2075

82,814,700

159,871,329

242,686,029

7.1 Depreciation to Investment Property namely NLIC City Centre Kamalpokhari is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as

defined by the management.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

NOTE 8A

CALCULATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For FY 2072/73 [FY 2015/16 ]

Amountin NRs

(Taxable)/Deductible Temp.

Assets/Liabilities Carrying Amount Tax Base
As on 16-July-2016
WDV of Property, Plant and Equipment 236,581,091 220,198,350 (16,382,741)
Investment in Shares 1,585,815,682 1,199,611,439 (386,204,243)
Provision for loss of inv. 3,407,604 (3,407,604)
Investment in G Bonds (at premium only) 270,003,087 299,436,721 29,433,634
Provision for leave encashment 26,558,623 - 26,558,623
Provision for Gratuity 5,473,706 - 5,473,706
Provision for doubtful debt 4,467,623 4,467,623
Current year tax losses (Tax credits) - - -
Total 2,132,307,416 1,719,246,510 (340,061,002)
Net deductible temporary differences (A) (340,061,002)
Deferred tax assets (A*25%) (85,015,250.56)

NOTE 8B

CALCULATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For FY 2073/74 [FY 2016/17 ]

Amountin NRs

Carrying (Taxable)/Deductible

Assets/Liabilities Tax Base

Amount Temp. Differences

As on 15-July-2017

WDV of Property, Plant and Equipment 231,236,876 204,549,854 (26,687,022)
Investment in Shares 2,312,265,787 2,185,999,273 (126,266,514)
Provision for loss of inv. 4,084,620 (4,084,620)
Investment in G Bonds (at premium only) 265,666,924 299,436,721 33,769,797
Provision for leave encashment 31,533,062 - 31,533,062
Provision for Gratuity 1,070,826 - 1,070,826
Provision for doubtfull debt 4,467,623 4,467,623
Current year tax losses (Tax credits) - - -
Total 2,850,325,719 2,689,985,848 (86,196,849)
Net deductible temporary differences (A) (86,196,849)
Deferred tax assets (A*25%) (21,549,212)
Origination /(Reversal) during the year 63,466,038
Deferred Tax implication of actuarial gain / (loss) (764,315)
Net Deferred Tax (income) expense recognised in profit or loss 62,701,723
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2074/75 [FY 2017/18]

CALCULATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

NOTE 8C

Amountin NRs
(Taxable)/Deductible Temp.

Assets/Liabilities Carrying Amount Tax Base
Differences

As on 15-July-2017

WDV of Property, Plant and Equipment 224,805,294 193,005,544 (31,799,750)
Investment in Shares 3,029,826,834 3,299,387,014 269,560,180
Provision for loss of inv. 7,306,799 (7,306,799)
Investment in G Bonds (at premium only) 261,124,485 299,436,720 32,659,529
Provision for leave encashment 43,602,368 - 43,602,368
Provision for Gratuity 8,142,779 - 8,142,779
Provision for doubtfull debt 12,559,394 12,559,394
Current year tax losses (Tax credits) - - -
Total 3,587,367,953 3,791,829,278 327,417,701
Net deductible temporary differences (A) 327,417,701
Deferred tax assets (A¥25%) 81,854,425
Origination /(Reversal) during the year 103,403,637
Deferred Tax implication of actuarial gain / (loss) (4,762,161)
Net Deferred Tax (income) expense recognised in profit or loss 98,641,477
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2074/75 [FY 2017/18]

ORDINARY SHARES: PUBLIC COMPANIES NOTE9.3AT

Amountin NRs

Total Share Average Cost Market Price Per Total Price as per 5
No of Share Amount 9 Price Share 2018-07-16 Market P Profit on Sales Loss on Sales
1 Agriculture Development Bank Limited 152,387 60,962,816.73 400.05 314.00 47,849,518.00 - (13,113,298.73)
2 Arun Kabeli Power Ltd. 46,374 21,524,681.98 464.15 260.00 12,057,240.00 - (9,467,441.98)
3 Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd.- Promoters 320,340 40,825,401.34 127.44 212.00 67,912,058.80 27,086,657.46 -
4 Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd. 15,323 6,641,344.51 433.42 264.00 4,045,272.00 - (2,596,072.51)
5 Bhargava Bikas Bank Ltd. 883 181,604.07 205.67 134.00 118,322.00 - (63,282.07)
6 Century Commercial Bank Ltd. 11,100 3,715,940.32 33477 169.00 1,875,900.00 - (1,840,040.32)
7 Chhimek Bikas Bank Ltd. 19,686 27,255,824.07 1,384.53 877.00 17,264,622.00 - (9,991,202.07)
8 Chilime Hydropower Co. Ltd. 34,123 45,407,238.15 1,330.69 790.00 26,957,170.00 - (18,450,068.15)
9 Citizen International Bank Ltd. 62,588 21,470,014.80 343.04 236.00 14,770,768.00 - (6,699,246.80)
10 Citizen Investment trust-Promoter share 280,961 666,429,667.87 2,371.97 2,371.97 666,429,667.87 - -
1 Citizen Investment trust 10,179 30,402,016.92 2,986.74 2,500.00 25,447,500.00 - (4,954,516.92)
12 Civil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 6,607 8,348,105.27 1,263.52 737.00 4,869,359.00 - (3,478,746.27)
13 Deprox Dev. Bank Ltd. 5,742 5,748,634.43 1,001.16 750.00 4,306,500.00 - (1,442,134.43)
14 Dev Bikas Bank Ltd. 50 9,991.61 199.83 129.00 6,450.00 - (3,541.61)
15 Everest Bank Ltd. 147,606 160,516,160.75 1,087.46 663.00 97,862,778.00 - (62,653,382.75)
16 First Microfinance Dev Bank 595 264,931.65 445.26 540.00 321,300.00 56,368.35 -
17 Garima Bikas Bank Ltd. 4,230 871,443.20 206.01 182.00 769,860.00 - (101,583.20)
18 Global IME Bank Ltd. 39,768 14,897,988.50 374.62 290.00 11,532,720.00 - (3,365,268.50)
19 Himalayan Bank Ltd. 68,872 56,258,677.30 816.86 551.00 37,948,472.00 - (18,310,205.30)
20 Infrastructure Bank Ltd.- Promoter share 8,950,000 895,000,000.00 100.00 100.00 895,000,000.00 - -
21 Janata Bank Nepal Ltd. 9,571 2,436,515.29 254.57 157.00 1,502,647.00 - (933,868.29)
22 Kumari Bank Ltd. 23,509 8,907,882.60 37891 199.00 4,678,291.00 - (4,229,591.60)
23 Laxmi Bank Ltd. 6,603 2,706,400.02 409.87 258.00 1,703,574.00 - (1,002,826.02)
24 Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd. 29,715 9,948,137.10 334.79 209.00 6,210,435.00 - (3,737,702.10)
25 Mahila Sahayatra Bikas Bank 50 78,071.24 1,561.42 710.00 35,500.00 - (42,571.24)
26 Megha Bank Nepal Ltd. 4 501.51 125.38 163.00 652.00 150.49 -
27 Mero Microfinance Dev. Bank 58 4,100.00 70.69 1,080.00 62,640.00 58,540.00 -
28 Nabil Bank Ltd.- Promoters 52,921 45,223,009.08 854.54 687.00 36,356,727.00 - (8,866,282.08)
29 Nabil Bank Ltd. 17,843 25,910,364.73 1,452.13 921.00 16,433,403.00 - (9,476,961.73)
30 Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. 76,121 34,712,641.71 456.02 214.00 16,289,894.00 - (18,422,747.71)
31 Nepal Bank Ltd. 569,333 215,009,978.77 377.65 281.00 159,982,573.00 - (55,027,405.77)
32 Nepal Credit & Commerce Bank Ltd. 116,501 44,127,073.39 378.77 250.00 29,125,250.00 - (15,001,823.39)
33 Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. 228,545 153,272,038.75 670.64 721.00 164,780,945.00 11,508,906.25 -
33 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.-Promoters 120,329 67,713,151.19 562.73 545.00 65,579,305.00 - (2,133,846.19)
34 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 70,270 54,344,646.10 77337 621.00 43,637,670.00 - (10,706,976.10)
35 Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd.- Promoters 501,666 50,166,600.00 100.00 100.00 50,166,600.00 - -
36 Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 64,728 59,240,692.20 915.23 499.00 32,299,272.00 - (26,941,420.20)
37 Nerude Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd. 1,407 1,706,415.21 1,212.80 637.00 896,259.00 - (810,156.21)
38 NIC Asia Bank Ltd.- Promoters 885,956 70,820,400.00 79.94 175.00 155,042,300.00 84,221,900.00 -
39 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 36,147 3,535,751.66 97.82 316.00 11,422,452.00 7,886,700.34 -
40 NMB Bank Ltd. 20,768 5,520,665.91 265.83 358.00 7,434,944.00 1,914,278.09 -
41 Oriental Hotel Ltd. 1,439 589,972.03 409.99 521.00 749,719.00 159,746.97 -
42 Prabhu Bank Promoter share 70,380 13,498,463.32 191.79 155.00 10,908,900.00 - (2,589,563.32)
43 Prabhu Bank Ltd. 1 100.00 100.00 187.00 187.00 87.00 -
44 Premier Insurance Co. Ltd. 28 35,051.03 1,251.82 1,125.00 31,500.00 - (3,551.03)
45 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 82,392 32,278,155.63 391.76 287.00 23,646,504.00 - (8,631,651.63)
46 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank 3 3,680.58 1,226.86 1,160.00 3,480.00 - (200.58)
47 Sanima Bank Ltd. 68,721 26,164,052.08 380.73 324.00 22,265,604.00 - (3,898,448.08)
48 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 3,037 5,110,853.44 1,682.86 985.00 2,991,445.00 - (2,119,408.44)
49 Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 43,703 20,519,548.19 469.52 300.00 13,110,900.00 - (7,408,648.19)
50 Soaltee Hotel Ltd. 14,079 4,056,616.35 288.13 243.00 3,421,197.00 - (635,419.35)
51 Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd. 122,380 146,732,700.93 1,198.99 755.00 92,396,900.00 - (54,335,800.93)
52 Sunrise Bank Ltd. 13,853 6,523,938.49 470.94 230.00 3,186,190.00 - (3,337,748.49)
53 Synergy Power Co. Ltd. 616 61,600.00 100.00 124.00 76,384.00 14,784.00 -
54 Vijaya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,305 1,273,379.74 975.77 765.00 998,325.00 - (275,054.74)
Grand Total 13,431,396 3,178,965,631.76 2,914,774,045.67 | 132,908,118.94 (397,099,705.03)
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2073/74 [FY 2016/17]

ORDINARY SHARES: PUBLIC COMPANIES NOTE 9.3A2

No of Share

Total Share
Amount

Average
Cost Price

Market Price Per
Share 2017-07-13

Total Price as per
Market P

Profit on Sales

Amount in NRs

1 Agriculture Development Bank Limited 126,985 60,962,816.73 480.08 435.00 55,238,475.00 - (5,724,341.73)
2 Arun Kabeli Power Ltd. 46,374 21,524,681.98 464.15 409.00 18,966,966.00 - (2,557,715.98)
3 Bank Of Kathmandu Lumbini Ltd.- Promoters 282,860 40,825,401.34 14433 405.00 114,558,259.50 73,732,858.16 -
4 Bank Of Kathmandu Lumbini Ltd. 13,531 6,641,344.51 490.82 462.00 6,251,322.00 - (390,022.51)
5 Bhargav Bikas Bank Ltd. 490 142,304.07 290.42 292.00 143,080.00 775.93 -
5 Century Commercial Bank Ltd. 10,571 3,715,840.32 351.51 290.00 3,065,590.00 - (650,250.32)
6 Chhimek Bikas Bank Ltd. 16,420 27,255,824.07 1,659.92 1,525.00 25,040,500.00 - (2,215,324.07)
7 Chilime Hydropower Co. Ltd. 29,834 45,407,238.15 1,522.00 798.00 23,807,532.00 - (21,599,706.15)
8 Citizen International Bank Ltd. 17,615 7,149,435.16 405.87 403.00 7,098,845.00 - (50,590.16)
9 Citizen Investment trust-Promoter share 189,000 666,429,667.87 3,526.08 3,526.08 666,429,667.87 - -
9 Citizen Investment trust 11,544 46,821,202.31 4,055.89 3,880.00 44,790,720.00 - (2,030,482.31)
10 Deprox Dev. Bank Ltd. 4,950 5,748,634.43 1,161.34 1,285.00 6,360,750.00 612,115.57 -
11 Dev Bikas Bank Ltd. 29 8,691.61 299.71 259.00 7,511.00 - (1,180.61)
12 Everest Bank Ltd. 79,735 116,215,715.04 1,457.52 1,353.00 107,881,455.00 - (8,334,260.04)
13 First Microfinance Dev Bank 345 245,031.65 710.24 1,020.00 351,900.00 106,868.35 -
14 Garima Bikas Bank Ltd. 3,678 868,684.10 236.18 296.00 1,088,688.00 220,003.90 -
15 Global IME Bank Ltd. 36,358 14,897,988.50 409.76 388.00 14,106,904.00 - (791,084.50)
16 Himalayan Bank Ltd. 55,169 56,258,677.30 1,019.75 886.00 48,879,734.00 - (7,378,943.30)
17 Kastamandap Dev Bank Ltd. 12,650 4,819,310.28 380.97 500.00 6,325,000.00 1,505,689.72 -
18 Kumari Bank Ltd. 9,220 3,734,872.32 405.08 327.00 3,014,940.00 - (719,932.32)
19 Laxmi Bank Ltd. 5110 2,706,400.02 529.63 390.00 1,992,900.00 - (713,500.02)
20 Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd. 27,262 9,948,137.10 364.91 360.00 9,814,320.00 - (133,817.10)
21 Mahila Sahayatra Bikas Bank 50 78,071.24 1,561.42 1,160.00 58,000.00 - (20,071.24)
22 Megha Bank Nepal Ltd. 1 201.51 201.51 458.00 458.00 256.49 -
23 Mero Microfinance Dev. Bank 45 4,100.00 91.11 2,204.00 99,180.00 95,080.00 -
24 Nabil Bank Ltd.- Promoters 23,257 23,707,823.93 1,019.38 1,130.00 26,280,410.00 2,572,586.07 -
25 Nabil Bank Ltd. 14,080 25,910,364.73 1,840.22 1,523.00 21,443,840.00 - (4,466,524.73)
26 Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. 68,124 34,712,641.71 509.55 402.00 27,385,848.00 - (7,326,793.71)
27 Nepal Bank Ltd. 557,368 211,080,700.24 378.71 364.00 202,881,952.00 - (8,198,748.24)
28 Nepal Credit & Commerce Bank Ltd. 116,501 44,127,073.39 378.77 383.00 44,619,883.00 492,809.61 -
29 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.-Promoters 104,634 67,713,151.19 647.14 673.00 70,418,682.00 2,705,530.81 -
30 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 49,884 45,385,161.47 909.81 770.00 38,410,680.00 - (6,974,481.47)
31 Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd.- Promoters 501,666 50,166,600.00 100.00 100.00 50,166,600.00 - -
32 Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 56,209 59,240,692.20 1,053.94 925.00 51,993,325.00 - (7,247,367.20)
33 Nepal Telecom Ltd. 176,595 112,438,245.33 636.70 675.00 119,201,625.00 6,763,379.67 -
34 Nerude Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd. 1,246 1,706,415.21 1,369.51 1,285.00 1,601,110.00 - (105,305.21)
35 NIC Asia Bank Ltd.- Promoters 738,296 70,820,400.00 95.92 250.00 184,574,000.00 113,753,600.00 -
36 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 30,103 3,535,751.66 117.46 445,00 13,395,835.00 9,860,083.34 -
37 NMB Bank Ltd. 20,768 5,520,665.91 265.83 545.00 11,318,560.00 5,797,894.09 -
38 Oriental Hotel Ltd. 3,320 1,605,497.65 483.58 654.00 2,171,280.00 565,782.35 -
39 Prabhu Bank Promoter share 50,271 11,487,563.32 228.51 190.00 9,551,490.00 - (1,936,073.32)
40 Premier Insurance Co. Ltd. 28 35,051.03 1,251.82 1,690.00 47,320.00 12,268.97 -
41 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 65,098 32,278,155.63 495.84 421.00 27,406,258.00 - (4,871,897.63)
42 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank 2 3,680.58 1,840.29 1,502.00 3,004.00 - (676.58)
43 Sanima Bank Ltd. 47,640 21,568,517.82 452.74 431.00 20,532,840.00 - (1,035,677.82)
44 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 2,354 5,110,853.44 2,171.14 1,941.00 4,569,114.00 - (541,739.44)
45 Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 35,187 20,160,548.19 572.95 485.00 17,065,695.00 - (3,094,853.19)
46 Soaltee Hotel Ltd. 7,922 2,401,888.36 303.19 361.00 2,859,842.00 457,953.64 -
47 Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd. 36,282 88,934,290.75 2,451.20 2,295.00 83,267,190.00 - (5,667,100.75)
48 Sunrise Bank Ltd. 12,326 6,523,938.49 529.28 396.00 4,881,096.00 - (1,642,842.49)
49 Synergy Power Co. Ltd. 616 61,600.00 100.00 243.00 149,688.00 88,088.00 -
50 Vijaya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,220 1,273,379.74 1,043.75 1,373.00 1,675,060.00 401,680.26 -
Grand Total 3,700,823 2,089,920,923.58 2,203,244,924.37 219,745,304.93 (106,421,304.14)
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ORDINARY

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2072/73 [FY 2015/16]

No of Share

NOTE 9.3A3

SHARES: PUBLIC COMPANIES

Total Share Amount

Average Cost Price

Market Price Per
Share 2016-07-14

Total Price as per
Market Price

Profit on Sales

Amountin NRs

Loss on Sales

1 Agricultural Development Bank Ltd. 57,647 35,215,617.44 610.88 768.00 44,272,896.00 9,057,278.56 -
2 Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd.- Promoters 229,969 40,825,401.34 177.53 200.00 45,993,780.00 5,168,378.66 -
3 Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd. 6,327 3,266,327.33 516.25 585.00 3,701,295.00 434,967.67 -
4 Chhimek Bikas Bank Ltd. 305 389,182.89 1,276.01 2,290.00 698,450.00 309,267.11 -
5 Chilime Hydropower Co. Ltd. 32,961 54,954,723.08 1,667.27 1,440.00 47,463,840.00 - (7,490,883.08)
6 Citizen International Bank Ltd. 17,316 9,602,237.31 554.53 680.00 11,774,880.00 2,172,642.69 -
7 Citizen Investment trust 3,481 11,554,490.97 3,319.30 5,145.00 17,909,745.00 6,355,254.03 -
8 Civil Bank Ltd. 9,684 2,501,089.42 258.27 255.00 2,469,420.00 - (31,669.42)
9 Deprox Dev. Bank Ltd. 5215 13,716,101.60 2,630.12 3,320.00 17,313,800.00 3,597,698.40 -
10 Dev Bikas Bank Ltd. 18 7,691.61 427.31 321.00 5,778.00 - (1,913.61)
10 Everest Bank Ltd. 6,540 19,808,356.62 3,028.80 3,385.00 22,137,900.00 2,329,543.38 -
11 First Microfinance Dev Bank 692 808,019.49 1,167.66 2,000.00 1,384,000.00 575,980.51 -
1 Global IME Bank Ltd. 40,125 18,900,096.81 471.03 515.00 20,664,375.00 1,764,278.19 -
12 Grand Bank Nepal Ltd. 109,205 34,626,186.61 317.08 184.00 20,093,720.00 - (14,532,466.61)
13 HIDCL Hydropower 754 75,400.00 100.00 433.00 326,482.00 251,082.00 -
14 Himalayan Bank Ltd. 25,031 32,460,011.08 1,296.79 1,500.00 37,546,500.00 5,086,488.92 -
15 ICFC Finance Co. Ltd. 1,302 292,325.19 224.52 365.00 475,230.00 182,904.81 -
16 Kailash Bikas Bank Ltd. 14,031 4,484,549.29 319.62 361.00 5,065,191.00 580,641.71 -
17 Kumari Bank Ltd. 4,262 1,625,757.25 381.45 385.00 1,640,870.00 15,112.75 -
18 Laxmi Bank Ltd. 6,563 4,446,221.75 677.47 832.00 5,460,416.00 1,014,194.25 -
19 Lumbini Bank Ltd. 11,500 3,600,571.25 313.09 401.00 4,611,500.00 1,010,928.75 -
20 Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd. 10,500 4,694,440.31 447.09 680.00 7,140,000.00 2,445,559.69 -
21 Mahila Sahayatra Bikas Bank 47 78,071.24 1,661.09 1,785.00 83,895.00 5,823.76 -
21 Megha Bank Nepal Ltd. 920 354,155.25 384.95 565.00 519,800.00 165,644.75 -
22 Mero Microfinance Dev. Bank 4 4,100.00 100.00 100.00 4,100.00 - -
23 Nabil Bank Ltd.- Promoters 29,653 39,055,575.38 1,317.09 1,785.00 52,930,605.00 13,875,029.62 -
24 Nabil Bank Ltd. 7,091 16,130,187.04 2,274.74 2,344.00 16,621,304.00 491,116.96 -
25 Nyadi Hydropower 579 57,900.00 100.00 100.00 57,900.00 - -
26 Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. 1,575 1,186,278.91 753.19 860.00 1,354,500.00 168,221.09 -
27 Nepal Bank Ltd. 266,063 108,502,555.11 407.81 470.00 125,049,610.00 16,547,054.89 -
28 Nepal Credit & Commerce Bank Ltd. 247,952 89,846,894.61 362.36 363.00 90,006,576.00 159,681.39 -
29 Nepal Grameen Bikas Bank 90 74,943.98 832.71 1,080.00 97,200.00 22,256.02 -
30 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.-Promoters 89,148 70,588,577.38 791.81 897.00 79,965,756.00 9,377,178.62 -
31 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 31,362 33,956,875.20 1,082.74 1,040.00 32,616,480.00 - (1,340,395.20)
32 Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd. 200 237,503.00 1,187.51 1,235.00 247,000.00 9,497.00 -
33 Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd.- Promoters 501,666 50,166,600.00 100.00 100.00 50,166,600.00 - -
34 Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 10,233 13,753,560.29 1,344.04 1,875.00 19,186,875.00 5,433,314.71 -
35 Nepal Telecom Ltd. 198,645 125,834,056.20 633.46 689.00 136,866,405.00 11,032,348.80 -
36 Nerude Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd. 2,551 5,808,360.91 2,276.90 2,700.00 6,887,700.00 1,079,339.09 -
37 NIC Asia Bank Ltd.- Promoters 509,521 61,190,400.00 120.09 577.00 293,993,617.00 232,803,217.00 -
38 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 20,775 3,143,051.66 151.29 798.00 16,578,450.00 13,435,398.34 -
39 NMB Bank Ltd. 14,508 5,520,665.91 380.53 788.00 11,432,304.00 5,911,638.09 -
40 Oriental Hotel Ltd. 22,700 13,097,378.99 576.98 583.00 13,234,100.00 136,721.01 -
41 Prabhu Bank Promoter share 50,271 11,487,563.32 22851 207.50 10,431,232.50 - (1,056,330.82)
41 Prabhu Bank Ltd. 51,235 19,120,224.96 373.19 415.00 21,262,525.00 2,142,300.04 -
42 Premier Insurance Co. Ltd. 26 35,051.03 1,348.12 2,205.00 57,330.00 22,278.97 -
43 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 95,278 65,142,216.74 683.71 746.00 71,077,388.00 5,935,171.26 -
44 Rastra Beema Company Promoter share 470 6,318,206.94 13,442.99 15,606.00 7,334,820.00 1,016,613.06 -
45 Ridi Hydropower Co. Ltd. 139 13,000.00 93.53 373.00 51,847.00 38,847.00 -
46 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank 2 3,680.58 1,840.29 2,499.00 4,998.00 1,317.42 -
47 Sanima Bank Ltd. 19,836 11,990,509.16 604.48 750.00 14,877,000.00 2,886,490.84 -
48 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 164 304,267.74 1,855.29 3,249.00 532,836.00 228,568.26 -
49 Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 23,446 13,278,455.66 566.34 869.00 20,374,574.00 7,096,118.34 -
50 Soaltee Hotel Ltd. 25,950 8,093,134.03 311.87 375.00 9,731,250.00 1,638,115.97 -
51 Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd. 7,081 22,856,748.07 3,227.90 3,600.00 25,491,600.00 2,634,851.93 -
52 Sunrise Bank Ltd. 2,624 1,726,348.05 657.91 748.00 1,962,752.00 236,403.95 -
53 Vijaya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,121 1,283,817.27 1,145.24 1,750.00 1,961,750.00 677,932.73 -
54 Western Development Bank Ltd. 319 4,619.95 14.48 471.00 150,249.00 145,629.05 -
Grand Total 2,826,710 1,098,100,333.23 1,451,352,996.50 377,706,322.00 (24,453,658.74)
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

MUTUAL FUND

For FY 2074/75 [FY 2017/18]

NOTE 9.3B1

Amount in NRs

Name of Mutual Fund Quantity Total Cost Avg. Cost Price Market Price at FY Closing Date Total Price as per Market Price

1 Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme 857,584 8,983,135.67 1047 10.55 9,047,511.20
2 NMB Sulav Investment Fund -1 362,094 4,246,549.06 11.73 11.55 4,182,185.70
3 NIBL Samriddhi Fund 1,163,937 11,708,848.30 10.06 10.15 11,813,960.55
4 Laxmi Value Fund -1 916,443 9,164,430.00 10.00 10.25 9,393,540.75
5 Global IME Samunnat Yojana -1 1,898,635 18,986,350.00 10.00 8.77 16,651,028.95
6 Nabil Equity Fund 563,251.00 5,632,510.00 10.00 9.86 5,553,654.86
7 NMB Hybrid Fund L-1 630,961.00 6,309,610.00 10.00 9.69 6,114,012.09
8 NIBL Pragati Fund 171,247 1,712,470 10.00 9 1,541,223.00
9 Siddhartha Equity Fund 967,748 9,677,480 10.00 9.56 9,251,670.88
10 Sanima Equity Fund 2,400,000 24,000,000 10.00 9.56 22,944,000.00
11 Citizen Mutual Fund-1 2,000,000 20,000,000 10.00 9.28 18,560,000.00
Total 11,931,900 120,421,383.03 115,052,787.98

MUTUAL FUND NOTE 9.3B2

For FY 2073/74 [FY 2016/17]

Amount in NRs

Market Price at

Total Price as per

Name of the Mutual Fund Quantity Total Cost Avg Cost Price FY Closing Date Market Price

1 SCHEME-1 708,550 11292415.54 15.94 23.15 16,402,932.50
2 NABIL BALANCE FUND-1 857,584 8983135.672 10.47 19.7 16,894,404.80
3 Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme 1,114,203 18,042,031.87 16.19 11.86 13,214,447.58
4 NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 362,094 4,246,549.06 11.73 125 4,526,175.00
5 NIBL SAMRIDDHI FUND-1 1,163,937 11,708,848.30 10.06 11.85 13,792,653.45
6 Laxmi Value Fund-1 916,443 9,164,430.00 10.00 12.25 11,226,426.75
7 Global IME Samunnat Yojana-1 1,898,635 18,986,350.00 10.00 10.19 19,347,090.65
8 Nabil Equity Fund 563,251 5,632,510.00 10.00 10 5,632,510.00
9 NMB Hybrid Fund-L1 630,961 6,309,610.00 10.00 9.94 6,271,752.34
10 NIBL Pragati Fund 171,247 1,712,470.00 10.00 10 1,712,470.00

Total 8,386,905.00 96,078,350.43 109,020,863.07
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Name of Mutual Fund

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

MUTUAL FUND

For FY 2072/73 [FY 2015/16]

Quantity

Total Cost

Market Price
at FY Closing

Avg cost Price

NOTE 9.3B3

Amount in NRs

Total Price as
per Market

Date Price

1 Siddhartha Investment 779050 12,454,376 15.99 26.00 20,255,300
Growth Scheme-1
2 Nabil Balance Fund-1 1319448 20,193,082 15.30 21.95 28,961,884
3 Siddhartha Equity 1532358 16,524,695 10.78 13.00 19,920,654
Oriented Scheme
4 NMB Sulav Investment 748594 8,779,326 11.73 14.10 10,555,175
Fund -1
5 NIBL Samriddhi Fund 1163937 11,708,848 10.06 13.20 15,363,968
6 Laxmi Value Fund -1 1286443 12,864,430 10.00 12.98 16,698,030
7 Global IME Samunnat 1898635 18,986,350 10.00 11.96 22,707,675
Yojana -1
Total 8728465 101,511,106 134,462,686
REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES NOTE 10A
Amount in NRs
Description As at Asad 32, 2075 As at Asad 31, 2074 As at Asad 31, 2073
p (NRs) (NRs) (NRs)
Claim Receivable From Reinsurer (Ordinary Policy) 39,649,906 20,724,661 4,699,368
Claim Receivable From Reinsurer (Expatriate Policy) 36,372,127 29,847,428 22,324,615
Total 76,022,033 50,572,089 27,023,983

10 A.1 Claim receivable from Reinsurance are accounted for actual basis. Reinsurance receivable balance as at SOFP date are due within a
period 12 months are hence current in nature. The company does not have any collateral as security against potential default by reinsurance

counterparty.
INSURANCE RECEIVABLES NOTE 10B
Amount in NRs
Description As at Asad 32, 2075 As at Asad 31, 2074 As at Asad 31, 2073
P (NRs) (NRs) (NRs)
Insurance Premium Receivables From Policyholders 1,165,143,404 766,163,622 303,007,291
Less: Impairment (184,815,047) (140,284,559) (62,589,186)
Interest Receivables On Premium Receivables 179 115 32
Total 980,328,536 625,879,178 240,418,137

10.1 Insurance Premium receivable include insurance premium accounted for on accrual basis considering 30 days of outstanding insurance
premium receivable as at the year end,as per management estimate adjusted with impairment considering the average 5 years persistency ratio
and lapse ratio of all the policies of the company.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

NOTE 11

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amount in NRs

e As at Asad 32, As at Asad 31, As at Asad 31,
2075 (NRs) 2074 (NRs) 2073 (NRs)
Share Application Money 850,000 850,000 850,000
Receivable From Brokers - 48,127,849 122,026,606
Income Receivable From Nlic City Center 27,537,229 40,691,258 50,225,656
Interest Receivable On Policy Loan 909,866,960 603,077,034 375,583,380
Sundry Debtors 504,924 4,404,740 14,176,422
Deficit Premium Receivable 19,933 20,381 22,414
Doubtful Debt -Debtors 4,467,623 4,467,623 4,467,623
Prepaid Insurance 610,413 443,634 472,333
Prepaid Expenses 4,500 97,708 30,344
Deposit 378,528 398,028 397,278
Staff Advance 3,479,089 6,214,981 8,297,912
Total 947,719,199 708,793,236 576,549,968
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS NOTE 12
Amount in NRs
Description As at Asad 32, As at Asad 31, As at Asad 31,
2075 (NRs) 2074 (NRs) 2073 (NRs)
Gratuity Deposit At CIT - - -
Temporary Advances - Others (Building) 999,250 499,250 4,136,500
Advance To Agent 360,439 411,607 92,525,244
Temprory Advance Others 295,281 281,250 281,250
Temp.Advance To Building Mgmt Company 243,033 243,033 7,343,033
Interest Receivables On Investments(Dep With Bank)
152,125,031 420,271,555 245,094,607
Total 154,023,034 421,706,695 349,380,634
DEFERRED INTEREST NOTE 12A
Description As at Asad 32, As at Asad 31, As at Asad 31,
2075 (NRs) 2074 (NRs) 2073 (NRs)
Deferred Interest (Staff Home Loan) 17,690,034 7,977,290 5,631,537
Deferred Interest (Staff Loan) 15,909,684 12,708,688 9,826,415
Total 33,599,718 20,685,979 15,457,952

impairment.

12.1 Other Financial Assets that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortised cost and those
other assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These instruments are regularly monitored for
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

OTHER ASSETS NOTE 13
Amountin NRs
Description As at Asad 32, As at Asad 31, 2074 As at Asad 31,
2075 (NRs) (NRs) 2073 (NRs)
Stock/Inventory (Other Stock Items / Misc. Stock) 39,819 39,819 39,819
Stock Inventory (Stationary & Others) 2,030,504 2,384,745 2,361,084
Stamps In Hand 63,391 39,847 118,329
Other Assets (Advance Tax Deposit) 1,092,830,195 814,885,559 768,986,978
Advance Tax "Nepal Life Building" 51,642,030 - 39,093,032
Advance Tax-Suing In The Court 18,382,508 17,500,000 17,500,000
Advance Tax "Nlic City Center" - 44,810,419
Advance tax-Share 1,193,098
Total 1,166,181,545 879,660,389 828,099,243
Note 13.1 Other assets are reported at cost accounted for on accrual/disbursement basis.
Amountin NRs
Description Asat 16 July 2018 Asat15July2017  Asat16July2016
(NPR) (NPR) (NPR)
Stock/Inventory (Other Stock Items / Misc. Stock) 39,819.00 39,819.00
Stock Inventory (Stationary & Others) 2,384,745.00 2,361,084.49
Stamps In Hand 39,846.80 118,328.80
Other Assets (Advance Tax Deposit) 975,643,643.13 768,986,978.44
Advance Tax "Nepal Life Building" - 39,093,032.24
Advance Tax-Suing In The Court 17,500,000.00 17,500,000.00
Advance Tax "Nlic City Center" 44,810,419.19
Total 1,040,418,473.12 828,099,242.97
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE 14

Amountin NRs

‘ Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31,2074 Asad 31,2073
Cash Balance
Cash Balance 61,643,153 69,853,475 48,100,073
Cheque Balance 362,852,662 186,984,562 32,187,807
Total Cash Balance 424,495,815 256,838,037 80,287,880

Bank Balance
Deposit in Commercial Banks 236,215,138 284,306,682 108,155,976
Deposit in Development Banks -
Deposit in Finance Ltd -

Short Term Deposit with Banks & Financial Institution

Commercial Bank 2,176,817,676 1,459,857,590 1,164,963,088
Development Bank 23,041,408 24,023,725 38,151,309
Finance Company 1,446,030 3,226,734 24,324,862
Total Bank Balance 2,437,520,252 1,771,414,731 1,335,595,235
Total 2,862,016,067 2,028,252,768 1,415,883,115

Note 14.1 Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months. There are no bank overdrafts held by the
company.

GROSS INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITY  NOTET15

Amount in NRs

‘ Particulars Note (O gslet (OEL
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31, 2073
Inurance Contract Liability 15A 49,596,796,284 39,541,510,027 31,405,207,890
Unexpired Risk Reserve 15B 293,931,552 354,714,592 307,483,708
Outstanding Claim 15C 1,555,175,628 739,412,151 321,972,501
Fair Value Reserve - - -
Total 51,445,903,464 40,635,636,770 32,034,664,099
Note 15 General insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. These liabilities include
Insurance Contract Liabiliy, Unexpired Risk Reserve and Outstanding Claim.

INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITY NOTE 15A

Amount in NRs

Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31, 2073
Insurance Contract Liability 42,289,037,952 33,541,958,485 26,356,549,036
Cost of Bonus 6,057,363,259 4,632,132,284 3,674,739,850
Surplus 1,250,395,073 1,367,419,258 1,373,919,004
Total 49,596,796,284 39,541,510,027 31,405,207,890

Note 15.1 Insurance Contract Liabilities are recognised by actuary following guidelines issued by the regulator, Beema Samiti. The
liability is determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected future benefits, which are directly related to the contract,
less the discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the future cash outflows based on the
valuation assumptions used. The liability is based on current regulatory assumptions.

15.2 The cost of bonus and surplus are also determined as per acturial valuation.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

UNEXPIRED RISK RESERVE

NOTE 15B

Amountin NRs

Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31, 2073
Unexpired risk provision of term insurance policy 293,931,552 354,714,592 307,483,708
Total 293,931,552 354,714,592 307,483,708

Note 15B.1 Provision for unexpired risk of Term Insurance Policies are determined by acturial valuation as well as per life
insurane business directives of Beema Samiti, higher of which is booked as per unexpired risk reseve for the year.

OUTSTANDING CLAIM NOTE 15C
Amountin NRs
‘ Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31,2073
Claim Death Payable 47,232,683 48,566,243 35,691,222
Maturity Claim 543,808,993 315,172,188 66,925,967
Survival Benefit 964,133,953 375,673,720 219,355,313
Total 1,555,175,628 739,412,151 321,972,501

Note 15C.1 Provision for claims Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation report prepared while evaluating
insurer’s liabilities. Provision of 115% of outstanding claim, though not in strict compliance with NFRS, has been made as per section 15(d) of
Insurance Regulation 2049 also on account specific direction given by Beema Samiti on Poush 12, 2075.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITY NOTE 15D

Amount in NRs

‘ Particulars As at As at As at

Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31,2073
Claim Payable 34,827,643 17,305,653 8,584,533
Payable to Forfeited Policy 648,354 561,844 512,644
PTD Claim 5,413,085 2,378,088 566,423
PWB Claim 21,770,552 19,529,013 15,143,930
Total 62,659,634 39,774,598 24,807,530

Note 15D.1 Other current liability are recorded and reported at accrual basis on legal and constructive obligation to the insurance company
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Particulars

Retirement Benefit Obligation

As at
Asad 32,

2075

As at
Asad 31, 2074

NOTE 16

Amountin NRs

As at
Asad 31, 2073

Benefit for Employees

a) Pension and Gratuity 8,142,779 1,070,826 5,473,706
b) Leave Encashment 43,602,368 31,533,062 26,558,623
Total 51,745,147 32,603,888 32,032,329

Note 16.1 Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience, adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to the equity in the OCl on net basis as per NAS 19 in the period
in which they arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Note 16.2 The retirement benefit scheme for the gratuity of the company's employees is funded in
line with statutory requirements. The leave benefits however are unfunded.

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Particulars

As at
Asad 32, 2075

As at
Asad 31, 2074

NOTE 17

Amountin NRs

As at
Asad 31, 2073

Deposits Liabilities(Policy Deposit) 35,092,500 23,167,024 33,088,027
Other Deposits (Miscellaneous Receipts) 253,894 263,139 383,017
Deposits For Nepal Life Building 122,532 122,532 122,532
Security Deposit "Nepal Life Building" 22,726,412 21,198,110 18,675,762
Unidentified Deposit 5,089,662 3,440,489 4,472,829
Amt Payable For Building Construction "Retention” 246,496 246,496 246,496

Total 63,531,496 48,437,790 56,988,663
Note 17.1 These are recognised on accrual basis. The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount
because of its short term maturities as such no fair value treatment for the same are given. Any movement in deposit
liabilities other than through receipt and/or payment cash are accounted for in Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLE

NOTE 18

Amountin NRs

As at As at As at

Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31,2073
Contribution To Avikarta Sangh 161,670 247,520 241,375
Proposal And Other Deposits 885,418 937,576 885,335
Other Liabilities (Sundry Creditors) 60,764,829 48,586,427 49,560,026
Payable To Brokers 28,491 22,604,734 12,211,739
Service Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 173,359,029 129,859,665 105,592,220
New Agent Lic. Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 6,832,986 1,997,323 1,536,323
Renewal Agent Lic.Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 681,739 493,504 442,623
Tds On Staff Salary And Wages 5,529,434 3,726,417 1,173,871
Income Tax Of Staff For Social Security 1% 182,969 130,293 103,980
Income Tax Of Staff For Social Security 1% - Nepal Life Building 4,226 5415 4,441
Tax Deducted At Source (TDS) 19,735
Tds On House Rent 392,628 217,020 671,433
Tds On Agent Commission 153,127,284 125,830,761 94,686,810
Tds On Claim Payment 3,112,666 2,798,034 1,856,408
Tds On Other Payments 1,902,585 2,280,081 1,978,970
Tax Provision Payable 16,156,494 16,156,494 16,156,494
Other Liabilities(Share Application Amt Refund.) 52,000 52,000 52,000
Other Liabilities(Cash Dividend Payable) 3,160,191 3,072,738 3,966,257
Other LI(Cash Dividend Payable through IPS) 82,402,337
Misc Credit (Agent Training) 177,159 178,659 188,659
Agent Loan Interest Suspense 3,316,094 8,123,829 3,316,883
Provident Fund Payable 161,984 44,016 81,353
Salary Bonus Etc. Payable 10,094,506 2,065,668 1,359,444
Basanta Pokharel (263) - Premium Against Home Loan 46,471 129,699 13,872
Om Prakash Pudasaini (173) - Premium Against Home Loan 25,376 25,366 50,712
Tanka Prasad Limbu(230)-Premium Against Home Loan 6 3 7,239
Digvijay Singhal (36) - Premium Against Home Loan 53,039 53,037 -
Tika Dutta Pykurel (81) - Premium Against Home Loan 138,082
Sunil Neupane(127) - Premium Against Home Loan 30,936
Bishnu Dev Shah (203)- Premium Against Home Loan 23,784
Shambhu K. Pandit (298)- Premium Against Home Loan 25,906
Muna Tamang (181)- Premium Against Home Loan 13,359
Citizen Investment Trust Payable 687,000 - 76,836
Payable To Fpo Shareholders 28,146,356 52,706,552 -
Other Liabilities (Misc Credit Account) 48,600 65,500 -
Agents Commission Payable 708,623,613 618,355,964 398,426,409
Incentive Commission Payable 30,628,603 32,521,814 1,348,037
Total 1,290,997,586 1,073,266,109 695,989,749
Note 18.1 The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount because of its short term maturities as such no fair value
treatment for the same are given.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

REINSURANCE PREMIUM PAYABLE

Particulars

As at

Asad 32, 2075

As at
Asad 31, 2074

NOTE 19

Amount in NRs
As at
Asad 31, 2073

Reinsurance Premium Payable

54,744,673.27

71,597,651.22

67,960,719.00

Total

54,744,673.27

71,597,651.22

67,960,719.00

OTHER PROVISION NOTE 20
Amountin NRs
Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31, 2073
Provision for bad dept 12,559,393.86 4,467,623.00 4,467,623.00
Provision for Staff Bonus 125,033,201.00 99,558,491.00 92,416,128.00
Impairment on Agent Loan -
Provision of loss on investment - -
Total 137,592,594.86 104,026,114.00 96,883,751.00

Note 20.1 Provision for Bad Debt are provided as per management estimate considering
the recoverability of debt. No change in the Provision for bad debt are made during the
periods covered by these financials.

Note 20.2 Provision for Staff Bonus are provided as per GAAP Financials i.e. 10% of Profit as
per GAAP Financials as per Bonus Act 2030.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

SHARE CAPITAL

NOTE 21
Amountin NRs
Particul As at As at As at
‘ articulars Asad32,2075 Asad31,2074  Asad 31,2073
Authorized Capital
A. 50,000,000 Equity Shares worth Rs. 100/- each 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
B.......... Non Redeemable Preferred worth Rs..... Each - -
Covininndd Redeemable Preferred worth Rs....... Each - -
Issued Capital
A. 43,969,286.48 Equity shares worth Rs. 100/- Each 4,396,928,648 3,096,428,625 2,167,500,000
B.......... Non Redeemable Preferred worth Rs..... Each - -
Cooniindd Redeemable Preferred worth Rs....... Each - -
Paid up Capital
A. 43,969,286.48 Equity shares worth Rs. 100/- Each 4,396,928,648 3,096,428,625 2,167,500,000
B.......... Non Redeemable Preferred worth Rs..... Each - -
Coviinilld Redeemable Preferred worth Rs....... Each - -
Total 4,396,928,648 3,096,428,625 2,167,500,000

Note 21.1 Share issue cost directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments during FY 2016/17 is adjusted from Share
Premium Account. No adjustment for the same is made in share capital to match it with the share capital as per GAAP duly

recognised by Office of the Company Registrar of Nepal.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

SHARE PREMIUM NOTE 22

Amountin NRs

‘ Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31,2074 Asad 31,2073
Share Premium 4,150,643,745 4,106,804,120 4,035,695
Share Issue Expense (17,890,056)
FPO income 61,729,682
Bonus Issue for previous year (1,300,500,023)
Total 2,850,143,722 4,150,643,745 4,035,695

Note 22.1 Share issue cost directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments during FY 2073/74 is adjusted from Share Premium Account. FPO
income earned during issue of equity instruments are also recognised under Share Premium.

Note 22.2 Bonus declared from Share Premium during FY 2073/74 and distributed during FY 2074/75 are adjusted from Share Premium Account for
FY 2074/75

RESERVE & SURPLUS NOTE 23

Amountin NRs
As at As at As at

Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31, 2074 Asad 31, 2073
Capital reserve - -

Particulars

General reserve C/F from Previous Year 1,071,975,001.00 842,171,934.00 -

Bonus share (619,285,725.00) -

Cash Dividend (883,297,008.00) (32,593,986.00)

Bonus Share (Not Capitalized) -
Profit transferred from Profit and Loss a/c 987,262,244.41 901,877,764.39 1,382,865,082.23
FPO Income - -

Tax provision for 2073/74,2072/73 (5,327,708.00) (1,320,477.00)

Transfer to Regulatory Reserve First Time Adoption

(546,299,836.23)

Regulatory Reserve Adjustment(Note 23.2)

(18,874,509.39)

5,606,688.00

Total

1,170,612,529.41

1,071,975,001.00

842,171,934.00

Note 23.1 These include revenue reserve carried forward from previous year plus profit for the year and dividend paid out as well
as adjustment arising from prior year transactions specially pertaining to tax adjustments. These also include adjustments in the
profit as per NFRS financials and GAAP financials for the period by transferring to Regulatory Reserve and also carried out as per
direction of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12. The profit for the year, hence reported under both the set of financials are same for
each of the years covered by the financial statements.

Note 23.1 There has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and any group of assets as part of first time adoption of
NFRS.

Note 23.2 Difference between Retained Earning as per GAAP and Retained Earning as per NFRS has been adjusted as Regulatory
Reserve Adjustment for F/Y where Retained Earning as per NFRS is higher than as per GAAP in line with BEEMA SAMITI direction
dated 2075/09/12.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

CATASTROPHIC RESERVE NOTE 24
Amountin NRs
Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32,2075 Asad31,2074 Asad 31,2073
Opening Catastrophic Reserve 325,418,686 224,955,274 224,955,274
Addition for the period 111,283,192 100,463,412 -
Total 436,701,878 325,418,686 224,955,274
REGULATORY RESERVE NOTE 25
Amountin NRs
Particulars As at As at As at
Asad 32,2075 Asad31,2074 Asad 31,2073
Opening Figure 577,752,705 540,693,148 -
Addition for the period 341,010,123 18,185,047 546,299,836
Regulatory Reserve Adjustment(Note 23.2) 18,874,509 (5,606,688)
Total 918,762,828 577,752,705 540,693,148

Note 24.1 - A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% of the net profit, is to be appropriated as per the circular
issued by Beema Samiti dated 2071.6.08 also in line with its direction dated 2075/09/12.

Note 24.1 As per Directive of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12 any difference in the profit for the year in
the NFRS financial statements and the GAAP financials needs to adjusted in Other Comprehensive
Income of the NFRS financial statement so as to match the profits for the disclosed by both the sets of
financial statements. In consideration to the directive such difference [ also reflected in the
reconciliation statements] are accounted under regulatory reserve and are shown separately on the
face of the financial statements.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

INVESTMENT INCOME NOTE 27
27.1 Rental income
Amountin NRs

| Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Rental Income From Premises
Investment Properties 70,107,879 65,068,475
Less: Gross Expenses 28,960,507 37,760,227
Owner Occupied Properties -
Total (A) 41,147,372 27,308,248
27.2 Interest Income

| Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Income from Government Securities & Securities Guaranteed by Govt. 26,109,326 26,320,253
Income from fixed deposit of Commercial Banks 4,420,190,526 2,404,831,532
Income from fixed deposit of Development Banks 13,426,439 10,864,865
Income from investment in CIT 5,554,809 1,462,743
Income from fixed deposit of Finance Company -
Income from debenture of bank and financial institution 99,303,978 99,061,201
Income from Loan 46,861,323 25,331,186
Income from other Deposit (Except Fixed Deposit) 28,378,952 21,362,418
Employment Benefit Interest Income 9,300,449 2,430,398
Interest from home loan 471,416 305,446
Total (B) 4,649,597,218 2,591,970,042
27.3 Dividend Income

| Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Dividend income from ordinary shares of Housing Finance company
Dividend income from ordinary shares of other public company 29,839,094 23,771,237
Dividend income from preference share of bank and financial institution -
Total (C.) 29,839,094 23,771,237
27.4 Realized Gains and Losses

| Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Property, Plant & Equipment
Realized gains on disposal - 1,344,092
Realized loss on disposal -
Financial Assets
Realized gains on disposal -
Realized loss on disposal -
Total net realized gains for financial Assets -
Total net Realized gains - 1,344,092
Fair Value Gain and Losses
Investment Properties
Realized gain on investment 13,765,970 90,994,474
Fair Value gain / loss at Fair Value through P/L (395,826,695) (259,937,730)
Reversal of income recognized
Total Fair Net value gain/(loss)
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To be Continued... Investment Income

Income from Others

Profit on Purchase of Investment

Less: Loss on Purchase of Investment

Write-Off/Amortized

Income related to Previous Year's

Provision for Doubtful Debt

Other Income (Share Transaction) 158,612 135,399

Total (D) (381,902,112) (167,463,764)

Grand Total (A+B+C+D) 4,338,681,571 2,475,585,764

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
INCOME FROM POLICY LOAN NOTE 28
Amount in NRs
Types of Insurance Policy FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

Endowment Life Insurance Policy 355,252,007 259,815,246

Money Back Life Insurance Policy 281,234,781 169,294,992

Jeevan Sahara Life Insurance Policy 131,686,349 81,624,729

Jeevan Sarathi Life Insurance Policy 4,188,684 1,879,825

Term Life Insurance Policy - -

Total 772,361,821 512,614,792
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

MEDICAL EXPENSES NOTE 32

Amountin NRs

Medical Expenses
Types of Insurance

FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Endowment Life Insurance Policy 4,873,592.00 2,590,540.00
Money Back Life Insurance Policy 2,101,119.00 1,523,834.00
Jeevan Sahara Life Insurance Policy (Convertible) 2,034,382.00 1,438,846.00
Jeevan Sarathi Life Insurance Policy (Others) 189,490.00 124,485.00
Term Life Insurance Policy 5,360.00 4,260.00
Total 9,203,943.00 5,681,965.00
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES

Types of Insurance

NOTE 34

Amountin NRs

Other Direct Expenses

FY 2074/75

FY 2073/74

Endowment Life Insurance Policy 1,390,944 757,776
Money Back Life Insurance Policy 150,805 113,189
Jeevan Sahara Life Insurance Policy (Convertible) 445,125 292,803
Jeevan Sarathi Life Insurance Policy (Others) 28,896 17,900
Term Life Insurance Policy 1,598,240 3,724,338
Total 3,614,010 4,906,006
MANAGEMENT EXPENSES NOTE 35
Amountin NRs
‘ Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Employee Expenses (Note 35.1) 294,767,975.67 180,172,467
Provision on Pension and Gratuity (5,396,566.00) 5,639,769
Provision for Leave Encashment 28,732,149.00 17,839,457.00
Building Rent 36,371,240.48 33,910,619
Water & Electricity 4,025,823.00 4,007,151
Repair & Maintenance
A. Building 333,843.94 124,348
B. Vehicle 464,823.00 534,038
C. Office Equipment 1,442,617.00 1,270,819
D. Others(machinery) 103,559.00 160,585
D. Others(software) 168,237.00
Communication 11,375,201.08 11,161,985
Printing and Stationary 17,636,976.68 12,333,442
Non Capital Office Items 4,286,288.00 2,011,414
Transportation 4,972,440.00 4,189,323
Travelling Expenses (Including Allowance)
A. Internal 5,331,521.00 2,906,787
B. International 2,737,560.00 1,708,948
Agent Training 1,935,994.00 713,915
Other Agents Expenses 891,647,554.00 938,043,446.00
Insurance Premium 2,714,830.00 2,615,993.00
Security Expenses 343,746.00 347,814.00
Legal and Consultancy Fees 1,202,730.00 724,700.00
Books and Periodicals 186,523.00 141,907.00
Advertisement and Publicity 65,515,173.00 23,983,342.00

To be continued..
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To be continued..

Business Promotion 1,978,274.00 1,026,113.00
Guest Entertainment Expenses 1,101,041.00 1,855,736.00
Donation and Awards 912,430.00 295,775.00
Board Committee Expenses

A. Meeting Allowance 1,498,803.00 1,258,500.00
B. Others 522,820.74 568,803
Other Committee/Sub committee Expenses

A. Meeting Allowance 1,784,437.00 1,145,000
B. Others - -
Expenses relating general meeting 530,532.55 639,722
A. Actuarial Service Fee -

B. Actuarial Expenses 995,832.25 1,076,599
Audit Expenses

A. Audit Fee 1,000,000.00 1,000,000
B. Tax Audit Fee

C. Long Form Audit Fee

D. Other Fee

E. Internal Audit Fee 999,060.00 1,000,000
F. IS Audit 282,500.00

G. Others Expenses 58,917.00 48,173
Interest 17,058,904
Bank charges 686,871.33 1,121,032
Fee and Charges 7,484,788.00 2,160,005
Depreciation 20,199,512.00 19,520,022
Stamps 2,248,597.00 1,322,968
Other

A. Staff Entertainment 6,427,570.00 4,650,271
B. Staff Conference & Refreshment 725,498.25 952,533
C. Others 4,247,085.00 2,690,769
Issue Expenses - 5,448,792
Total 1,424,584,808 1,309,381,986
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES NOTE 35.1
Particulars 16-Jul-18 16-Jul-17
Salary 136,076,676 98,835,328
Allowance 58,288,386 45,823,752
Dashain Allowance 25,623,622 10,595,857
Company Contribution Provident Fund 10,375,594 7,885,887
Training Expenses 267,943 168,220
Employment Benefit - Interest Expenses 9,300,449 2,430,398
Medical Expenses 200
Insurance 10,614,776 6,966,857
Provision for Other Facilities(staff occupancy) 1,832,000 933,000
Others (Incentive to staff) 32,970,799 -
Others (Vehicle Loan) 9,417,731 6,532,969
Total 294,767,976 180,172,467
IMPAIRMENT NOTE 36
Amount in NRs
‘ Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Impairment on Agent Loan 3,222,179 677,016
Impairment on Premium Receivables 44,530,488 77,695,373
Total 47,752,667 78,372,389
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2074/75 [FY 2017/18] due to adoption of NFRS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF NOTE 37
PROFIT AND LOSS REPORTED
Amountin NRs
‘ Particulars Amount as per GAAP Amount as per NFRS Adjustments
Net premium 15,987,464,485 16,386,444,267 398,979,782
Rental premises 41,147,372 41,147,372 -
interest from loan -
IGns:rr::tfersgwbjcgs\::ment Securities & Securities 30,562,580 26,109,326 (4,453,254)
Income from fixed deposit of Commercial Banks 4,420,190,526 4,420,190,526 -
Income from fixed deposit of Development Banks 13,426,439 13,426,439 -
Income from investmet in CIT 5,554,809 5,554,809 (0)
Income from debenture of bank and financial instituition 99,393,163 99,303,978 (89,185)
Income from Loan 46,861,323 46,861,323 -
Income from other Deposit (Except Fixed Deposit) 28,378,951 28,378,952 -
Employment Benefit Interest Income - 9,771,865 9,771,865
Income from policy loan 772,361,821 772,361,821 -
Dividend income 29,839,094 29,839,094 -
Realized gain: -
Realized gains on disposal of PPE - - -
Investment value-Realized and Change in fair value 13,765,970 -382,060,725 (395,826,695)
Loss on purchase of investment -3,225,895 - 3,225,895
Other income 158,612 158,612 -
Fee & Commission Income 157,769,559 157,769,623 64
Total income 21,643,648,810 21,655,257,282 11,608,472
Expenses: -
Claims Payment 5,505,477,708 6,321,241,185 815,763,477
Less : Reinsurance claim -81,733,222 -81,733,222 -
Gross change in contract liabilities 11,630,586,999.00 - (11,630,586,999)
Change in contract liabilities ceded to
reinsm?rers/unexpired RR ) 9:994,503,217 9:994,503,217
Agent Comission 1,798,551,813 1,832,457,581 33,905,768
Medical Fee 9,203,943 9,203,943 -
Re-insurance Comission Expenses - -
Net Service Chagres 159,584,238 163,574,036 3,989,798
Other Direct Expenses 3,614,010 3,614,010 -
Management Expenses 1,446,804,570 1,424,584,808 (22,219,762)
Provision for loss on investment 301,992,353 - (301,992,353)
Total Expenses 20,774,082,412 19,667,445,558 (1,106,636,854)
Life assuance fund Profit 820,320,305 - (820,320,305)
Net Income 1,689,886,703 1,987,811,725 297,925,022
Impairment Loss - 47,752,667 47,752,667
Other provision - 8,091,771 8,091,771
Staff Bonus 125,033,201 125,033,201 -
1,564,853,502 1,862,778,524 297,925,022

Deferred tax 98,641,477 98,641,477
Income Tax 452,021,584 451,733,521 (288,063)
Net Income 1,112,831,917 1,453,842,041 341,010,123
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

For FY 2073/74 [FY 2016/17] due to adoption of NFRS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF NOTE 38
PROFIT AND LOSS REPORTED
Amountin NRs
‘ Particulars Amount as per GAAP Amount as per NFRS Adjustments
Net premium 12,055,925,183 12,519,081,514 463,156,331
Rental premises 27,308,248 27,308,248 (0)
interest from loan -
Ié\j;)rr:stfers;nbitgoe\::ment Securities & Securities 30,573,588 26,320,253 (4,253,335)
Income from fixed deposit of Commercial Banks 2,404,831,532 2,404,831,532 -
Income from fixed deposit of Development Banks 10,864,865 10,864,865 -
Income from investment in CIT 1,462,743 1,462,743 -
Income from debenture of bank and financial institution 99,144,029 99,061,201 (82,828)
Income from Loan 25,331,186 25,331,186 -
Income from other Deposit (Except Fixed Deposit) 21,362,418 21,362,418 -
Employment Benefit Interest Income - 2,735,844 2,735,844
Income from policy loan 512,614,792 512,614,792 -
Dividend income 23,771,237 23,771,237 -
Realized gain: -
Realized gains on disposal of PPE 1,344,092 1,344,092 0
Investment value-Realized and Change in fair value 90,994,474 -168,943,256 (259,937,730)
Loss on purchase of investment -3,225,895 - 3,225,895
Other income 135,400 135,400 -
Fee & Commission Income 126,623,652 126,623,736 84
FPO Income 38,390,833 - (38,390,833)
Total income 15,467,452,377 15,633,905,806 166,453,429
Expenses: -
Claims Payment 2,975,816,729 3,393,256,379 417,439,650
Less : Reinsurance claim -91,688,171 -91,688,171 -
Gross change in contract liabilities 9,265,454,441 8,183,533,021 (1,081,921,420)

Change in contract liabilities ceded to
reinsurers/unexpired RR

Agent Commission 1,222,401,067 1,245,803,877 23,402,810
Medical Fee 5,681,965 5,681,965 -
Re-insurance Commission Expenses - -
Net Service Chagres 120,311,705 124,943,268 4,631,563
Other Direct Expenses 4,906,006 4,906,006 -
Management Expenses 1,301,806,579 1,309,381,986 7,575,407
Provision for loss on investment 81,967,645 - (81,967,645)
Provision for loss on agent loan 677,016 - (677,016)
Share issue expenses -
Total Expenses 14,887,334,982 14,175,818,332 (711,516,650)
Life assurance fund Profit 664,481,771 - (664,481,771)
Net Income 1,244,599,166 1,458,087,474 213,488,308
Impairment Loss - 78,372,389 78,372,389
Staff Bonus 99,558,491 99,558,491 -
Total 1,145,040,675 1,358,528,983 213,488,308
Deferred tax -62,701,723 (62,701,723)
Income Tax 140,406,553 320,039,148 179,632,595
Net Income 1,004,634,122 1,022,819,169 18,185,047
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RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION REPORTED

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
As on Ashadh 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) due to adoption of NFRS

NOTE 39

Amount in NRs

Particulars ASZ';;::/\;FSRS Adjustments Aszzt;:‘/G7A5AP

Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 65,042,899 (1) 65,042,899
Investment Properties 242,686,029 - 242,686,029
Deferred Tax Assets 81,854,425 (49,618,917) 131,473,342
Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets 44,300,882,485 73,485 44,300,809,000

Loans & Receivables 8,940,141,395 (40,129,656) 8,980,271,051

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L 3,029,826,834 (269,560,181) 3,299,387,014
Reinsurance Receivable 76,022,033 76,022,033
Insurance Receivables 980,328,536 980,328,536 -
Other Receivables 947,719,199 - 947,719,199
Other Financial Assets 154,023,034 (46,633,860) 200,656,894
Deferred Interest (employment Benefit) 33,599,718 33,599,718 -
Other Assets 1,166,181,545 (81,506,665) 1,247,688,211
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,862,016,067 - 2,862,016,067
Premium on bond (2,500,297) 2,500,297
Total Assets 62,880,324,199 524,052,164 62,356,272,035
Liabilities & Equity
Insurance Contract Liability 49,596,796,284 49,596,796,284 -
Retirement Benefit Obligation 51,745,147 (53,205,577) 104,950,724
Deferred Income Tax Liability - -
Provision for Unexpired Risk 293,931,552 - 293,931,552
Deposit Liabilities 63,531,496 - 63,531,496
Accruals and Other Payable 1,290,997,586 88,151,215 1,202,846,371
Reinsurance Premium Payable (CL) 54,744,673 - 54,744,673
Outstanding Claim Payable 1,555,175,628 - 1,555,175,628
Other Current Liability 62,659,634 - 62,659,634
Other Provision 137,592,595 (1,437,662,754) 1,575,255,349
Total Liabilities 53,107,174,594 48,194,079,168 4,913,095,427
Equity
Share Capital 4,396,928,648 - 4,396,928,648
Share Premium 2,850,143,722 43,839,625 2,806,304,097
Reserve & Surplus 1,170,612,529 964,166,828 206,445,701
Life Assurance Fund (49,596,796,284) 49,596,796,284
Catastrophic Reserve 436,701,878 - 436,701,878
Regulatory Reserve 918,762,828 918,762,828
Total shareholder's equity 9,773,149,606 (47,670,027,002) 57,443,176,608
Total Equity 9,773,149,606 (47,670,027,002) 57,443,176,608
Total equity and liabilities 62,880,324,199 524,052,164 62,356,272,035
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For period ending Asad 31, 2074 [July 16, 2017] due to Adoption of NFRS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF NOTE 40

FINANCIAL POSITION REPORTED

Amount in NRs

Details Restated Adjustments For Opening Adjusted Previously reported
Asad 31, 2074 (NFRS) The Year Asad 31, 2074 (GAAP)

Assets
Property & Equipment 67,474,156 (0) - 67,474,156
Investment Properties 246,577,420 - - 246,577,420
Deferred Tax Assets - (20,194,988) (26,987,298) 47,182,286
Financial Assets - -

Held to Maturity Financial Assets 37,345,424,924 (4,336,162) 8,952,087 37,340,809,000

Loans & Receivables 6,541,818,270 (5,599,597) (18,865,556) 6,566,283,422

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L 2,312,265,787 (259,937,730) 386,204,243 2,185,999,274
Premium on investment(Deferred Expense) - 3,225,895 (8,952,087) 5,726,192
Deferred Interest (employment Benefit) 20,685,979 5,228,027 15,457,952 -
Reinsurance Receivable 50,572,089 - - 50,572,089
Insurance Receivable 625,879,178 385,461,041 240,418,137 0
Other Receivables 708,793,236 - - 708,793,236
Other Financial Assets 421,706,695 (7,395,592) (33,683,459) 462,785,746
Other Assets 879,660,389 (160,758,085) - 1,040,418,473
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,028,252,768 - - 2,028,252,768
Total Assets 51,249,110,890 (64,307,191) 562,544,019 50,750,874,062
Liabilities -
Insurance Contract Liability 39,541,510,027 8,136,302,137 31,405,207,890 -
Retirement Benefit Obligation 32,603,888 (4,642,113) (30,537,085) 67,783,086
Deferred Income Tax Liability 21,549,212 (63,466,038) 85,015,251
Provision for Unexpired Risk 354,714,592 - - 354,714,592
Deposit Liabilities 48,437,790 - - 48,437,790
Accruals and Other Payable 1,073,266,109 28,034,373 38,377,766 1,006,853,966
Reinsurance Premium Payable (CL) 71,597,651 - - 71,597,651
Outstanding Claim Payable 739,412,151 - - 739,412,151
Other Current Liability 39,774,598 - - 39,774,598
Other Provision 104,026,114 (933,347,683) (76,611,744) 1,113,985,541
Total Liabilities(A) 42,026,892,132 7,162,880,676 31,421,452,078 3,442,559,375
Equity -
Share Capital 3,096,428,625 - - 3,096,428,625
Share Premium 4,150,643,745 43,839,625 - 4,106,804,120
Reserve & Surplus 1,071,975,001 287,521,941 546,299,836 238,153,224
Catastrophic Reserve 325,418,686 - - 325,418,686
Life Assurance Fund - (8,136,302,137) (31,405,207,890) 39,541,510,027
Regulatory Reserve 577,752,705 577,752,705 -
Total Equity (B) 9,222,218,762 (7,227,187,866) (30,858,908,054) 47,308,314,682
Total Equity & Liability 51,249,110,890 (64,307,191) 562,544,019 50,750,874,062
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
As on Asad 31, 2073 [15/07/2016] due to Adoption of NFRS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF NOTE 41

FINANCIAL POSITION REPORTED

Amount in NRs

Details Restated Re-measurement Previously reported
Ason Asad 31, 2073 Asad 31, 2073 (GAAP)

Assets
Property & Equipment 68,926,981 - 68,926,980
Investment Properties 250,468,811 - 250,468,811
Deferred Tax Assets - (26,987,298) 26,987,298
Financial Assets -

Held to Maturity Financial Assets 27,034,761,087 8,952,087 27,025,809,000

Loans & Receivables 4,480,912,544 (18,865,556) 4,499,778,100

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L 1,585,815,682 386,204,243 1,199,611,439
Premium on investment(Deferred Expense) - (8,952,087) 8,952,087
Deferred Interest (employment Benefit) 15,457,952 15,457,952 -
Reinsurance Receivable 27,023,983 - 27,023,983
Insurance Receivable 240,418,137 240,418,137 0
Other Receivables 576,549,968 - 576,549,968
Other Financial Assets 349,380,634 (33,683,459) 383,064,093
Other Assets 828,099,243 - 828,099,243
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,415,883,115 - 1,415,883,115
Total Assets 36,873,698,136 562,544,019 36,311,154,118
Liabilities
Insurance Contract Liability 31,405,207,890 31,405,207,890 -
Retirement Benefit Obligation 32,032,329 (30,537,085) 62,569,414
Deferred Income Tax Liability 85,015,251 85,015,251 -
Provision for Unexpired Risk 307,483,708 - 307,483,708
Deposit Liabilities 56,988,663 56,988,663
Accruals and Other Payable 695,989,749 38,377,766 657,611,983
Reinsurance Premium Payable (CL) 67,960,719 - 67,960,719
Outstanding Claim Payable 321,972,501 - 321,972,501
Other Current Liability 24,807,530 24,807,530
Other Provision 96,883,751 (76,611,744) 173,495,495
Total Liabilities(A) 33,094,342,090 31,421,452,078 1,672,890,013
Equity
Share Capital 2,167,500,000 - 2,167,500,000
Share Premium 4,035,695 - 4,035,695
Reserve & Surplus 1,382,865,082 546,299,836 836,565,246
Catastrophic Reserve 224,955,274 - 224,955,274
Life Assurance Fund - (31,405,207,890) 31,405,207,890
Regulatory Reserve - -
Total Equity (B) 3,779,356,051 (30,858,908,054) 34,638,264,105
Total Equity & Liability (A+B) 36,873,698,136 562,544,024 36,311,154,118

132 19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18




Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF

CHANGE IN EQUITY

(Due to Adoption of NFRS)

NOTE 42

Amountin NRs

‘ Details As at As at As at
Asad 32, 2075 Asad 31,2074 Asad 31,2073

Total equity under previous GAAP 57,443,176,608 47,308,314,682 34,638,264,105
NFRS Adjustments:
Life Assurance Fund (49,596,796,284) (39,541,510,027) (31,405,207,890)
Opening Remeasurement Adjustments In Reserve 546,299,836
Changes in Reserve 1,926,769,282 1,455,414,107

(47,670,027,002) (38,086,095,920) (30,858,908,054)

Total change in equity

Total Equity under NFRS

9,773,149,606

9,222,218,762

3,779,356,051
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2074/75 [FY 2017/18] due to the adoption of NFRS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF

NOTE 43

CASH FLOW REPORTED

‘ Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities:

As per NFRS
2074/75

Amountin NRs

Difference As per GAAP 2074/75

Premium Income

16,170,759,396

- 16,170,759,396

Late Fee Income 139,807,072 - 139,807,072
Re-Insurance Income - -

Re-Insurance Commission Income 17,962,487 - 17,962,487
Other Direct Income = - -
Claimed recovery from Re-Insurer 56,283,278 - 56,283,278

Re-insurance Premium Paid

(200,147,889)

- (200,147,889)

Re-Insurance commission payment

(1,742,189,932)

(0.00) (1,742,189,932)

Agent commission payment
Medical examination fee payment (9,203,943) - (9,203,943)
Death claim payment (467,442,484) - (467,442,484)
Maturity claim payment (1,504,838,484) - (1,504,838,484)
Partial-maturity claim payment (2,745,299,543) - (2,745,299,543)
Surrender value claim payment (782,771,985) - (782,771,985)
Other claim payment (5,125,212) - (5,125,212)
Service fee payment (120,074,672) 0.13 (120,074,672)
Other direct expenses (3,614,010) - (3,614,010)
Management expenditure payment (1,395,084,847) 31,520,211.35 (1,426,605,058)
Staff Bonus Expenses (99,558,491) - (99,558,491)
Income Tax Paid (741,837,476) 0.48 (741,837,477)
(Increase)/decrease in current assets 17,528,341 101,025,351.77 (83,497,011)
(Increase)/decrease in current liabilities 141,084,464 (99,215,466.72) 240,299,931
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities 6,707,187,429 33,330,097.01 6,692,905,974
Cash flow from Investing Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in fixed assets (13,876,864) 0.42 (13,876,864)
(Increase) Decrease in investment in government
., 4,542,439 4,542,438.99 -
guaranteed securities.
(Increase)Decrease in investment in fixed deposit of
§ e e (6,960,000,000) - (6,960,000,000)
bank and financial institution.
Increase) Decrease in investment in other deposit of
( ) Decrease in inve P - 714,197,065.00 (714,197,065)
bank and financial institution.
Increase/Decrease in Equity Share Investments (1,089,044,708) 0.22 (1,089,044,708)
(Increase) Decrease in investment in preference
share/debenture
(Increase)Decrease in other investment(Premium On
(24,343,033) 0.40 (24,343,033)
Investment)
. Lo . (2,526,035,979) - (2,526,035,979)
(Increase)Decrease in loans against insurance Policy
(Increase) Decrease in other loans and advances 112,048,350 (14,304,999.93) 126,353,350
Interest Income From Investment 4,909,238,404 (4,542,438.42) 4,913,780,842
Dividend Received 29,839,094 (0.27) 29,839,094
Rental income 41,147,372 0.21 41,147,372
Interest On Policy Loan 512,433,218 (0.28) 512,433,218
Others Indirect income 13,924,582 0.09 13,924,582
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B) (4,990,127,125) 699,892,066.43 (5,690,019,191)
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To be Continued... Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow reported

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Amount received from Shares - - R

(Increase) Decrease in outstanding debt. = - -

Increase/Decrease in short term debt = - -

Interest Paid on Loan and Debt = - -

Dividend paid (883,297,008) - (883,297,008)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (883,297,008) - (883,297,008)
Net Cash Flow From Overall Activities 833,763,296 714,173,521.43 119,589,775
Opening Balance of Cash & Bank Balance 2,028,252,768 1,487,068,202.73 541,184,565
Closing Cash Balance 2,862,016,067 2,201,241,724.68 660,774,342
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For FY 2073/74 [FY 2016/17] due to the adoption of NFRS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF NOTE 44
CASH FLOW REPORTED
. As per NFRS . As per GAAP
‘ Particulars P 2073/74 Difference P 2073174
Cash flow from operating activities:
Premium Income 12,219,802,896 - 12,219,802,896
Late Fee Income 101,700,170 - 101,700,170
Re-Insurance Income - -
Re-Insurance Commission Income 24,923,483 - 24,923,483
Other Direct Income - (38,390,833.00) 38,390,833
Claimed recovery from Re-Insurer 68,140,065 0.16 68,140,065
Re-insurance Premium Paid (160,240,780.78) 022 |- 160,240,781
Re-Insurance commission payment - -
Agent commission payment (1,025,874,322.15) (0.15) | - 1,025,874,322
Medical examination fee payment (5,681,965.48) (0.48) | - 5,681,965
Death claim payment (442,274,163.00) - - 442,274,163
Maturity claim payment (1,255,125,330.00) - - 1,255,125,330
Partial-maturity claim payment (830,076,047.00) - |- 830,076,047
Surrender value claim payment (441,435,304.00) - - 441,435,304
Other claim payment (6,905,885.00) - |- 6,905,885
Service fee payment (100,675,822.51) 049 | - 100,675,823
Other direct expenses (4,906,006.00) - |- 4,906,006

Management expenditure payment

(1,270,676,444.62)

(5,448,791.62)

1,265,227,653

Staff Bonus Expenses

(92,416,128)

(92,416,128)

Income Tax Paid (372,975,593) 0.36 (372,975,593)
(Increase)/decrease in current assets 116,861,747 23,973,471.92 92,888,275
(Increase)/decrease in current liabilities 144,709,227 (20,194,988.17) 164,904,215
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities 6,666,873,797 (40,061,140.27) 6,706,934,937

Cash flow from Investing Activities:

(Increase) Decrease in fixed assets (14,175,807) (0.54) (14,175,806)
(Increase) Decrease in investment in government guaranteed 4,336,162 4,336,162.45 -
securities.

(Increase)Decrease in investment in fixed deposit of bank (10,315,000,000) - (10,315,000,000)
and financial institution.

(Increase)Decrease in investment in fixed deposit of bank 259,668,790.00 (259,668,790)
and financial institution.

Increase/Decrease in Equity Share Investments (991,820,590) (0.49) (991,820,590)
(Increase) Decrease in investment in preference - - -
share/debenture

(Increase)Decrease in other investment(Premium On 5,432,756 (0.23) 5,432,756
Investment)

(Increase)Decrease in loans against insurance Policy (2,078,116,528) - (2,078,116,528)
(Increase) Decrease in other loans and advances 11,611,206 (3,700,000.42) 15,311,206
Interest Income From Investment 2,462,624,820 (4,336,162.58) 2,466,960,983
Dividend Received 23,771,237 0.35 23,771,237
Rental income 27,308,248 0.21 27,308,248
Interest On Policy Loan 310,452,324 (0.13) 310,452,324
Others Indirect income 92,473,966 (0.21) 92,473,966
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B) (10,461,102,206) 255,968,788.41 (10,717,070,994)
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To be Continued... Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow reported

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Amount received from Shares 4,456,250,950 43,839,625.36 4,412,411,325
(Increase) Decrease in outstanding debt. -
Increase/Decrease in short term debt -
Interest Paid on Loan and Debt (17,058,904) - (17,058,904)
Dividend paid (32,593,986) - (32,593,986)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities 4,406,598,060 43,839,625.36 4,362,758,435
Net Cash Flow From Overall Activities 612,369,651 259,747,273.50 352,622,378
Opening Balance of Cash & Bank Balance 1,415,883,115 1,227,320,929.62 188,562,185
Closing Cash Balance 2,028,252,768 1,487,068,204.73 541,184,563
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi Kathmandu
For the year ended Asad 32, 2075 and Asad 31, 2074
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE  NOTE 45
Amountin NRs
| Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74
Profit attributable to the Company's equity Holders 987,262,244 | 901,877,764
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 43,969,286 30,964,286
Basic earning per share 22 29
Dilute earning per share 22 29

45.1 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equityholders of the Company by

the weighted average number ordinary share in issue during the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (Nepal Life)
was established under the Company Act 2063 and
Insurance Act 2049 as a public limited company
on 2058/01/21 B.S. (04/05/2001 A.D). Nepal Life is
the foremost life insurance company established by
private investors. The ownership structure among
the paid up capital is 70:30 of promoters group and
general public. The company has 174,605 general
public till the end of this financial year. The company
has insured itself with well-known reinsurance
company Hannover Rueck SE, Germany in Malaysian
branch.

The company is also listed on Nepal Stock Exchange
Ltd.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared for
the first time in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the
Accounting Standard Board (ASB), as per provisions
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
Act, 1997. The financial statement has been prepared
as a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes
all the standards and the related interpretations which
are consistently used. These financial statements are
the company’s first financial statement under NFRS
and the transition was carried out in accordance with
NFRS 1, First Time Adoption of NFRS

Further the directions issued by the Insurance
regulatory authority of Nepal [Beema Samiti] on Poush
12, 2075 with respect to preparation of financials as
per NFRS, though strictly not in line with the NFRS,
have also be incorporated appropriately.

2.1 Approval of financial statements

The Financial Statements were adopted by the Board
of Directors on its meeting held on 16th Falgun,
2075 and have been recommended for approval by
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
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3. SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Reporting Pronouncements

The Company has, for the preparation of financial
statements, adopted the NFRS 2013 pronounced
by ASB as effective on September 13, 2013. NFRS
conform, in all material respect, to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

3.1.1. REPORTING STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT
NOT EFFECTIVE DATE

NFRS 9 — Financial Instruments has been issued by
Accounting Standard Board of Nepal [As per NFRS
2013] but its effective date has not been defined
clearly. However, the company has elected to apply
the requirement of NFRS for financial instruments.
A number of new standards and amendments to
the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS
with varying effective dates. Those become applicable
when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.
The company has not elected to apply any of the new
standards that might have impact if applied. IFRS 15
- Revenue from contracts with customers and IFRS 17-
Leases can have financial and operational impact if
applied; however the company has not assessed and
is also not in the process of assessing the possible
impact it can have in the business of the company.

3.1.2. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

The financial statements have been prepared at the
historical cost convention on accrual basis except
otherwise stated in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by Accounting
Standard Board (ASB), Nepal so far as applicable;
the applicable laws; Insurance Act, 2049; Insurance
Regulation 2049; Company Act 2063 and Directive
on Preparation of Financial Statement issued by
Insurance Board, 2065 including specific direction
given by Beema Samiti on Poush 12, 2075 and as



per general insurance practices, as modified by the
revaluation of available for sale financial assets, and
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis where the accounting policies
and judgements as required by the standards are
consistently used and in case of deviations, disclosed
separately.

The company, while complying with the reporting
standards, makes critical judgements having
potentially material impact on the financial statement.
The accounting policies that relate to the financial
statement as a whole along with the judgements made
are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable
to a specific item, the policy is described within
the relevant note. NFRS requires the company to
exercise judgement in making accounting estimates.
Description of such judgement has been given in the
relevant section of wherever they have been applied.

The significant accounting policies applied by the
Company in preparing its financial statements are
depicted in these policies have been consistently
applied to all periods presented except for the changes
in accounting policies disclosed in the same note.

3.1.3. PRESENTATION

For presentation of the statement of financial position,
assets and liabilities have been divided into current
and non-current by their maturities, wherever
applicable, and are disclosed in the notes.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared
using classification ‘by nature’ method.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the
indirect method.

3.1.4 CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese
Rupees (NRs) and all values are rounded to the nearest
rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

3.1.5 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT
DISTINCTION

Assets

Apart from the property, plant and equipment and
deferred tax assets all the assets are taken as current
assets unless specific additional disclosure is made in
the notes for current and non-current distinction.

Liabilities

Apart from the defined benefit plan obligations all the
liabilities are taken as current liabilities unless specific
additional disclosure is made in the notes for current
and non-current distinction.

3.1.6 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Comparative information has been restated in respect
of any items due to change in accounting policies or
fundamental errors.

3.1.7 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The company, under NFRS, is required to apply
accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further
the company is required to make judgement in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy,
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed
could materially affect the financial statements. This
may later be determined that a different choice could
have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in the relevant
notes for each item of the financial statements. The
effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been
disclosed.

NFRS requires the company to make estimates and
assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.

The company applies estimates in preparing and
presenting the financial statements. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised, and are
applied prospectively.
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Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been
included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever
the estimates have been applied along with the nature
and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

3.1.8 FINANCIAL PERIODS

The company follows the Nepalese financial year
based on the Nepalese calendar. The periods covered
by each set of financial statements including in First
NFRS Financial Statement are as under.

Relevant Financial Nepalese

Statement
Opening NFRS SFP* Date

Calendar
1 Shrawan 2072

Comparative NFRS SFP* Date| 31 Ashad 2073

1 Shrawan 2073
- 31 Ashad 2074

Comparative Reporting
Period

First NFRS SFP* Date 32 Ashad 2075

1 Shrawan 2074
- 32 Ashad 2075

First NFRS Reporting Period

*SPF — Statement of Financial Position
3.1.9 DISCOUNTING

Discounting has been applied where assets and
liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

3.1.10 LIMITATION OF NFRS IMPLEMENTATION

Wherever the information is not adequately
available and the cost to develop the same would
exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS
implementation has been noted and disclosed in
respective sections.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1 Financial Assets

4.1.1 INITIAL RECOGNITION AND
MEASUREMENT

The company classifies its financial assets into the

following measurement categories:
a) Financial assets held at fair value through profit or
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loss (FVTPL);

b) Loans and receivables;

¢) Held-to-maturity (HTM); and
d) Available-for-sale (AFS).

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition on transaction
date; (the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset) or, where applicable, at the
time of reclassification, and recognise initially at fair
value plus transaction cost.

Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to the
policy holders, agent and employees.

4.1.2 SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

This category has two sub-categories:

a) Financial assets held for trading, and
b) Those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. When the company is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management's intention to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the company may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification to loans and receivables, available
for sale or held to maturity depends on the nature of
the asset.

The company classified investments in equity
instruments and mutual funds as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss hence those financial
assets are managed and performance is evaluated on
the fair value basis.

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly
to the net trading income line in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Investment in equity instruments of Listed Companies



are included as Held for Trading investments reported
under Note 4.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and it is expected
that substantially all of the initial investment will, in
general, be recovered.

Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance assets and are
reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment
review of loans and receivables.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate method (EIR), less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in investment income in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Loan and Receivable include Loan against policy,
staff loan including home loan against policy, agent
loans that are disclosed under Note 4.

Held-to-maturity (HTM)

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held to maturity when the company has
the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity.

After initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, less
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in investment income
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

HTM investments include Investment in Government
Bonds and Fixed Deposits with Banks and Financial
Institutions that reported under Note 4.

During the reporting period Rs. 45,306.01 Million was

to be earmarked with Beema Samiti upon which Rs.
46,458.78 crore was earmarked.

Available-for-sale (AFS)

Available for sale investments that are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices or that
are not classified as loans and receivables, held to
maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as OCI in
the available for sale reserve until the investment is
derecognised except in the case of AFS assets of the
Life Policyholders' fund which is transferred to the
long term insurance liability through the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income.

4.1.3 DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS:

Financial assets are derecognised when:

m The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or

m The Company has transferred its right to receive cash
flows from the asset and either: (a) the company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset or (b) the company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If substantially all the risks and rewards have been
neither retained nor transferred and the company
has retained control, the assets shall continue to
be recognised to the extent of the company’s
continuing involvement.

4.1.4 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS:

The company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
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deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the company about the following
events:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
debtor;

b) A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in payments;

c) It is becoming probable that the issuer or

debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

d) The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

e) Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flow from a group of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group

On the objective evidence of test of impairment,
Financial Assets except Loan to Agents were not found
impaired. The impairment testing of Loan to Agents
has been carried out on individual basis considering
the repayment history of each loan and the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the assets's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
original EIR. The carrying amount of the asset is
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reduced and the loss is recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, to the extent that the carrying value
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

4.1.5 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
4.1.5.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as either held
a) At fair value through profit or loss, or
b) At amortised cost.

Financial liabilities, not classified as held at fair
value through statement of profit or loss which
includes borrowings, are classified as amortised cost
instruments.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and include directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

4.1.5.2 Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, with any difference between proceeds
net of directly attributable transaction costs and the
redemption value recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest rate method.

4.1.5.3 De-recognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished. Afinancial liability is extinguished when

the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced



by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

4.1.6. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the
net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position only when there is a legally enforceable right
to off-set the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.1.7 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

All assets, liabilities and equity items for which
fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole.

m Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

m level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

m level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

4.1.7.1. Fair Value Estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in

active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price used

for financial assets held by the company is the
current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
primarily quoted equity investments and mutual fund
investments classified as fair value through other
Profit and Loss. The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Investment in unquoted shares are valued at cost.

4.1.8 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

All categories of property plant and equipment are
initially recognised at cost including expenditure
that is directly attributable to its acquisition. Property
plant & Equipment are subsequently measured at
historical cost or re-valued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other expenses on repairs and
maintenance are charged to Statement Profit or Loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
ltems of property, plant and equipment are
derecognised upon replacement, disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss
under realised gains. When re-valued assets are
derecognised, the amounts included in the revaluation
surplus are transferred to retained earnings.
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DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the following classes of
assets:

Particulars Useful Life

1. Computer Equipment 4 Years
2. Office Equipment 4 Years
3. Vehicles (Automobiles) 7 Years
4. Furniture's & Fixtures (Light) 4 Years
5. Furniture's & Fixtures (Heavy) 15 Years
6. Software Expenses 5 Years
7. Plant & Machinery (Light) 8 Years
8. Plant & Machinery (Heavy) 15 Years
9. Leasehold 5 Years

The rates have been applied consistently over the
years. The asset's residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying
amount is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
value of assets fully depreciated but continued to be
in use is considered not material.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined by reference to their
carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.
Capital items costing to less than NPR 10,000 has
been treated as revenue expenditure in the year of
purchase.

4.1.9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist primarily of computer
software.

Intangible assets acquired separately and self-
developed are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over

the useful economic life using the straight-line method
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
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indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method as appropriate and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the expense category consistent with the intangible
asset.

4.1.10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property is held by entity to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Buildings, or part of a
building, (freehold or held under a finance lease) and
land (freehold or held under an operating lease) held
for long term rental yields and/or capital appreciation
are classified as investment property being primarily
held for leasing out and capital appreciation.

The entity has applied the cost model as its accounting
policy and has applied the policy to all of its investment
property on consistent basis.

The depreciation on building has been calculated
under straight line basis where the life is estimated
for 50 years. The land is valued at carrying amount
without any appreciation.

Investment properties are derecognised either when
they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the Statement
of Profit or Loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

The total rental income arising from investment
property an direct operation expenses during the
year was NPR 70,107,879.00 /- (PY 65,068,475) and
NPR 28,960,507.00 /- (PY 37, 760,227.27) has been
recognized in Statement of Profit or loss on net basis.

4.1.11 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets



and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
all temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

4.1.12. INSURANCE PREMIUM RECEIVED AND
RECEIVABLE

Insurance Premium Income are booked on accrual
basis when due as per contract. However, management
has estimated 30 days accrued insurance premium
(only) as Insurance Premium Receivable considering
Beema Samiti's directive that the life coverage for
such insurance contracts are enforceable even when
no premium is paid for 30 days.

Also, despite the directive from Beema Samiti, as
per which, the coverage liability of life insurance
for a policy that is in existence for more than 2 years
and premium against which are regularly made,
shall remain in force for a period of 1 years even
if premium are due and beyond that the total life
insurance liability of the company would be limited
to the surrender value of the policy, no premium
receivable for period in excess 30 days are recognised
as Insurance Premium Receivable.

Since, the maximum period before the insurance
receivable is derecognized shall be 30 days (i.e. in
excess of a month), they would be short term in nature;
hence it is continue to be reported at undiscounted
carrying amount.

Premiums are shown before deduction of commission
and are gross of any taxes or duties levied on premium.

Gross premium received and premium paid on
reinsurance ceded are disclosed separately.

Direct expenses such as agency commission and
service fee etc. pertaining to Premium income booked
on credit are also recognized in the Financials.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance
receivable is impaired, the carrying amount of the
insurance receivable will be reduced accordingly
and the impairment loss recognized in profit or
loss. The company gathers the objective evidence
that an insurance receivable is impaired using the
same process adopted for financial assets carried at
amortized cost. The impairment loss is calculated
under the same method used for these financial assets.

4.1.13. OTHER RECEIVABLE

These include receivable from debtors including
doubtful debts, policy loans, investment property,
deposits, share application, prepaid and staff advance.
These are recognised on accrual basis. The fair value
of receivable approximates its carrying amount
because of its short term maturities. As it falls under the
definition of financial instrument, impairment testing
is conducted at the end of the year. And if objective
evidences such as information based on facts that
can be proved by means of search like analysis,
measurement, and observation of impairment exists,
then an estimate of impairment in value of receivable
is calculated and charged to Statement of Profit or
Loss.

4.1.14. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

These include interest receivable from deposits with
banks and other advances including advance to
agents. These are also recognised on accrual basis.
The fair value of receivable approximates its carrying
amount because of its short term maturities. As it
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falls under the definition of financial instrument,
impairment testing is conducted at the end of the
year. And if objective evidences such as information
based on facts that can be proved by means of
search like analysis, measurement, and observation
of impairment exists, then an estimate of impairment
in value of receivable is calculated and charged to
Statement of Profit or Loss.

4.1.15. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT
(DEFERRED INTEREST)

These result from fair value measurement of financial
assets namely Staff Loan and Home Loan through
amortisation. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate method (EIR), less
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount on acquisition (only) that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in investment income in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

4.1.16 OTHER ASSETS

These include Inventory of consumable items such as
stationary and stamps etc. These also include advance
tax deposited by the company for regular (annual)
assessment and also deposits made for appeal
proceedings.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net
realisable value. Due to immateriality, it is carried at
cost using specific identification method.

The deposit made for regular annual assessment as
well as deposit made in the course of appeal process
are accounted for and reported at cost. No fair value
measurement for advance tax made as part of appeal
process are made considering the uncertainty of time
frame where a final decision is eventually made that
is acceptable to the company.

4.1.17. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held with banks, other short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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4.1.18.GROSSINSURANCECONTRACTLIABILITY
4.1.18.1 Insurance Contracts
4.1.18.2 Product classification

As per NFRS 4 - Appendix A, Insurance Contract
is a contract under which one party (the insurer)
accepts significant insurance risk from another party
(the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the
policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder'.
Considering the provisions, all life insurances policies
issues by the company fall under Insurance Contract
covered under NFRS 4 [B22; B23].

Further, NFRS 4 requires an insurer to 'unbundle'
insurance contracts that has deposit components
embedded into it [In addition to the investment
component] in certain circumstances and to
account for the components of a contract as if they
were separate contracts, [NFRS 4.10]. In other
circumstances unbundling is either optional or is
prohibited altogether. There are separate accounting
treatments for measurement on insurance contract
with deposit component.

However, since none of the insurance products
(insurance contracts of the company) have Deposit
Components that can be measured, hence the
company have continued to proceed with its
current accounting practices for all products without
unbundling the deposit components.

4.1.18.3 Life Insurance Contract Liability

NFRS 4 permits a wide range of accounting treatments
to be adopted for the recognition and measurement
of insurance contract liabilities, including liabilities in
respectofinsurance contracts. The Company calculates
insurance contract liabilities for insurance contracts
as per guidelines prescribed by the regulator (Beema
Samiti), whereby the liability represents the present
value of estimated future policy related outflows, less
the present value of estimated future gross premiums
to be collected from policyholders. This method uses
best estimates assumptions for mortality, morbidity,
lapse, expenses and investment yields. Interest rate
assumptions can vary by product and are prescribed



by regulation. Mortality, morbidity, lapse and
expenses assumptions are based on the experience
studies, allowing for Risk Margin as prescribed by
the Regulator. The Company exercises significant
judgment in making appropriate assumptions.

The judgments exercised in the valuation of insurance
contract liabilities affect the amounts recognised in
the financial statements as insurance contract benefits
and insurance contract liabilities.

No fair value reserve has been recognised under
Insurance Contract Liability, considering the directive
issued by Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12, since
no profit is determined under Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income (SOOCI) for each of the years.

4.1.18.4 Liability Adequacy Test

The company evaluates the adequacy of its insurance
contract liabilities at least annually. Liability adequacy
is assessed by portfolio of contracts in accordance with
the company's manner of acquiring, servicing and
measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts.

For Life insurance contracts, insurance contract
liabilities, reduced by value of business acquired on
acquired insurance contracts, are compared with
the gross premium valuation calculated on a best
estimate basis, as of the valuation date. If there is
a deficiency, the unamortised balance of value of
business acquired on acquired insurance contracts
are written down to the extent of the deficiency. If a
deficiency exists, the net liability is increased by the
amount of the remaining deficiency.

Significant judgment is exercised in determining
the level of aggregation at which liability adequacy
testing is performed and in selecting best estimate
assumptions. The judgments exercised in liability
adequacy testing affect amounts recognised in
the financial statements as commission and other
acquisition expenses and insurance contract benefits
and insurance and investment contract liabilities.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of
whether the recognised Life insurance liabilities are
adequate, net of related Present Value of In-force
by using liability adequacy test as laid out under a

Gross Premium Valuation method. The liability
value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient to
meet future benefits and expenses. In performing the
liability adequacy test, following basis are considered
which are summarised as follows:

A. The accounting policy for liability testing
including the frequency and nature of testing

The liability is computed as per the actuarial valuation
directive of Beema Samiti for life insurance business
2065. The statutory liability is computed on a yearly
basis, at the end of every financial year.

B. The cash flow considered

The various benefits considered include Death
Benefit, Survival Benefit and Maturity Benefit. Cash
flows are projected in accordance with the product
specifications for each plan. Death related cash flows
are projected for protection plans, whereas both death
and maturity benefit related cash flows are projected
for endowment products. Similarly, survival benefits
and other benefits are projected in accordance with
the product specifications. The credit of reinsurance is
considered in the computation of reserves by allowing
for cash flows pertaining to reinsurance at policy
level. Reinsurance premiums are considered as outgo
and recovery from reinsurer on expected claims are
considered as income while calculating the reserve
for each policy.

Detailed information for such is provided under
Section 4.2 of the Actuarial Valuation Report as at
16.07.2018 issued separately.

C. Valuation method and assumptions
VALUATION METHODOLOGY

The reserves are computed at policy level using the
actuarial software, Prophet. The insurance products
offered by the Company are modelled in Prophet
which projects the cash flows on monthly intervals till
the end of policy term.

Policy liabilities

i. Reserves are computed using gross premium
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methodology. The amounts of long term liabilities
have been determined separately for each contract
using a prospective calculation by projecting future
cash flows. Hence the reserves are value of benefits
plus value of future expenses after allowing for
expense inflation less value of office premium, all
computed at a policy level.

ii. The various benefits considered include Death
Benefit, Survival Benefit and Maturity Benefit. Cash
flows are projected in accordance with the product
specifications for each plan. Death related cash
flows are projected for protection plans, whereas
both death and maturity benefit related cash flows
are projected for endowment products. Similarly,
survival benefits and other benefits are projected in
accordance with the product specifications.

iii.For participating products, accrued and vested
bonus as at date of valuation is incorporated into
the computation and projection of the benefit
cash flows — death and maturity benefits as per the

product specifications.

iv. The liability so obtained, if negative, is subject to
zeroization at policy level as at date of valuation.

v. Savings policies acquiring paid-up status are treated
as single premium endowment policies. In case of
protection policies acquiring paid-up status, only
the death related cash-flows based on reduced sum
assured and policy expenses are projected.

.The credit of reinsurance is considered in the

v
computation of reserves by allowing for cash
flows pertaining to reinsurance at policy level.
Reinsurance premiums are considered as outgo
and recovery from reinsurer on expected claims
are considered as income while calculating the
reserve for each policy. The reserves, gross and
net of reinsurance are computed, and the reserve
net of reinsurance is considered for the purpose of
reporting.

Optionsand GuaranteesavailableforIndividualand
Group Business

There are no explicit options and guarantees in the
products.
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Reserves for Optional Riders

i. Reserves are held for riders such as Accidental
Death Cover, Waiver of Premium, Permanent and
Total Disablement benefit, Monthly Income Benefit
and Start in Life Benefit.

i. For all the riders, a provision equivalentto Unearned
Premium Reserve method on a 1/365 basis is held.

Provision for Revival of Lapsed Policies

i. The Gross Premium Valuation methodology is
used to compute mathematical reserve for all
lapsed policies (that have not acquired paid-up
value) and assuming they are in-force.

ii. A provision is held towards the liability that may
arise from the policies that may revive in the
future. As per circular 04/070/71 No.2543 dated
2070/09/25, issued by Beema Samiti, lapsed
policies can be revived at any time irrespective
of when the policy had lapsed. Therefore, the
provision is held towards all the lapsed policies
within the policy term.

iii. The provision equal to 10% of the reserve is held,
which is based on the expected revival experience
of the Company. The revival experience may
change each year depending on the management
actions to improve the persistency and taking into
account any margins for prudence. The expected
policy revival of 10% may be reviewed subject
to the Company undertaking a detailed revival
experience study going ahead.

EMR Provision

i. There is an additional mortality risk in respect of
policies which are rated up on account of occupation
hazard,  over/underweight, ~ smoking history,
previous/current health condition or geographical
conditions. Extra premiums are charged for the higher
mortality/morbidity risks on such policies.

ii. The extra premium received is held as provision
towards extra mortality reserve.

Other Provisions

A global provision has been made to cover any
unforeseen events and issues.



Cost of Bonus

A provision has been held to support the cost of bonus
declared as at the date of valuation for all policies in
force as at date of valuation.

Other Methodology Considerations:

i. Effective Date: Except where otherwise stated,
all figures quoted in this report are as at 16th
July 2018 and make no allowance for any
developments after that date.

ii. Business: The statutory valuation is computed for
all in-force business as at 16th July 2018. No new
business has been considered for the purpose of
this report.

iii. Projection Period: Cash-flows have been
projected until maturity or extended term beyond
maturity for all business, covering the full lifetime
of the underlying policyholder liability.

iv. Reporting basis: Unless otherwise stated,
amounts presented in this report are in Nepalese
Rupees (NRs.). Values in some of the tables in this
report may not be additive due to rounding.

v. Exclusions: Taxes have been excluded for the
purpose of this report.

Parameter

vi. Going Concern Basis: All values have been
determined in accordance with a view of the
“most probable” future experience and on a
“going concern” basis. In doing so, it has been
assumed that the future management of the
Company will continue in a manner consistent
with the current management of the Company.

Detailed information for Cash Flow consideration is
provided under Section 4 of the Actuarial Valuation
Report as at 16.07.2018 issued separately.

VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

This is the statutory reporting basis which is in
accordance with points 14,15 and 16 of Section 3
Directive 8(3) of Aarthik Lekhajokha (2065) issued by
the Beema Samiti.

The assumptions used in the GPV basis are realistic
(best estimates) with a margin for adverse deviation.
The best estimate assumptions are derived on the
basis of experience analysis performed prior to each
valuation, after accounting for the long term future
outlook. The results of the experience analysis are
given in the Valuation Report.

This information is also provided under section 6 of
the Actuarial Valuation Report issued seperately.

Valuation Assumptions as at 16.07.2018

Mortality

100% of NALM 2008-09

Commission

Commissions taken on actual basis as per Schedule 11 of the
Insurance Regulation, 2049

Expenses — Fixed

Initial Expenses:
NRs. 1,200 per policy for term Plans
NRs. 2,400 for others

Renewal Expenses:
NRs. 300 per policy for term plans
NRs. 600 for others

Expenses — Premium Related

Initial Expenses (other than Commission, both initial and
renewal): 7%

Expense Inflation 5%p.a.

Valuation Rate of Interest 6% p.a.
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D. The discounting policy

The relevant cash flows for each policy are discounted
on a monthly basis in the actuarial software, Prophet,
considering the valuation rate of Interest as stated
above.

This information is as provided in Section 4 of the
Actuarial Valuation Report as at 16.07.2018 issued
separately.

E. Aggregation practices

It may be noted that the reserves are computed
separately for each policy. The results may then be
presented by product, policy status etc. The results are
presented in the valuation report at the product level.

4.1.19 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION
4.1.19.1 Employee benefits

The Company has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment
benefit plan that defines an amount of benefit that
an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years
of service and compensation.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which the company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The company
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.
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The liability recognized in the Statement of Financial
Position in respect of defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the financial reporting period, together
with adjustments for actuarial gains or losses from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions and past service costs.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms
to maturity that approximate the terms of the related
liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to the equity in the OCI in the
period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in the
Income Statement.

Gratuity

The Company and employees contribute to the
Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) and CIT. The
company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or reductions in
the future payments are available. The details Gratuity
Benefits as per NAS 19 in the Financial Statement has
been illustrated below;



Statement of Gratuity Calculation:

Particulars 2074/75 2073/74 2072/73
Change in Present Value Obligations:

PV of Obligation at beginning of the year 46,108,806 41,227,620 36,856,188
Interest cost 2,766,528 2,473,657 2,211,371
Current Service Cost 5,512,621 5,311,347 5,569,754
Past Service cost -11,061,201 - -
Benefit paid -1,025,314 -5,704,317 -5,561,627
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 19,492,751 2,800,499 2,151,934
Liability at the end of the year 61,794,191 46,108,806 41,227,620
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:

FV of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year 45,037,980 35,753,914 11,951,967
Adjustments to the opening fund 444,109 -256,761 -109,407
Interest Income 2,614,514 2,145,235 717,118
Contribution by Employer 5,554,809 7,395,592 23,194,236
Benefit paid -

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets -

Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year 53,651,412 45,037,980 35,753,914
Amount Recognized in SOFP:

Present Value of Obligations at Year End 61,794,191 46,108,806 41,227,620
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End 53,651,412 45,037,980 35,753,914
Unfunded Status -8,142,779 -1,070,826 -5,473,706
Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss at Year End -

Unrecognized Past Service Cost =

Net Asset/(Liability) Recognized in SOFP -8,142,779

Net Effect 8,142,779 1,070,826 5,473,706
Amount Recognized in SOPL

Current Service Cost 5,512,621 5,311,347 5,569,754
Net Interest Cost 152,014 328,422 1,494,253
Past Service Cost -11,061,201

Expected Contribution by employees

Gain/Loss on Curtailments and settlements

Net Effect on Forex

Expenses Recognized -5,396,566 5,639,769 7,064,007
Amount Recognized in SOPL

Actuarial Gain/Loss on obligation for the period 19,492,751 2,800,499 2,151,934
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income -444,109 256,761 109,407
Change in assets ceiling - - -
Net Income/Expenses for period recognized on OCI 19,048,642 3,057,260 2,261,341
Total 13,652,076 8,697,029 9,325,348
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Leave Benefit:

Short term benefits to employees are recognized on
accrual basis. Salaries in lieu of leave that are short
term in nature are recognized on accrual basis.

Long term provision for leave is made as per actuarial
valuation. The details calculation of Leave Benefits
as per NAS 19 provided by Actuarial Valuator is
illustrated below;

Actuarial Valuation of Leave Pay (NFRS SOFP)

2074/75

2073/74 2072/73

Description

Projected Benefits Obligation

43,602,368

31,533,062 26,558,623

Amount To be Recognized in the P/L (NFRS) 2074/75 2073/74
Opening Balance of leave obligation 31,533,062 26,558,623
Addition (b/F) 28,732,149 17,839,457
Paid (16,662,843) (12,865,018)

43,602,368 31,533,062

Closing Balance

4.1.20 PROVISION FOR UNEXPIRED RISK:

Provision for unexpired risk reserve includes provision
created for Term Life Insurance as specified by actuary.
However, no such provisions have been made for
other policies. Changes brought about in Provision for
unexpired risk reserve from year to year, as certified
by the actuary, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss Account.

Provision for unexpired risk is reported under Note 15
as Insurance Contract Liability.

4.1.21 DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

These include deposits received by the company
from policy holders, deposits received from tenants of
investment property and other miscellaneous receipt.

These are recognised on accrual basis. The fair value
of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount
because of its short term maturities as such no fair
value treatment for the same are given. Any movement
in deposit liabilities other than through receipt and/or
payment cash are accounted for in Statement of Profit
or Loss.
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4.1.22 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLE

These mainly include agent commission and incentive
payable, service charge payable, TDS on commission
payable to agents, Bonus to employee and other
similar liabilities. These are recognised on accrual
basis. The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates
its carrying amount because of its short term maturities
as such no fair value treatment for the same are given.

4.1.23 REINSURANCE PREMIUM PAYABLE

These include premium payable to reinsurer. These
are recognised on accrual basis. The fair value of
deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount
because of its short term maturities as such no fair
value treatment for the same are given.

4.1.24 INSURANCE CLAIM PAYABLE

Provision for Claims Incurred but Not Reported
(IBNR) is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation
report prepared while evaluating insurer's liabilities.
Provision of 115% of outstanding claim, though not
in strict compliance with NFRS, has been made as per
section 15(d) of Insurance Regulation 2049 also on



account specific direction given by Beema Samiti on
Poush 12, 2075.

Outstanding Claim as at Asad 32, 2075 ( also Asad
31, 2074) are reported under Note 15 as Insurance
Contract Liability.

4.1.25 OTHER PROVISIONS

Provision include provision for staff bonus and
provision for bad debts.

Provisions are recognised when the company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where
the company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision
is presented in the Statement of Financial Position net
of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as an interest expense.

4.2 Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity
when there is no contractual obligation to transfer
cash, other financial assets or issue available number
of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares
classified as equity are recognised in equity in the
period in which they are declared.

Share Issue Cost directly attributable to the issue of
equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds, net of tax.

4.2.1 SHARE PREMIUM

These include Share premium collected by the
company by issuing shares including Further Public

Issue (FPO) issued during FY 2073/74 adjusted by the
share issue expenses and net gain (income) earned
from FPO issue mainly resulting from interest earned
from funds collected through subscription. The
bonus shares declared and approved in the Annual
General Meeting for FY 2073/74 has been accounted
for during the year FY 2074/75 and the resulting
adjustment is made from the share premium account.
Share premium account are disclosed at historical
cost basis.

4.2.2 RESERVE AND SURPLUS

These include revenue reserve carried forward from
previous year plus profit for the year and dividend
paid out as well as adjustment arising from prior year
transactions specially pertaining to tax adjustments.
These also include adjustments in the profit as per
NFRS financials and GAAP financials for the period by
transferring to Regulatory Reserve and also carried out
as per direction of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12.
The profit for the year, hence reported under both
the set of financials are same for each of the years
covered by the financial statements.

The effect of adjustments arising due to fair value
measurement of financials instruments and others
due to first time implementation of NFRS has already
been considered in Statement of Profit and Loss and
also Statement of Comprehensive Statement that are
routed to Reserve and Surplus. Hence total effect of all
the adjustments made due to NFRS is reflected in the
Reserve and Surplus Account.

4.2.3 CATASTROPHIC RESERVE

A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% of the net profit
(GAAP), is to be appropriated as per the circular
issued by Beema Samiti dated 2071.06.08 also in line
with its direction dated 2075/09/12.

Total reserve created during FY 2074/75 amounting
to Rs. 111,283,192 [being profit of 10% of GAAP
profit for year] is reported under Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income.

4.2.4 REGULATORY RESERVE
As per Directive of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12

any excess profit for the year in the NFRS financial
statements in comparison to profit as per GAAP
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financials needs to adjusted in Other Comprehensive
Income of the NFRS financial statement so as to
match the profits for the disclosed by both the sets of
financial statements. In consideration to the directive
such difference [also reflected in the reconciliation
statements] are accounted under regulatory reserve
and are shown separately on the face of the financial
statements.

Total regulatory reserve outstanding at end of FY
2074/75 amounted to Rs. 918,762,828.

4.2.5 LEASE

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or
contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases which transfer all risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item substantially
to the Company are capitalised at the commencement
of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognised as interest expenses in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. As at the Balance Sheet date, the
Company does not have any finance lease contracts.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

5. Revenue Recognition

5.1 INSURANCE RELATED REVENUE

The premium income is recognised on accrual basis
and net of reinsurance premium. The cut off period of
a month [30 days] has been taken where receivable
and income would be booked on accrual basis.

The persistency and lapse ratio of insurance contracts
are determined for each of the years and an average
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(%) of 5 years of lapse ratio is considered as impaired.
So, the total insurance premium receivable is booked
for a month less impairment. As insurance premium,
service fee, interest on late payment and agent
commission is booked appropriately.

Gross premium earned by the company is adjusted
with the reinsurance premium ceded with reinsurer
on accrual basis.

5.1.1 REINSURANCE CONTRACT [CEDED AND
CLAIM]

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers
under which the Company is compensated for losses
on one or more contracts issued by the Company and
that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts
held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets.
Insurance contracts entered into by the Company
under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance
contracts.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled
under its reinsurance contracts held are recognized
as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-
term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities
are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognized as an expense when
due. It is accounted on accrual basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a
prepaid reinsurance premiums.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for
impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired,
the Company reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and
recognizes that impairment loss in the profit or loss.
The Company gathers the objective evidence that a



reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process
adopted for financial assets held at amortized cost.
The impairment loss is also calculated following the
same method used for these financial assets.

5.2 INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing
financial instruments, including financial instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognized within ‘investment income' and ‘finance
costs' in the profit or loss using the effective interest
rate method.

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis. Interest
receivable from investment, policy loan and others
are recognised when contractual right to receive is
established. The company has charged 10% p.a.
interest in the late premium payment and loans against
insurance policies.

5.3 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Policy administration charges, other contract fees and
trust management fees are recognised on an accrual
basis. If the fees are for services provided in future
periods then they are deferred and recognised over
those future periods.

5.4 INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income is recognised on the time
proportionate basis using EIR irrespective of the
classification under NFRS 39. The amortisation of
discount/premium is also treated as an interest income.

5.5 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established irrespective of its
classification of FVTPL or AFS which is the ex-dividend
date for equity instruments.

5.6 FAIR VALUE GAINS AND LOSSES

Fair value gains and losses on AFS securities are
recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income until such instrument is derecognised or
impaired. Fair value gains and losses on financial
assets at FVTPL, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

5.6.1. Realised gains and losses

Realised gains and losses recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss include gains and losses on financial
assets, property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on the sale of investments are
calculated as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the original cost, amortised cost or
carrying amount, depending on the classification of
the assets and are recorded on occurrence of the sale
transaction.

5.7 CLAIMS, BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
RECOGNITION

5.7.1 Gross claims and benefits

Gross claims and benefits for insurance contracts
include the cost of all claims arising during the year
including internal and external claims handling costs
thataredirectly related to the processing and settlement
of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on
contracts as well as changes in the gross valuation of
insurance and liabilities. Death claims and surrenders
are recorded on the basis of notifications received.
Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when
due.

Additional provision of 15% of outstanding claim
[i.e. a total of 115% of total claim] is also made in
compliance with the requirements of section 15(d) of
Insurance Regulation 2049.

5.7.2 Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related
gross insurance claim is recognised according to the
terms of the relevant contract.

5.7.3 Gross Change in Contract Liability and
Unexpired Risk

Change in life insurance contract liability and
unexpired risk are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss based on actuarial valuation made in
line with the directions provided by Beema Samiti.
The changes in insurance contract liability during the
year are summarized as follows;

19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 155



¥87'96£'965'6Y - ¥87'96£'965'6v SSLoLE’L T0L'SEY'E9€E 855'850°£16'6 L99'vSO*LLL LL 80T'LE6'EVS LT 8L0Z AINf Y391 UO Se saljigel| 30eJU0D dueINsU|
616'v80'6vT'L 616'780'6vT'L v8Y'6v0'virL €9¥'96¥'79C SL6VSTLLL L66'€ST'LEL snjding piemiod pauied
6ST'€9€'£50'9 6ST'€9€'£50'9 EVS'LLEIL wTorl'LylL EVL'LOV'ELY'L LEL'LLE09E'E SNUOg MaU JO 350D
S0£'0TE'0T8 S0€'0zE'0T8 99€'L8E VT 9S2'0TL'LSL 69€'€€E'6ET 718'788'86€ JUNOJSe S507 ;g 11J0Id O} palidjsuel]
€8%'89/'9T1'8 €8%'89/'9T1'8 £6€'808'7i7C LOV'£SE'L9S"L £80'980'7T'C Ts'915'068'E snjding
7S6'££0'68C'CY LS6'L£0'68CTY S£9'800°€vL €58'LTi'L0S8 £6'10£'985'6 08%'S0€'7S0'vC uoisiaoud pue Ayijiger [e3oL
909'9%€'£0¢'L 909'9%€'£0%'L £90'TST9 €V6'STY'LTE €VS'67S'LYT €50'6€1'T€8 SUOISINOI{ 810
SrE'169'18801 SrE'169'18801 809'95£'9¢L 016'566's81'8 00t'TLL'8€€'6 LT¥'991°0TT'€T saniqer Lijod [eyo)
68S9LL'LLY'0S 68S9LL'LLY'0S SSL'0LEL 890°£18'£8¢€ YLE'6LL'L00L 0€0'88€'010'CL 70'TT8'tye’LT pung sy} jo sduejeq [e}0]
£T0°01S'LYS'6€ - 970'0LS'LYS'6€ SSLoLE’L or8'191'91T 0S6'8C€'L81L 009°7L6'L6V'0L SLY'9EL'YY9'LT £10T AIn[ Y3 L uo se sanyjiqel| 10ei3u0) sdueinsu|
T0L'601'99€"L T0L'601'99€"L 667'LY0'V6 ¥8Y¥'658'78¢ LEL'OEE TV T81'TL8'9vL snjding piemio4 patued
v8T'TEL'TEYY ¥8T'TEL'TEY L18E'LL1'6Y €86'505°L48 £19°TL0°LOE"L €0€'9€1'86€T Snuog mau JO 350D
TLL'L8Y'Y99 TLLL8Y'Y99 £91'€90°91 £05'899'8T L 691'€09'L£T 676'9771'78C 1UN02DE 5507 73 11J0Id O} palisjsuel |
8S1'€2£'799'9 8S1'€2£'799'9 Lv8'L8T'6S1 vL6'€€0'68T'L €T6'576'98€T YL'SSY'LT8'T snjding
S8Y'856'LYS'€E S8Y'856'LS'€E 991'LE6'TL €87'€96'920°9 9¥8'629'TrE'8 066'£Z¥'660°61 uoisiaoid pue Ajjiqer [e30L
180'ST6'L9T'L 180'576'L9T'L £SS'T6S'E 90t'0L¥'79T 88/'L1L'V9T 0€EY0T'LEL SUOIsInOId 810
YOV €E0'VLT'TE YOV €E0'VLT'TE 609'77€'69 LL0'€SS'YIL'S 8S0'TL6'£L0'8 099'€TT'T9€'8L saniqer £1jod [eyo)
86/'166'S0T'0Y 86/'166'S0T'0Y SSLOLEL €£10'szT'TeT LSY'L66'SLE L 69£'S/5'6TL'0L Y0¥'€88'976'LT pung ay} jo aduejeq [ej0]
068'£07'SOV'LE - 068°L07'SOV'LE SSLOLEL 0€8'v18'SEL 099'0T'STE'S 7S0'87'906'L €61'679'9€0'81 910Z AINf Y15 L UO Se saljigel| 10eJU0D dueINSU|
08Z'716'98€"L 08Z'716'98€"L ¥Z8'LYE'09 619'85€'0SS 160'85t'55S 9v/'s5/'0TT snjding piemio patued
0ZY'vEY'099'E 0ZY'vEY'099'E 86T'VEE'LE €10'187'959 8Y¥'LSE9SL L 199'£9+'918'L SnNUOg MU JO 150D
€0V'6€6'8LS €01'6£6'8LS LY8'TEE0L 90T'LS0°LEL S8lLsTy'L6l SOL'vTLvET JUNODSE S507 ¢ 11JOId O} paliajsuel |
€01'887°929'S €01'887°929'S 696'800'C01 8€8'969'¢vE’L YZL'YET'606'L TULS'LYE'LLT'T snjding
9€0'6%75'95€'9¢C S€0'675°95€'9C 80L'8EL'vY 870995811y €LS'8EY' V619 98£'S0¥'666'S L uoisiaoid pue Ajjiqer (@301
010'626'916 0L0'626'916 - 09Z'L¥0'T €SE'08L'091 €86'vV9¥'0L1 YLy'Tr9'€8s SUOISINOI{ B30 ]
ST0'0T9'6€EV'ST ST0'0T9'6E¥'ST - 8’ L60'TY G19'S8/'LS6'E 0€5'€£6'€20'9 TLE'EIL'SIY'SL er £o1jod [e3oL
€6C'LY1'V86'LE €6C'LY1'V86'LE SSL'oLe’L LL9'LyL'9VL 998'797'T9v'S LET'ELI'EOL'S 8SE'€SL'0LT'8L pund sy} jo aduejeq [ejo]

AAI9S9Y sopIjod (s1aY30) £d110d (2191343AU0)D)

1104 dueansu]  £d1j0d dueansu|
anjep lelol acueunsuj 31 £>1]04 ddueInSu|

Jejnonaed

£
LAY IYjees UBASD[ )i eJeyes UeAddf B

156 19th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18



Change in unexpired risk reserve during the year is as follows:

Particulars Amount

Opening Risk Provision

354,714,592.00

Amount transferred to Profit & Loss account

60,783,040.00

Closing Risk Provision

293,931,552.00

5.7.4 General Expenses

All the general expenses including agent commission,
medical fee, net service charges, other direct expenses
and management expenses are recognised on accrual
basis when the company is obligated to make the
payments, either legally or constructively.

All the management expense (100%) is charged to the
Statement of Profit or Loss Account.

5.7.5 Staff Bonus

As per Bonus Act 2031, company's staffs are entitled
to bonus of 10% of profit earned by the company
during the year. Considering the fact that the
Company is preparing the NFRS financials for the first
time, provision for staff bonus has been calculated as
per GAAP i.e. 10% of Profit earned by the company
during the year as per GAAP.

5.8 Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in the OCI or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in the OCI or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the Nepal income tax laws at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

5.8.1. Current Taxes

Currentincome tax is calculated by the company using
the provisions of Income tax Act 2058 and income tax
regulation 2059 as applicable in Nepal. Current tax
payable (or recoverable) is based on the taxable profit
for the year.

Current income tax is the amount of income tax
payable on the taxable profit for the year determined
in accordance with the relevant tax legislation and any
adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Tax Settlement Status

The company income tax assessments by the tax
authorities are final and settled up to the income year
2070/71. The Income years whose settlements are still
due where the company has made provision as per
its self-assessment returns and amount of advance tax
paid are as under:
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Fiscal Year

Self-assessment Returns

Advance Tax paid

2071/72 (34,609,686.00) 582,926,527.00
2072/73 33,732,054.00 842,256,090.68
2073/74 159,281,064.00 1,179,735,125.40
2074/75 530,633,058.00* 1,174,688,742.00

*Note: (Self-Assessment not made; only provision made)

Tax Assessment Status [Litigation]

IRD has determined the additional tax of
Rs.45,753,719.76 of FY 2062/63, FY 2063/64, FY
2064/65, FY 2066/67, FY 2067/68, FY 2068/69 and
FY 2069/70 in which the company has again sued in
the court. Inland Revenue Department has determined
the additional tax of Rs.2,063,307.73/- of FY 2070/71.

5.9 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND THE USE OF
JUDGEMENT

The company makes estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments
are continually evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

5.10 RISK MANAGEMENT
5.10.1 Financial Management Risk

The primary source of financial risk to an insurer
arises from its investment exposures and investment
activities. Thus, the investment portfolios maintain
a prudent approach in its investment strategy and
investment exposures to ensure that investment returns
are optimised on a risk adjusted basis and to ensure
the Company operates within its defined risk appetite.

Risk appetite statements communicate the parameters
and boundaries within which the business unit has
opted to operate in relation to the identified financial
risks. In the Company, the risk appetite framework
has expressed the business unit's appetite as regards
capital risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and market
risk. The exposures and management information
pertaining to these four risk aspects are within the
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scope of identified governance committees of the
business based on the required technical expertise to
provide effective oversight. Management information
is submitted periodically to review and monitor these
risks at these governance committees that convene as
per their defined frequency of review.

Management of financial risks falls under the purview
of the Committee, which monitors the overall exposure
of the Company to financial risks. Total investments
of the Company are managed separately through
segregated funds with due consideration to their
respective risk profiles, stakeholders and objectives.
The Company keeps investment exposures within
pre-determined strategic asset allocation limits, which
are defined in order to generate superior investment
returns without excessive exposure to high risk assets.

5.10.1.1 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the uncertainty, emanating from
business operations, investments or financing
activities, whether a company will have the ability
to meet payment obligations in a full and timely
manner under current or stressed conditions. Liquidity
adequacy is a measure or assessment of the ability
of a company to meet payment obligations in a full
and timely manner within a defined time horizon. It
is a function of its sources of liquidity relative to its
liquidity needs. Liquidity sources can be internal
and external, available immediately or within the
defined time horizon, and includes all funds, assets
and arrangements that allow an insurer to meet its
liquidity needs. Liquidity needs include all current
and expected payment obligations within the defined
time horizon.

The Company has determined that an appropriate
time horizon within which it must be able to meet
its liquidity needs is twelve months, being generally
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Controls in place to mitigate liquidity risk

Management of liquidity risk is governed by the
Liquidity Risk Management Policy which is a
component of the Company's risk management
framework and is incorporated in the Investment
Mandates of the business. The Company defines
liquidity risk appetite in terms of Liquidity Coverage
Ratio which is defined for each core portfolio of the
business.

The liquidity adequacy is reviewed quarterly by the
Financial Risk Committee to ensure that the Company
will be able to meet its obligations in both current and
stressed conditions for the next twelve months.

The Company maintains a cash flow maturity profile
within the investment portfolios of the Company in
tandem with the risk appetite of each portfolio and
cash flow needs.

Minimum liquidity levels are incorporated into
the Investment Mandate of each portfolio and are
monitored on a daily basis.

5.10.1.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of adverse financial impact
resulting from fluctuations in credit quality of third
parties including default, rating transition and
credit spread movements. Credit risk categories
include default risk, spread risk and rating
migration risk, each of which is defined below;

5.10.1.3 Spread risk

The risk of an adverse financial outcome arising from
changes in the level or volatility of third party credit
spreads. Credit spread moves can be caused by credit
concerns (improving or worsening) on the issuer or
from market factors (such as risk appetite and liquidity
within the market).

5.13.1.4 Default risk

The risk of an adverse financial outcome arising from
one or more third party default events. A default event
includes a delay in repayments or interest payments,
restructuring of borrower repayments / interest
schedule, bankruptcy and repudiation / moratorium
(for example, for sovereign counterparties).
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5.13.1.5 Rating migration risk

The risk of an adverse financial outcome arising from
a change in third party credit standing. As well as
having a potential knock-on effect on spreads, rating
movements can trigger solvency and accounting
impacts and can drive management actions and the
realisation of losses.

Controls in place to mitigate credit risk

The management of credit risk is governed by the
Credit Risk Management Policy which is embedded
within the Investment Policy and incorporated in the
Investment Mandates of the business.

Single counterparty exposures are monitored based
on the counterparty exposure in comparison to the
net assets of the counterparty.

All investments are denominated in Nepalese Rupees
and the Company does not maintain any investment
exposures to assets held overseas.

Minimum investment grade rating criteria been
implemented for determining investment decisions.

The Company maintains a predominant exposure to
Government securities and bonds and also investment
in Category A Commercial banks within Nepal thus
prudently managing credit default risk from these
investments.

5.11 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of adverse financial impact
resulting from fluctuations in the level or volatility
of prices of financial instruments and other market
factors including interest rates, inflation and foreign-
exchange rates. Market risk categories include interest
rate risk, equity risk, foreign exchange risk, inflation
risk, property risk, commodity risk and other risks.
The Company's primary source of market risks are
interest rate risk and equity risk.

Although credit and liquidity risks are defined and
managed as separate risks, the assessment of market
risk does consider the interdependence between
market risk and credit and liquidity risks (for example
market losses caused by illiquidity issues, sovereign
default or a default of a systemically important



counterparty) and also the capital risk arising from
market risk.

5.11.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of an adverse financial
impact due to changes in the absolute level of
interest rates. It is performed for reasonable possible
movement in interest rates for this year with all other
variables held constant, showing the impact on the
profit before tax, equity and OCI

5.11.2 Equity Risk

Equity risk is the risk of adverse financial impact due to
equity market dynamics (for example, individual spot
price moves, index moves, volatility and correlation
changes etc.). The equity price risk exposures relates
to financial assets and financial liabilities which
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, principally investments securities are held for
the account of the investment linked business.

Following analysis is performed for reasonable
possible movement in key variables with all other
variables held constant, showing the impact on profit

before tax, equity and OCI:

Particular Change % in Impact in Profit Impact on equity Impact on OCI
equity price before tax

Equity Price change - 10% 143,644,636.12 164,064,430.85 74,335,611.43

Equity Price change -20% (147,832,768.44) (54,543,622.58) | (144,272,442.00)

*The above illustration is only prepared for adverse scenario, where market price is being moved in an unfavorable direction.

*Impact in equity and OCI reflects adjustment for tax where applicable.

5.11.3 Risk oversight

Evaluating the impact of market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk are inbuilt into the investment
decision making process. The market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk of the investment portfolios are
monitored every month by a dedicated Committee, a
management level governance oversight committee
responsible to oversee investments.

The Board of Directors level governance oversight
committee responsible to oversee investments is the
Investment Committee which is a sub-committee of
the Board of Directors. The Investment Committee
monitors the market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
of the investment portfolios every quarter.

The capital risk of the Company is monitored by
the Investment, Risk Management and Solvency
Committee that convenes on atleast a monthly basis.
The Committee also reviews the liquidity risk, credit
risk and market risk of the investment portfolios

5.12 INSURANCE RISK
5.12.1 Life Insurance
5.12.1.1 Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the
most significant factors that could increase the overall
frequency of claims are epidemics such as AIDS,
SARS and a human form of Avian flu or widespread
changes in lifestyle. For contracts where survival is the
insured risk, the most significant factor is continued
improvement in medical science and social conditions
that would increase longevity.

At present, these risks do not vary significantly in
relation to the location of the risk insured by the
Company. However, undue concentration of amounts
could have an impact on the severity of benefit
payments on a portfolio basis.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits
and fixed future premiums, there are no mitigating
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terms and conditions that reduce the insurance
risk accepted. The Company manages these risks
through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance
arrangements.

The underwriting strategy is intended to ensure that
the risks underwritten are well diversified in terms
of type of risk and the level of insured benefits.
Medical selection is also included in the Company's
underwriting procedures, with premiums varied to
reflect the health condition and family medical history
of the applicants. The Company has a retention
limit of Rs 1 million on any single life insured. The
Company reinsures the excess of the insured benefit
over Rs 1 million for standard risks (from a medical
point of view). Medically impaired lives are charged
higher insurance premiums.

5.13 SOURCES OF UNCERTAINTY IN THE
ESTIMATION OF FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS
AND PREMIUM RECEIPTS

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit
payments and premium receipts for long term
insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of
long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and
the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Company uses appropriate base tables of
standard mortality according to the type of contract
being written. An investigation into the actual
experience of the Company over the last five years is
carried out and statistical methods are used to adjust
the crude mortality rates to produce a best estimate
of expected mortality for the future. Where data is
sufficient to be credible, the statistics generated by
the data are used without reference to a regulatory
table. Where this is not the case, the best estimate of
future mortality is based on standard regulatory tables
adjusted for the Company's overall experience. For
contracts that insure survival, an adjustment is made
for future mortality improvements based on trends
identified in the continuous mortality investigations
performed by international actuarial bodies. The
Company maintains voluntary termination statistics
to investigate the deviation of actual termination
experience against assumptions. Statistical methods
are used to determine appropriate termination rates.
An allowance is then made for any trends in the data
to arrive at a best estimate of future termination rates.
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Process used to decide on assumptions
a) Mortality / Morbidity

Internal investigations covering a five year period are
conducted by claim type, subdivided by age. From
these investigations crude incidence rates are derived.
Next, actual over expectation ratios are calculated
and accordingly graded percentages of the standard
mortality table are used for the final assumptions.

b) Persistency

An internal investigation is conducted by entry year
and product type, subdivided by premium mode.
From this investigation, crude persistency rates are
derived, allowing for all of paid-up, lapse, surrender
and revivals. Next, the weighted rates are assessed
and smooth assumptions are set taking into account
past trends and the future outlook.

c) Investment returns

Investment returns are set based on a long-term basis
by considering the future outlook of Government
securities and other asset classes in the local market.

d) Renewal expense level and inflation

Renewal expense levels are set by way of an expense
investigation into the expenses of the Company over
the last calendar year, with each expense being
classified as acquisition/maintenance and then being
assigned a driver based on how it may develop into
the future. The expense assumptions are verified for
reasonableness against the latest three year business
plan.

Inflation margins are set based on NRB's economic
projections.

5.14 Capital Management

The focus of capital management is to maintain
a strong capital base to support the business and
business growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital
requirements at all times. In view of this, the Company
has established the following objectives, policies and
approach;



® To maintain the required solvency level and provide
security to policyholders.

m To allocate capital efficiently and support the growth
of the business by ensuring that returns on capital
employed meets the requirements of shareholders
and policyholders.

mTo maintain financial strength to support new
business growth and to satisfy the requirements of
the policyholders, regulators and stakeholders.

m To maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support
business objectives and optimise shareholder value.

The Company seeks to optimise the structure and
sources of capital to ensure that it consistently
maximises returns to the shareholders and
policyholders. The Company's approach in managing
capital includes managing assets, liabilities and risks
in a coordinated manner, assessing shortfalls between
reported and required capital levels on a regular
basis and taking appropriate actions to strengthen the
capital position of the Company in view of changes
in economic conditions and risk characteristics. The
primary source of capital used by the Company is
equity shareholders' funds. The capital requirements
are routinely forecast on a periodic basis by the
Management and the Board of Directors. The solvency
margins are calculated on a monthly basis and shared
with the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The
Company maintains its capital base well above the
minimum regulatory requirements Rs 2 Billion.

5.15 DECLARATION OFPROPOSED BONUSAND
PROPOSED DIVIDEND

During the FY 2074/75, the company has declared
Bonus Share of 25% of paid up capital Rs
4,102,768,425.00 amounting NRs. 1,099,232,162.00,
and cash dividend of 23.50% amounting NRs.
1,033,256,248.00. The Bonus share was declared out
of share premium balance of NRs. 2,850,143,722.00

5.16 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amount are calculated
by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders
by weighted average number of shares outstanding at
the end of the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be
issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

For the FY 2074/75, EPS of the company is Rs 22.

5.17 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

The company has carried out transactions in the
ordinary course of business on an arm's length
basis at commercial rates with parties who are
defined as related parties as per NAS 24; Related
Party Disclosures, except for the transactions with
Key Management Personnel, which was govern
by employee rules and regulations of the company
uniformly applicable to all staffs.

Following are identifies as related party of the
company under the requirement of NAS 24:

i. Substantial shareholders of the company and
companies whose substantial share is hold by the
company.

ii. Post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees.

iii. Key managerial personnel and their close family
members if any.
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5.17.1.1. Substantial shareholders of the

company:

Following are the dividend paid to substantial
shareholders of the company during the fiscal year out
of dividend declared for the FY 2073.74.

Cash Dividend as per

18th AGM (2073.74)

1. SUBHASH CHANDRA SANGHAI 68,011,372.39
2. ANUJ AGRAWAL 51,722,004.54
3. GOVIND LAL SANGHAI 47,390,815.50
4. PAWAN KUMAR GOLYAN 36,415,625.01
5. RAM CHANDRA SANGHAI 34,026,053.98
6. PURUSHOTAM LAL SANGHAI 37,196,306.12
7. BASU DEV GOLYAN 28,812,506.06
8. KAVITA SANGHAI 120,385,245.18
9. TULSI RAM AGRAWAL 1,885,810.55
Total 425,845,739.33

Payments are made net of taxes and there are no other
financial transactions with substantial shareholders of
the company except in the normal course of insurance
business.

5.17.1.2. Companies whose substantial share is
hold by the company:

Following are the transactions with companies whose
substantial shares are hold by the company:

Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd.

Re-insurance Premium paid 28,370,957.00

5.17.2. Post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees:

The company has contributed to approve retirement
benefit plan maintained with Citizen Investment Trust
for its employees. During the fiscal year no further
contribution was made to the plan as plan assets were
more than plan liabilities.

Statement of fund:

Particular Amount (NRs)

Opening balance of Fund 43,575,236.69

Additional to the fund 0.00
Interest income 3,058,623.46
Payments from the fund 0.00

46,633,860.15

Closing balance of Fund

Claim received 5,050,753.00

S. No. Name of the Company Particulars

1 Citizen Investment Trust Bonus Share of 94,539 Kitta for FY 2071/72 & 2072/73
2 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. Bonus Share of 153,704 kitta for FY 2073/74

No tax has been deducted in the re-insurance premium
paid amount as well as claim received amount.
Required tax has been deducted by the concerned
company before transferring the bonus share. No
other financial transactions has been made except in
the normal course of business with above mentioned
companies.
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5.17.3 Transaction with key managerial personnel
(KMP) of the company:

The company has recognised Board of directors and
Chief executive officer as KMP of the company.

5.17.3.1 Transaction with Board of directors

Company's Board of Directors is comprised of
following personalities:

S.No. Name Position
1. | Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai Chairman
2. Mr. Ram Avatar Agrawal Director
3. Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Director
4. Mr. Prakash Mundada Director
5. Mr. Vivek Agrawal Director
6. Mr. Bimal Prasad Dhakal Director
7. Ms. Parul Dhakal Director

Transactions made with Board of directors of the company
during the year:

Meeting fees/ Allowances 3,283,240.00
Traveling 1,291,040.00
Allowances 307,935.00

Total 4,882,215.00

The directors are entitled to meeting fees on attending
board and other committee meetings as well as monthly
allowances. Payments made to the directors are net of taxes.
There have been no financial transactions with close family
members of the directors except in the normal course of

insurance business.

5.17.3.2 Transaction with Chief Executive Officer

Particular Amount (NRs)
Salary 4,680,000.00
Allowances and other benefits 3,770,000.00
Total 8,450,000.00

Benefits are paid according to employee rules and
regulations of the company and are included in the taxable
income. There has been no financial transaction with close
family members of the CEO except in the normal course of

insurance business.

5.18 FIRST TIME ADOPTION
RECONCILIATIONS AND DISCLOSURES

5.18.1Exceptionsandexemptionstotheretrospective

application of other NFRSs

Following exceptions and exemptions to retrospective

application of other NFRSs have been applied for preparation

of NFRS financials for the first time as permitted by NFRS1.

1. The company's estimates in accordance with NFRSs at
the date of transition to NFRSs is consistent with estimates
made for the same date in accordance with previous
GAAP except for certain estimates that are required as
part of NFRS financials as reported in respective notes.

N

. The company, in the NFRS financials, has used deemed
cost as fair value for all items of Property, Plant and
Equipment, Investment Property or Intangible Asset.

w

.Since this is the first time adoption of NFRS, the company
so far continues to prepare its Interim Financial Reporting
as per previous GAAP.

5.18.2Significantchangesfromthepoliciesadopted
in the past

Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted
under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal Accounting Standard
and directives issued by Beema Samiti) and adoption of NFRS
has been disclosed in the respective segment, including the

impact. The detailed impact disclosure is given below.

5.18.3 Adjustments to the opening NFRS Financial
Statements

Particular Amount (NRs)

Total Change in Liabilities
In equity

Life Assurance Fund

Total Change in Reserve

SFP Adjustments

Deferred Taxes (26,987,298)
Financial Assets Changes 376,290,774
Deferred Expense (8,952,087)
Interest Differential-Charged to Staff Cost 15,457,952
Insurance Receivable 240,418,137
Other Financial Assets (33,683,459)
Total Change in Assets 562,544,019
Changes in Insurance Contract Liability 31,405,207,890
Retirement Benefit Obligation (30,537,085)
Deferred Income Tax Liability 85,015,251
Accrued Income Changes 38,377,766
Other Provision Changes (76,611,744)

31,421,452,078

(31,405,207,890)
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PlY“Sh I. MaJ mudar 5, Pranav, Juhu Road, Santacruz (W)
Actuary and Chartered Insurance Practitioner Mumbai 400054

Tel: +91-22-26614374/ 26615236
Mobile: +91 9870236669
Email:pi.majmudar@ka-pandit.com

To the Shareholders of Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited,

Actuarial Valuation of Long term Insurance Business as on 16.07.2018

At the request of the CEO/Managing Director of the company, | have carried out an Actuarial Valuation
of Long Term Business of Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited as on 16" July 2018, and have pleasure
in placing the following comments in this regard:

1)

2)

Records necessary for the purpose of Long Term Actuarial Liability Valuation of the Insurance Fund
have been provided by the Company. We have received a certification from the Company
confirming the same.

Adequate and proper Reserves have been provided as on 16™ July 2018 for all the liabilities in
respect of long term insurance fund, taking into account all the current and contingent liabilities as
at that date.

3) The Long Term Insurance Fund as included in audited accounts of NRs. 50,492.24 million is
sufficient to cover required actuarial reserves of NRs. 48,346.40 million as on 16" July 2018.
Additionally, reserves of NRs. 287.95 million are to be maintained for Foreign Employment Term
Insurance Plan.

4) The Required Solvency Margin as per the New Directives of Solvency Margin issued by Beema
Samiti is NRs. 3257.67 million. The Available Solvency Margin is NRs. 10,195.52 million. Thus the
ASM / RSM ratio is 3.13 which is well above the required ratio of 1.

& W“V

Date: 2" November 2018 P. . Majmudar

Place: Mumbai, India Appointed Actuary

P. I. MAJIMUDAR
F.L.A.l. (00109)
2 kap@ka-pandit.com
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